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FEDJ!)RALRqLE INI0~~MINA~ JUSTICE MATTERS 

MONDAY, MAY" 17, "1982 

HousE OF REPRF~ENTATIVES, 
. 0 SUBCOMMlTTEE ON CRIME 

OF THE 'COMMITTEE ON THE JUD~(JIAR~, 
Wasliington, D.C. 

" The subcommittee mt'it, purellimt to 'call, at 9:50 a.m., at the 
Gothic Room, Rodino Institute of Criminal Justice, Jersey City 
State College, Jersey City, N.J. 

Present: Representatives Hughes [presiding], Rodino, and Gua-
rini. " 0, , ' 

. Staff present: Hayden W. Gregory, chief counsel, and Virginia 
Sloan, assistant counsel. ' . '" 0 ' 

Mr. HUGUES. The SubcoIllIIl,ittee on G-rime of the House Judiciary 
Gommittee will come t~ order. ' ..,. ' 

,', For the record, my name is William J. Hughes. I am chairman of 
the Subcommittee on Crime and we are just delighted to have this 
morning's hearing hosted at the Peter W. Rodino Criminal Justice 
mstitute at the Jersey City State College. We are deeply indebted 
to John Kennedy, the institute's director, for permitting us to "use 
this beautiful facility this morning. I do not h.~ve to tell you that 
we are very proud of the chairman of the full House Judiciary 
Committee, Peter Rodino. The fact that this particular institute is 
named after the distinguished chairman of the House Judiciary 
Committee, PeterW. R9dino, I think is rather significant. 

When I came to Congress back in 1974, Chairman Rodino, who 
aJso happens to be the dean of our New Jersey delegation, took me 
under his wing, sh9wed me around 'the tunnels, took the time to 
try .tq brief ,me on 'th~ things that.w~re ~portant in the Congress. 
So m additIon to bemg a ve~ dIstmgulSned Congressman, and a 
great dean: of our delegation, lie also is a tremendous human being 
who has time for 'people. More time for other people, often, than 
for himself. ," cf; " ' 

.So with that,' I a,mi'going to at this time recognize the chain;p.an 
of oUr full Judiciary Committee, tpe Honorable Peter W. Rodin,o. 

(\ 

') OPENING STATEMENT BY BON. PETER W. RODINO, Jn~, I' 

o , CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL JUDICIAJtY COMMITTEE 
Mr. RoDINO. Thank YOll very much, Mr. Chairman. 0, " , .' D 

It is a privilege to be here with you today for this hearing on'the 
state of th~ctiminal justice system. 1 thank you and our coU~ague 
who represents this congressional district, Frank Guarini, {'PI' pro-
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viding this forum for dialog between Washington and top New 
Jersey criminal justice experts. -

I hope.you ~on't thin~ me ~~-od:es~lfI say that I am proud you 
chose thIS settmg for this heEl.ring. I'm grateful that the Jersey City 
State College established thls institute some 5 years ago-and hon
ored that it bears my namtdt 

Under the conscientious leaqership of John Kennedy, and with 
th~ s.tron!?i su:pport of his small s~fif!' ml;d the faculty of t~e college's 
crImmal Justice department, the mstItute has provided valuable 
technical and r~search assistfdlce to criminal justice agencies in 
the State. The student enrollment in the criminal justice depart
ment attests to the quality of the work of the college. The depart
ment is now one of the largest of the school, and I was most 
pleased to learn that the school soon will offer a master's degree in 
criminal justice. 

I want to mention specifically" its contributions in assisting 
Hu~on. County cpurts in resolving juvenile justice problems and in 
pubhshmg its volumes on sentencing and juYenile justice reform. 
These volumes grew out of conferences on these issues. Subsequent 
conferences on urban tensions and violence and vandalism in our 
schools have also been conducted. I was privileged to participate in 
the latter some 2 years ago. That participation convinced me that 
these conferenc~s. provide valuable insight into the problems we 
face for all partICIpants-for the students, for the community resi
dents, and for the professionals. 

Congressman Hughes, thank you for indulging me, and now let 
me throw a little praise your Vffay. /,~,",." 

'Mr. Chairman, I want to co~mell:a you again today for your tire
less efforts in securing House pas-sage of important le£rislation to 
help our States and cities fight street crime-the Justice

O 

Assistance 
Ac~ of .1981. The overw~elmin~ bipartisan margin by which this 
legISlation was, approved 18 a trIbute to the effediveness of yourself 
and your colleagues on this subcommittee; 

Similar legislation has peen introduced in the Senate, as you 
kno~. I know that you will stress today that fmal passage is an 
uphill battle and that representatives of the criminal justice 
system can playa vital role by impressing upon Senator$ the need 
for providing this, h~lp for local law enforcement. This legislation 
must be enacted. It IS a step the Federal Government must take to 
help in the continuing struggle to make the homes and neighbor
hoods of all our citizens more secure " " " no matter where those 
homes and neighborhoods may be. , 

For those here who might not be familiar with this legislation 
Mr. Cha}rman, let me outline briefly its main features. ' 

The tOtal cost of this program is $170 million, a price tag that 
does not even ~pproach the m.a~t~de of a modest Pentagon cost 
overrun. Of this sum, $150 milhon IS earmarked for a simplified 
scaled-d~~ grants program. T~is mOl~ey would go to States and 
~ommumtles""""on a 50-50 matchmg basIs-for programs designated 
m the law-programs that have proved effective under the Law 
EI?-f~rcement Ass~tance Administration. New Jersey would,get $4 
millIon under this formula grant. The designated programs in
clude: 
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Career criminal prosecutions. This progra.'l1 has been operating 
in 50 cities since 1975. Under it, 11,000 repeat offenders have been 
put in prison. Eighty-eight percen.t of the criminals prosecuted 
under this program have been convIcted and sentenced to an aver-
age of 13 years and 8 !l1onths. ., , . 

Treatment alternatives to street crIme. ThIS program has dIvert
ed thousands of drug-addicted offenders to treatment and has dra-
matically reduced the recidivist rate among this group.. . 

Community anticrime programs, which have drawn J;ugh pr~se 
from local police departments across the country for theIr effective-
ness in making neighborhoods safer and f!10!-,e s~~~le. . . . 

liSting" operations. LEAA-sponsored stmgs m 47 cItIes . smce 
1975 have recovered $300 million in stolen property and Yielded 
9 856 arrests with a 90-percent conviction rate., 
, The remai~ing $20 million will be for disc:r~tionary grant~-with 

no matching requirement-for research, trammg, and techmcal as
sistance and for helping States and cities that face an emergency 
crime situation. . . 

We do not claim this legislation will solve our natIOnal crIme 
problem. But Federal money, modest in sum and carefully target-
ed, can be a useful weapon in our crime-fighting arsenal. . 

Our local police officers know well that the burden .of enforcmg 
the law and administering justice rests largely 0D: th~lr shoulders. 
They are the primary symbol of the law and of Justice. They, are 
the direct bridge between .tl(.e Goy~rnm~nt .an~ the people. They 
represent the Government ill our CltIzens daily hves. 

But they cannot and should not bear alone the burden of con.trol
ling crime. Crime is a national problem. It cu~s across State hnes, 
and its roots reach beyond our shores. It reqUlres Federal dollars, 
and we are kidding the public if we say otherwi~e: If ~e do not p~o
vide help, we will risk further distrust of and disillUSIOnment With 

.. 

our criminal justice system. ,. . 
In conclusion, Mr. Chairman,. let me .than~" yo.u for ar~angmg 

this hearing today, so that we m Washmgton mIgh~ contmue to 
learn of the concerns and needs of those entrusted With the effec
tive operation of our criminal justice system. 

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 

OPENING STATEl\lENT BY HON. WILLIAM J'. HUGHES, CHAIRMAN 
OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON CRIME . 

Mr. HUGJIEs. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .. . 
Chairman Rodino mentioned H.R. 4481, whIch IS tJ:1e JustIce As

sistance Act, which passed the House of Re~resentatIves by a v~te 
of about 4 to 1. So it got a lot of support mthe Congress. It m
volves something that I first learned about wheD:, I went ~o Con
gress a few years ago. I was a prosecuter for about 10 years m Cape 
May County. Out of the old LEAA program came a number of v.ery 
significant programs th~t really w?rked, su~h as the car~er crmu
nal program that ChaumS? Rodmo ID:entIOned; the. stm::g oper
ations which are a very legItImate and Important t~ol for the law 
enfordement community to utilize in ferreting out crlII~e; Pl~OMIS, 
a prosecuter's .police too19 ~ASC, a treatment alternative t~t street 
crime, and nelghborhoo~;, Irlvolvement programs. There ar~, about 

•. kr", .. ,~-:",~:'~;·-~;~:-;~;.<.~~~~\;;;;~!*;~~7}i.:~~~~,. ___ '-,~~ 
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12 or 13 categories that we really tested in the marketplace over a 
period of time and found to be very successful. 

So the Justice Assistance Act took those programs that were 
tested and proven to be effective and put them in a matching pro
gram for State and local units of government on a popUlation and a 
crime rate basis. . 

What we are saying, in essence, to other communities that have 
not tried these innovative programs, is "Look these programs have 
worked in these other jurisdictions and we think you ought to try 
it/' The program is very modestly funded, and has as title II of the 
bill a provision that I think is important. It is what I call "an 
e~~rg~ncy -;esponse me~hanism.'1 It is a procedure whereby a mu
mCIpalIty, hke Jersey City, that fmds that it has a crime problem 
beyond its ability to handle and needs help from the Federal Gov
ern,ment, can, through a formalized procedure, petition for Federal 
asSIStance through the State. The Attorney General must respond 
within 10 days. ' 

We fo.und, for instance, that when the child killings in Atlanta 
were gomg on, and Atlanta made a request for assistance it took 
the Federal Government about 2 months to respond. The'request 
went frOID: desk to desk and no~ody seemed to respond. There was 
no forID:ahzed response m~chanlsm. Yet we have such a response 
mecha~llsm for emergencIes such as droughts and hurricanes. 
There IS a procedure whereby municipalities can get help for prob
lems beyond their ability to handle. So it only makes sense for us 
~o do the same thing with the crime epidemic that is facing Amer
Ica. 

Many .of the programs that are in LEAA and which now are in 
the J~stlCe ASSIstance A;ct actually were implemented by many of 
the WItnesses w~ are gomg ~o hear from today. I, personally, look 
forward to hearmg the testimony of our various panels and wit-
4:8i~s, who I am sure will add a great deal to the record on H.R. 

. Now I,want to recognize the gentleman who has made this hear
mg p~ssible. Re!'lll:y, he made the request. A man who has devel
oped m stature m Just a couple of short terms and is becoming one 
of th~ ou~tand!ng Me~bers of Congress. I have the pleasure of 
wor~ng WIth him day m and day out. He worked with Chairman 
Rodmo and myself .on H.~. 4481. Chairman Rodino was the prime 
spop.sor ?f the Justice ASSIStance Act and Frank Guarini was very 
actIvely mvolved on the floor in securing passage of this legislation. 
In fact, he has been very helpful to us on the entire crime package 
that we .are trying to mo~e through the Congress. So we are indebt
ed to him and I recogmze the Congressman from this area the 
Honorable Frank Guarini, for such statements as he wants to 
make. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. FRANK GUARINI 

, l\ir. GUARINI. Thank you very mUch, Mr. Chairman. I am very 
de~Ighted and proud that two of the most knowledgeable and distin
guIshed Members of the House are here. Two of the people who 
per~aps have the most to do with our efforts toward the most 1m-

// 
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portant domestic issue facing Congress. That is the crime rate in 
our country today. 

I am the junior of the three here today. We have our subcommit
tee chairman, who is Bill Hughes, from Atlantic County, and is the 
chairman of the Subcommittee on Crime. He is the person who 
shepherded and spearheaded the Justice Assistance Act, which we 
will hear more about. Of course, there is no greater man that Bill 
and I can serve with than Peter Rodino, who is the chairman of the 
Judiciary Committee and one of the most respected senior states
men in Washington today. I am very, very proud to be sitting 
along-side these two splendid gentlemen. 

Crime does not know any political boundaries and we all recog
nize the fact that it is, in all the polls, one of the most important 
and foremost subject matters in the minds of people today. People 
al'e afraid. Mraid to walk the streets. They are afraid to go about 
their daily business. There is fear in the communities. In 1981 the 
statistics show that the crime rate has gone up 5 percent in New 
Jersey involving violent crimes, murder, aggravated assault, arson, 
rape, and robberies. This is costing the taxpayers a great deal of 
money, and at the same time, is causing us great problems 
throughout our entire State, particularly in urban areas such as 
Hudson County where people are living in the most dense part of 
our Union. We are very seriously concerned with the thrust of Con
gress and of our State legislature be(2ause this is a problem that, on 
every level, has to be attacked and on every level we should have 
an effective program. 

Of course, I am very happy to see so many citizens here, because 
it is your responsibility as well as the lawmaker's responsibility to 
see that the right kind of programs are implemented. It is impor
tant that you participate as much as you possibly can to see that 
the right thing is done for our society. 

Without saying any more, I want to say that I am very, very 
proud that I have had these two very distinguished gentlemen here 
and the subcommittee staff, Hayden Gregory, . who, is the chief 
counsel, who is here from Washington and also Virginia Sloan, 
who is assistent counsel for the Subcommittee on Crime. 

Last but not least, I would like to thank my good friend, Bill 
Maxwell, who is the President of Jersey City State College, for 
making the Gothic Room and these facilities available, together 
with the institute. 

So thank you very, very much and I imagine the next thing to do 
is to start calling our witnesses, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much, Mr. Guarini. 
Let ine just also just single out John Keeley, who is a member of 

my professional staff in the district and who is ,with me today. 
We have had a slight change. Colonel Pagano haEl a very pressing 

commitment and we promised him that we would get his panel on 
first. So, Colonel Pagano, who is thei superintendent of the Depart
ment of Law and Public Safety, if you will come forward, along 
with Detective Charles Jackson of the Community Relations Unit, 
Jersey City Police Department, and Ms. Catherine Frank, the ex
ecutive administrator of the New Jersey Association of Chiefs of 
Police. 
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Good morning and welcome, Colonel Pagano, Detective Jackson, 
and Ms. Frank. We are delighted to have you with us. Your state
ments, without objection, will be made a part of the record in full 
and you may proceed as you see fit. 

TESTIMONY OF COL. C. L. PAGANO, SR., SUPERINTENDENT, 
, DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY 

Colonel PAGANO. Thank you very much, Congressman Hughes. I 
am not a stranger, really, to either the system or the people that 
are here this morning. 

I do believe that for the purpose of the record and for the pur
pose of my presentation that it will probably not be necessary to 
read into the record the material that I have provided the commit
tee. However, there are several points that I would like to high
light. 

I think that the various states have become accustomed through 
LEAA to Federal support. We have become accustomed to Federal 
fundings. We do not find ourselves in New Jersey, in my view, com
pletely cut off as we see the budget cuts occurring, although there 
is a need, without question, for continuing support, both financial 
and philosophical, moral,and whatever. In my view, our situation 
here in New Jersey, when we look back upon what we have 
learned and what the experience with LEAA is, the considered 
opinion of the people in my organization that, despite some of the 
failings of LEAA around the country, our New Jersey experience 
was excellent. 

We have had a broad range of successful programs in New 
Jersey. In recapping, I think probably the two areas that we can 
point to very quickly are the areas of planning, because we had an 
excellent State law enforcement planning agency; and the kind of 
work.that we have done here in New Jersey in the organized crime 
area. As was said earlier, New Jersey is the densest populated 
State in a densely populated Nation, so' to' speak. But in New 
Jersey we have 7 of the 24 identified organized crime families 
active. In New Jersey, we have been able to do a better job iu<that 
area through LEAA funding and the support coordination of Feder-
al agencies. ' 

I think that those are the two highllghts, really, in the entire 
presentation. When we speak in terms of H.R.4481, and when we 
speak in terms of where we are going to be going in the future, I 
think we have to recognize that, in addition to the funding that we 
have come to enjoy from the Federal system, we need a clear part
nership. I think that this is where we fmd ourselves today with the 
President's seven point program, his mandate to coordinate better 
the activities of the various levels of gGvernment, to address the 
problems of crime in our State. , ,.' 

I do believe that your particular bill, although it is mod~stly 
funded, if it is directed toward the type of programs that have been 
successful ilP: New Jersey, will go a long way toward assisting us. 
But just as important is the need for the Federal system to over
view what is occurring'in the various States and give us the assist
ance that we need, either legislatively or otherwise. This embodied 
in part in the statement that I presented you with today, 

• '.' '" .. >, . -'--"'''''' ''''''~>'''''''''-'',.-.---.• ~- ... , ..... --.•• - .. "·-""·"'''---''''.--c.' .. =-;c:_;'~~;;;~=;;;~''''·'·'·-: '::~-:;;;:;;;;;:;;;;;:;;;;-9~;;;;:7;;;:fi"~~c:-
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I think we have to face the reality of the situation. Part of the 
reality is going to be in the area of budget cutting. Inasmuch as I 
have had the opportunity to assess the accomplishments of our 
State in the past decade, and. I know some of the people in the 
room who will be offering testimony today, I think that you are 
going to find that we, in New Jersey, have been successful and that 
we want to go forward accordingly. 

Our efforts in organized crime and intelligence activities amply 
demonstrates the assistance that has been provided the·New Jersey 
State Police. Both the Organized Crime and Intelligence Bureaus 
were able to develop programs which addressed a need that was 
heretofore unmet because of inadequate funding at the State level. 
For example, we have actively pursued several major investiga
tions, which I have enumerated in the States that I prepared here 
today, and which have had a significant impact on the organized 
crime problem in New Jersey. 

I think the system that was developed in New Jersey over the 
past decade, aided in the main by Federal funds, has gone a long 
way toward permitting persons in positions such as mine to be able 
to say that we have met the challenge of controlling the organized 
crime problem. We have not eradicated it. I do, not think we ever 
will. But I think we have gone a long way toward controlling it. 
This is ever so important in New Jersey because of the change in 
the complexion of the State, because of the problems we have had 
in the past, and because of the development of the casino industry. 

Furthermore, our organized crime intelligence program has, 
without doubt, represented an innovative approach to addressing a 
necessary law enforcement function, while remaining fully. cogni
zant of the sensitivity of protecting civil liberties. That is very im
portant to us. Intelligence gathering is not necessarily. that well ac
cepted anywhere in free soci'ety. But, if properly done, it is an abso
lutely essential part of any law enforcement response to an orga
nized crime problem. 
, It might be appropriate to point out that while we have provided 
a balance of the competing interests, we have found that there is a 
distinct need to modify the existing Freedom of Information Act. 
. Then we get in the kind of conversation that I had with your staff 
people before this hearing today, to the heart of some of the issues 
that are not funding issues, and may be somewhat away from H.R. 
4481. But we have problems in our State that, without question, 
come as a result ~~f dangerous offenders knowing too much about 
the inner workings of the law enforcement system, going bey(\nd 
what should be provided in our view as trial necessary discovery 
and going into areas where they are permitted to develop strategies 
to offset apprehension or prosecution. 

We do look forward to·continued support from the Congress and 
continued support in the revisions of the Freedom of Information 
Act, which I know is ront.roversial, but nonetheless has got to be 
looked at. It is important to l.lS in New Jersey to see H.R. 4481 go 
through as it is important to anyone else in the Nation. But it is 
important to us especially in the kind of sophistication that we 
have developed and the kind of problems that we have, to see the 
philosophical and the moral support occur also in Washington. 

-----~ 
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There have been a number of highly successful 'programs in New 
Jersey that were jointly addressed by Federal and State law en
forcement. We have developed training processes that, without 
question, have been important to us. In fact, today in Sea Girt we 
are beginning a training session on intelligence gathering and in
telligence analysis. The deputy administrator of the New Scotland 
Yard is one of our students. That I think attests not just to the 
quality of training we offer, but also to the kind of training devel
opment that occurred here in New Jersey as a result of funding 
under LEAA. ' 

We have done a lot. Our systems are LEAA supported systems 
and our investigative techniques have been adopted by other 
prestigious law enforcement agencies and they do stand as models 
and they are looked upon as New Jersey innovations. When you 
speak in terms of the current legislation and address it to innova
tive programs, I think you are getting to the heart of what was ac
complished under LEAA, and what should be continued in the 
future. r( 

Project Alpha was a 3 year cooperative investigation with Feder
al authorities and it did impact on cargo theft, labor racketeering, 
gambling, loan sharking, and we arrested and prosecuted 34 upper 
echelon organized crime figures. 

My written presentatioll outlines a number of other projects that 
were successful. But they came about as a result of basic planning, 
basic intelligence gathering(and cooperative effort between the law 
enforcement agencies at every level. That coordination occurred 
within the State police, within the FBI, but within the State of 
New Jersey, where we think we were successful in the projects that 
we uJ:lrlertook. " 

The current State/Federal partnership in planning a coordinated 
attack on the problems of crime in New Jersey is ptirt of President 
Reagan's seven point plan. I think I agree that when we speak in 
terms of crime, and that was a presentation here this morning, 
that it transcends party lines and goes to the basic domestic secu
rity of this Nation. 

In New Jersey we had begun a coordinating committee long 
before it came out as part of the seven point plan presented by the 
President, before the chiefs at New Orleans last year. This is con
tinuing and this is, again, an area where the Federal Government 
has to show leadership across this Nation in bringing together a 
scattered group of law enforcement agencies in many States where 
coordination really does not exist at all. 

I think in closing I can say that we have made great use of the 
Federal funds that were provided us in New Jersey. -More than 
that, we have taken it beyond the dollar and taken it to the philos
ophy of what LEAA was intended to do. We developed and we pre
sented to the legislature and to the administrations during the 
LEAA period a cogent plan of where we should be in the develop
ment of a strategy to overcome crime of every description-orga
nized crime, street crime. New programs that were proven innova- l' 

tive and which were proven beneficial to the people of this State. 
Thank you. 
Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much, Colonel, for a fine state

ment. 

'~" 

9 

[The prepared statement of Colonel Pagano follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF CoL. C. Z. PAGANO, SUPERINTENDENT, NEW JERSEY STATE 
POJ,WE 

SUMMARY 

Gentlemen, ill addition to the submission of my prepared statement, I would like 
to brief what my purpose is here today. 

What I hope to accomplish is to garner continued support for HR 448], as l3ubmit
t?d by Congressman Hughes. 

New Jersey has been the recipient of financial assistance from the United States 
Government in the past, and with it, has embarked on many ;major law enforcement 
efforts. These efforts, which translate into federally funded programs, are ongoing, 
and in the best iqterests of the citizens of our state~ They should not be termmated. 

Our efforts in" organized crime and intelligence activities amply demonstrates 
some of the assistance provided the State Police. In my prepared statement, I hope 
to have shown some of the past worth of federal assistance; to identify some of the 
problem areas facing the law enforcement community in our state today; and to 
urge your support for continuation of federal assistance in the future. 

I have great confidence that, when the facts ar~ presented, Congress will again, as 
it has in the past, make a substantial commitment to the fight against crime. 

Thank you. 

STATEMENT 

First, let me thank the members of this Committee for inviting me to testify on 
behalf of H.R. 4481. With the demise of LEAA, and.the worthwhile programs that 
were innovated and implemented with LEAA monies, I personally believe that the 
Office of Justice Assistance can take advantage of the progress and knowledge 
which the criminal justice community has gained over the past decade. Had it not 
been for the commitment of fiscal and moral resources on the part of the Federal 
Government, it would be questionable whether we could do more with less, given 
the current fiscal constraints. However, we in law enforcement are now in a better 
position to know and understand the limitations IOf the criminal justice sanctions 
and allocate resources accordingly. . 

Inasmuch as I have had the opportunity to thoroughly assess our accomplish
ments in the past decade, I am convinced that had it not been for the fiscal support 
of the Federal Government, any of the programs which have brought about a more 
conducive climate fOr business, government, and ultimately society in New Jersey 
would never have been conceived nevertheless implemented. While the critics of 
LEAA were quick to address its inevitable failings-failings I might add which were 
brought about by unreasonable expectations-I do not share their sentiments. In the 
last decade we have learned not only what doesn't work in our efforts to control 
crime, we in New Jersey have also learned whet does work. Let us briefly review 
our- principal accomplishments, all of which were achieved as a result of LEAA . , 
momes. 

Our efforts in organized crime and intelligence activities amply demonstrates the 
assistance provided this Division. Both the Organized Crime and Intelligence Bu
reaus were able to develop programs which addressed a need that was heretofore 
unmet because of inadequate funding at the State level. For example, we have ac
tively pursued several major investigations (enumerated below) which have had a 
significant impact on organized crime in New Jersey. Furthermore, our organized 
crime intelligence program has without doubt, represented an innovative approach 
to addressing a necessary law enforcement function, while remaining fully cogni
zant of and sensitive to protecting civil liberties. It might be appropriate to point 
out that while we have provided a, balance of these competing interests, we have 
found that there is a distinct need to modify the existing Freedom of Information 
Act to permit a more meaningful exchange of data between State and Federalas:en
cies. For fear of intelligence falling into the hands of offenders, as we recently dem
onstrated in the Joanne Chesimard investi~ation, agen~ies are reluctant to ex
change needed intelligence. Because we were afforded the unique opportunity to re
search this dilemma and adopt appropriate guidelines, our intelligence capa.bilities 
have been rated by a group of independent researchers as the IIsole but outstanding 
exception" among intelligenCe agencies in the llation. 

I should point out that beca.use of the fiscal commitment and faith that LEAA 
placed in the Division of State Police, we acquired in excess of $900,000. These 
monies were used to train personnel in the latest and most sophisticated methods in 
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intelligence analysis; the acquisition of trained and competent intelligence research 
analysts; and the necessary technological equipment (e.g., computers}, to adequately 
undertake rigorous studies and research of organized crime. The F.Rl., Scotland 
Yard, and a number of other Federal, State and local law enforcement agencies 
have benefited from the analytical methods and techniques which were provided to 
the&e agencies through a continuing training program. In fact, New Scotland Yard 
hr.iS adopted in ioto our intelligence program in their existing operations. This recog
rution and success is directly attributed to the financial support to LEAA. 

Project IIAlpha", a three year cooperative investigation with federal authorities 
into cargo theft, labor racketeering, gambling, "loansharking", and corruption, cul
minated in seventy indictments, thirty-four of which were upper-echelon organized 
crime figures. 

Project "Dallas", a joint cooperative operation involving the New Jersey State 
Police, U.S. Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco 'and Firearms, and the U.S. Bureau of Cus
toms targeted organized crime. Stolen property recovered execeeded one million dol
lars in value. 

Project "Omega", a two year investigation into "loansharking", gambling, and 
murder resulting in the conviction of seven organized crime members/associates, 
one of which was subsequently murdered. '. 

Project "Seashore", a joint cooperative operation with federal authorities targeted 
organized crime activities in bookmaking, narcotics trafficking, illegal lottery, loan
sharking,and fencing stolen property. Results, 138 indictments returned bya State Grand Jury. 

In the technical arena we have been able to>expand our laboratory facilities, 
(three regional laboratories) and extend a more"efficient service to the 567 munici-
palities that make up New Jersey. " 

The first phaSe of radio ~ommunications were advanced to provide a State-wide 
Emergency Network eventually linking police communications between all police 
agencies within the State. The second and third phase now presents funding problems; 

Computerized Criminal Histories, Court Disposition RepOrting, and Offender 
Based Transactional Statistics Systems were all developed in cooperation within the 
Bureau of Justice Statistics. 

Arson, one of the most under-reported crimes, has been made an investigative pri
ority and significant prosecutions have resulted. 

Our Fugitive Unit was established in response to the growing number of career 
criminals who have avoided criminal prosecution or escaped from our penal institu
tions. This Unit more recently has become involved in the nationwide search for 
severru "domestic terrori..sts" who w~ra responsible for the savage death of two New 
Jersey State Troopers. The m.onies to initiate this 'program were obtained once 
again, from LEAA. 

As I've poi,nted out, the programs develaped as a result of Federal revenues have 
had an appreciative effect on the quality of law enforcement in New Jersey. Howev
er, we must look toward building into the future, addressing problems that are on 
the horizon. Clearly,our agenc:la in the seventies have provided us with a future and 
direction in the eighties. 

For example, through a Federal State Planning Council comprised of the U.S, At
torney and representatives of the New Jersey Attorney General's Office, new initia
tives are continuously being assessed with an aim toward avoidin~ duplication of 
efforts and chanI;l,f;llling our resources in mutually-effective directions. This co-or
dinated machanism is consistent with the current administration's Presidential 
mandate, and will permit both State and Federal law enforcement to maximize its 
efforts. Surely, the Federal Government can take credit and pride for joining with 
us in our. cooperative effort to address the deI.~1:erious effects of crime. Perhaps it is 
appropriate to quickly review the provisio~6f H.R. 4481, particularly as they affect 
the operations of stat.e government. 
. As I &,SSessthe broad mandates of this Bill, it is clear that "crime in the streets" 

and "crime in the suites" are adequately addressed. Equally important, the victims 
of crime and those who have unfortunately been addicted tQ the ravages of drugs, 
also victims of the professional criminal, have been included in this Bill: I fmd this 
moral commitment on the part of the Federal Government a welcomed addition tQ 
our effects to aid victims of crime. 

The scope of the grants to be awarded .is certainly heartening in that innovative 
programs still remain a part of the vocabulary. Wliereas the criminal justice com
munity must have a degree of flexibility to experiment, this Bill provides monies for 
research and experimentation. For far too long, we in law eforcement have had to 
reJy upon our instinctual feelings as opposed to broad-based empirical research. This 
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provision permits us to continue exploring non-traditional approaches to crime con

tr\thile the monies being requested, $170,000,000 appears to be substantially less 
than the $750,000,000 which was initially requested, it does represent. a healthy 
commitment to criminal justice, given the declining fIscal resources a,;rulable. Pro
vided the Office of Justice Assistance judiciously screens all applicatIOns, we can 
hopefully maximize the monies being provided. , 

I might also indicate at this time my continued support for the Bureau of JustIce 
Statistics, for it represents ~h.e. "~yes and ears" for crimi~~ jus~iceL.admin~~!~~:s 
as they plan crime control mltIatIves. Needless to say, cnm,mal JUS~lce ~dl1lUl~l:I~C~
tors are dependent upon statistics (no less than are economISts) for making c~ltlcal 
policy choices. The Bureau of Justice Statistics offers us the data needed to arnve at 
rational and conceptually-sound policy options.. .'. . . 

In summation, l' am in complete concurrence wlth the BIll; ~hilosophically, It rep
resents a legitimate obligation of government; conceptua~ly It IS sound:, and fIscally, 
it is responsible. The Division of State Police is commItted to ensurmg that the 
intent of the Bill is accomplishe-d when this Bill becomes law. 

Mr. HUGHES. Do I understand correctly that you are the spokes-
man for the panel? .. . 

Colonel PAGANO. Well, I guess knowing the new admlllI~tratlve 
director of the New Jersey chiefs and not real.ly ~owlllg our 
Jersey City detective that well, but I have to be IdentIfied, I sup
pose, as the spokesman. But I do not want to override the young 
lady to my right. 

Mr. HUGHES. Why not do it this way? I do not want to deny any
body the opportunity, in addition to his or her prepared statement, 
to offer such additional comments as they might want to make. 

So, why not start with you, Ms. Frank. Is there somet?ing ~lse 
that you would like to add? We have your statement, which, WIth
out objection, will be made ~ part of the record. Ar~ there some 
other things that you would hke to brIng to our attentIon? 

TESTIMONY Ol~ CATHERINE B. FRANK, EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRA; 
TOR, NEW !JERSEY ASSOCIATION 01.' CHIEFS OF POLICE 

Ms. FRANK. In li~tenin.g to "our opening statements, they kind of 
paralleled with the staterr -, -: tha~ I was about to say. It was 
almost as though you had W.l·Itten It because of your statements. 

I would like to add that I am speaking not only for ~ht:; New 
Jersey State Chiefs Association, the Internat~o~al AsSOCIation of 
the Chiefs of Police but also for the vast maJorIty of all of those 
people who are int~rested in preventing anythi~g that has to do 
wIth massive crline. , . 

I would like to add a few things. . . 
We recognize that we are living in a very fiscal au~ter~ty perIod 

right now. ¥easures to cup the budget .have resulted In sIgmficant 
reductions In 'Federal asSIstance to crIme programs. But we also 
recognize the need, not only in this State, but allover the country, 
for help from the Federal Government. . . . 

As you said, you haye read it. I J1aye very httle to .add to what 
Colonel Pagano said, because he SaId It all for us. I thInk that you 
gentlemen have the knowledge, you know what we need and you 
also will do what you can to help us. " . ' 

Mr, HUGHES. Thank yC;>U'. I might just add t~at we are indebted 
to the New Jersey Assoclatlon of ChIefs of PolIce and to th~ Inter
national Association because they were of tremendous asSIstance, 

. as wasothe Trooper~Association, in our efforts to pass H.R. 4481, 
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and especially by the margin of victory. The vote in favor was over
whelming. 

[The prepared statement of Howard L. Runyon, Jr., follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF HOWARD L. RUNYON, SR'2 CHIEF OF POUCE, PASSAIC 
TOWNSHIP POUCE DEPARTMENT, STIRUNG, N.J. 

~Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the Subcommitwe on Crime, my 
name is Catherine B. Frank, executive administrator of the New Jersey Association 
of Cl>Jefs of Polics and I am making this statement on behalf of Howard L. Runyon, 
Sr., second vice president of the International Association of Chiefs of Police and 
Chief of Police of the Passaic Township Police Department, Stirling, New Jersey. 

I sincerely appreciate the opportunity to appear before this important body. Your 
deliberations are vital to a better way of life for all of us. Hopefully, in some small 
way, my comments will aid your consideration of future improvements in the crimi
nal justice service. 

- I would stress at this juncture that I am not expressing the views of myself or a 
narrow segment of police, but rather the thinking of the vast majority of law-en
forcement officers. 

As evidenced by the wide variety of community and other programs aimed at 
making this a safer nation, it is apparent that there is intense interest in public 
safety. Crime has affected each of us, whether as a victim or indirectly through in
creased costs or reduced personal freedom of movement. 

At the same time, we must recognize that weqve in a period of fiscal austerity. 
Measures to cut the budget have resulted in significant reductions in Federal assist
ance to criminal justice programs. A fiscal year 1981 budget was approved by Con
gress which results in the phase-out of the Law Enforcement Assistance Administra
tion (LEAA), and which restricts funds for the National Institute of Justice (NIJ) 
and the Bureau of Justice Statistics (BJS). The fiscal year 1982 appropriation passed 
by the House of Representatives CH.R. 4169) provided no funds for the LEAA pro
gram. Such cutbacks threaten the operation of our already overburdened criminal 
justice systems. 

As you know, I am the second vice president of the International Association of 
Chiefs of Police and although the AICP was a vocal critic of the LEAA when its 
programs and philosophies made it necessary, we also applaUded its many great suc
cesses. The LEAA support programs against organized crime, major offenders, and 
repeat offenders, wer!,) l,m~xcelled. Its support of Sting operations, "the inte!;rated 
criminal apprehension program (IGAP) and accreditation of law enforcement agen
cies are dynamic examples of projects that can only exist with Federal aid. The law 
enforcement education program (LEEP) and the public safety officers' benefits 
(PSOB) program directly affected street-level police services to the public in a posi
tive and forceful way. 

These programs have saved millions of dollars. In one case alone, the standards 
developed under an equipment technology program supported by LEAA funds, 
helped the U.S. marshal's service buy transceivers for half a million dollars less 
than the GSA catalog price-and, they obtained higher quality radios. Consider life
saving programs of LEAA, and you must immediately be reminded of its K-9 explo
sives-detection project which was directly credited with finding a bomb on a TWA 
jetliner. Their high-speed steel-belted tire warning avoided countless accidents in 
police pursuits. Finally, the Federal agency funded a long overdue study of police 
use of deadly force. , . 

These lessons learned from the LEAA have provided us with the concepts neces
sary to Unproving the criminal justice system. An enormous amount of infOrmation, 
research, systems development, and programmatic entities have been generated by 
LEAA over the last decade. To ensure that these gains are not lost through disper
sion and relocation, a coordinating Federal interface with local governments must 
be maintained. 

While local and State governments bear the fundamental responsibility for deal
ing' with crime and criminals, the Federal Government does have a role to play. 
These are issues which transcend the boundaries of any sin8'le State and which can 
only be addressed at the national level. Similarly, Federal funds and Federal know
how can assist jurisdictions in establishing pro8'rams which have been proven suc
cessful in other areas of the country. 

Furthermore, many States simply lack the resources to obtain important training 
and technical assistance. It is important to remember that over 80 percent of this 
Nation:s police departments are still staffed by less than a do~n sworn officers. 
There IS no way these agencies can conduct their own research and development 
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without Federal assistanGe. The same is true for innovative proj~cts. ~u~h pr.o.ie~ts, 
which hold the promise of significant improvements for the entire crImmal JustIce 
system cannot be explored without help from the Federal level. 

The ~eatest tragedy of the loss of a Federal program relates to the great chal-
lenges that still lie ahead: . 

Illegal drug trafficking and the resultant abuse of drugs. contmue to pl~gue our 
communities. Drugs are directly related to a great proportlOn of street CrIme ~d, 
for the most part, they are introduced to th~ co.mmunlt~ from sources over whIch 
local authority has little or no control. Massl''Ie mterna~IOnal .efforts through every 
channel available, including treaties, must be used to brmg this problem under con-

trol. . 11"'1" th s'ngle The inability of our current system m contro mg Juvem e crIme. IS • e I 
most critical element of recidivism. Influences of poverty, poo: schoohng, Job ?ppor
tunities, and the host of other factors designing our. way 9f hfe leave the. crImmal 
justice system in an inadequate posture for addressmg thIS phenomenon m a con-
certed manner. .. d' 

A single incident of white collar or org~zed CrIme can result m such . Ispropor
tionate economic loss compared to other CrIme, we feel compelled to conSIder them 
with equal priority. Often working from a headquarters far removed from t~e .ac~ual 
location of the incident, this burgeoning problem must be attacked by all dISCIplmes 
of the criminal justice system, as well as allIev~ls Of. g~vernment .. 

There is great inequity in our, system regar~ng Vlctims a~d WItnesses. Too often, 
victims of crime (particularly vlOlent street crI~e) are not Justly treated when t~e 
offender (justly convicted) is released probationa:!1~, or prematurely ~rom. a too br~ef 
prison term. The system unjustly exposes the Vlctim to. further retrI?utlOn by. h~s/ 
her assailant. We must also give greater attention to Wltness protection and VlctIm 
restitution in any consideration of reform. . . . . 

As you can see by the brief accounts of these ISsues, ~ pOSItive Federal mvolve
ment in criminal justice becomes critically apparent. R.emsta~eI"?ent of .Federf1l as-, 
sistance to State and local law enforcement must become a PrIOrIty conSIderatIOn of 
the Congress and the Reagan a~ministrati0.n.. . . n 

There is indeed reason to beheve that this lmp?rtan.t Fe~eral funding IS torthc.o~
ing Representative Hughes is the sponsor of this legislatIOn, H.R. 4481, the CrImI
nal' Justice Assistance Act of 1981. The legislation was recently pas.sed by the ~ous~ 
of Representatives by a m_argin of four to. one, "Yh!ch ~emonstrates l~ strong bIparti
san support. The bill authorizes up to $360 milhon }n Federal asSIstance ,f9r State 
and local anti-crime programs over a two-year perIod. Many of ~he pOSItive ~ro
grams of the LEAA have been retained, ~ut in .a lean and scaled-down operat~o~ 
which does not impose Federal bureaucratic reqUIrements on_S~te and local reCIpI~ 

en~he categories of criminal justice programs which can be funded. u~der this le~s
lation reflect many of the areas addressed here today. The per!IllSslble cfl;tegorIes 
include: (1) Community and pOli?e anticrime l?rograx:nsi (2) Stmg . operf;ltI9ns; (3) 
arson programs' (4) white collar CrIme and organIZed crIme programs, (5) VlctIm/WIt
ness programs; '(6) treatment alternl;\tives to street crime (TASC) .and (7) pro~ecutor 
and police management information systems (PROMIS). Funds wlll also be dIrected 
for training and technical assistance. ,. . 

H.R. 4481 is important for it renew~ th~ Federal Gover~ment;; 'Partne~shlp Wlth 
State and local criminal ju~tice agenCIes 1;'-1 the :fig,ht agamst CrIme. ObVIOusly, 'Yfe 
have a long way to go to brmg rampant CrIme Wlthm controllab1e levels. Mr. Chrur
man and members of the subcommittee, we can e~tabli~h a mO):,e safe and. s~cure 
nation for all our citizens. I look forward to workmg Wlth you toward that ldeal. 

Colonel PAGANO. In addition to my appearin.g, Congl'esaman, as 
the superintendent of the New Jersey State Pohce, because you a~e 
having hearings in our State and you are a N~w ~erse;v ~~bcommlt
tee chairman, I represent the State and P!OVmClal DlVl~lOn of t~e 
International Chiefs. That is a representation of all the ~).o supe~m
tendents.'The -policy statement that we presented to thIS hearmg 
today was cleared at a meeting on S~turday at For~ McClelland, 
Ala. with the President of IACP and wlth those superll?-tendents as-

. sembled from the four regions ()f t~e Nation. 'VI( e are. mtere~ted as 
() a State Police group, the 50 superll~tendents, In seem~ to It that 
the innovative programs of LEAA, Wlth the Federal ass~stance that 
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yv~ provided, is continued. We ·do support it and we have been 
active as a State and provincial group in fostering H.R. 4481. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you. I might just add that Senator Arlen 
Specter of Penn~ylvania is the chairman of the Crime Committee 
on t~e Sena,te sIde that now has the legislation. He has had two 
hearmgs. ~e. hopes to mpve it to markup, but I would encourage 
yourass.oc.latIOl!S to cO?Imunicate with Senator Specter and with 
the admllllStratIOn, which is still opposed to the legislation urging 
them to ~uppo~ t~e lee~slation so we can get it to the P~esident 
before this seSSIOn IS out. 

.OK, ~etective Jackson of the community relations unit Jersey 
CIty PolIce De:partment. We are delighted to have you with' us. Are 
th~re some. thi~gs that you would like to add to your statement? 
WIthout obJection, your prepared statement will be made part of' 
the record. 

TESTIMONY OF DETECTIVE CHARLES JACKSON COMMUNITY 
RELATIONS UNIT, JERSEY CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

Mr. JACKSON. The fact that this hearing is being conducted gives 
suPPl°rt and ~op~ to the law enforcement ofticers that oper-ate at 
my evel, ~hIch IS the street cop. As indicated in my remarks I 
feel that WIth the support of Congress in dealing with some of the 
problems th,at we are confronted with every day, that perhaps 
maybe we will suffer less frustration. . 
.. , One of the things that I want to put emphasis on in my re ort is 
if Conm:ess could ~d us in getting IRS to move into play whereb ' 
they would work WIth our law enforcement agencies in hel in t~ 
take

b 
away the r~so.urces of which most of the criminal ac1ivi1ies 

are ased on. This IS .our concern because in apprehe:r..sions it a 
pea~s that the culprIts are able to tap these resources o~ hafe 
~yaIlable the reso~rces in order to hire the best legal minds availa
bled Because of t~, ~he whole situation gets tangled up in courts 

t
anh as a result of It, It takes 5, 6, maybe 7 years in order to resolve 

em. 
. Just ~he other day on a report on TV, one of the reporters stated 
~ FlorIda they have a backlog of cases down there which would 
~ake at least 9 :years .to resolve. You call imagine> as a police offt .. 
. er, ~e are dealmg WIth these repeaters, repeaters repeaters that 
m gOhlllg through this frustration, that we wonder if therJ is ~eally' 
any ope. 

,SthO tWhis~ hopet~halt Cq!lgre~s will support us in helping us in dealing 
WI par ICU ar SItuatIOn. . 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you. 
[The prepared statement of Detective Jackson follows:] 

PREPAREn STATEMENT OFDDETECTIVE CHARLES J. JACKSON, SR., JERSEY CITY POLlCE 
EPARTMENT, JERSEY CITY, N.J. 

&£ti~;r~lr~~~~~~E~~5!~~ca~,~=~~: :':~h~~!:d~ 
~~~abod~rt:t I:nC%.~! iheir;!~d!e of b!t~~~~:ho~lrm, Congre~, h.eing the law 
tio~tances, where they are challenged to the deg...ee Of~~!g ~ ;~:::~f J~d~:~ 
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A commitment should be V,oiced by Congress lor all t.o understand, that every 
effort will be made.· to provide a means of achieving a quality of life in America, 
seconq to none in the World. 

Major contrihutors to the state of crime we are now experiencing, in my opinion 
are as follows: 

(1) The fact that "God" is legislated out of the lives of our childrarr,- when they 
need to be taught that daily recognition of the Creator is the number one priority. 
"Change the law, don't challenge it". 

(2) The cultural change that has caused us to lose the identity of the family not 
only in the household, but as a nation that. doesn't experience nationalism as an 
expre85ion of consciousness, loyalty and devotion; but only as a holiday from work 
or international competition. I am a American, should be changed to, I am an 
American of descent. Such an action would lead to the adoption of a national 
language, opening mOre avenues of communications, and reducing causes of racism, 
which results in crimes of rioting, lynching, mayhem, murder and property damage; 
also double standards. "Change the law, don't challenge it". 

(3) Major crimes such as drug dealing, child abuse (both physical ,and sexual) and 
others of the same magnitude, should be given the same attention ~lB an act of trea
son. because they are causiu.g personal injury to the sovereignty of the family (in all 
aspects as such).· . . . " 

(4) Armed Forces with their sophisticated techm)logy should be employed to sup
pl",ment those agencies that are undermined in putting a ~top to drugs being traf
ficked into this country. A page from history, should be referred to, as to the use of 
the IRS, which was effective during prohibition days, and was the only means of 
bringing criminals to justice, when they (the criminals) challenged the law. and be
caUSe it was not changed, beat it. 

Profit is the bottom line resulting from.these criminal activities, and is known to 
produce billionaires as well as millionaires. Increasing the number of IRS investi
gating agents, would more than pay for itself a thousand fold, as they work in con
cert with drug enforcement officers to apprehend these culprits. A new weapon will 
have been invented to destroy the image of I'La Dolce Vitali (The Good Life) from 
indulging i.n criminal activities, associated with drugs. 

(5) .Co~~tions that prev~nt economic ~0w:th;, lie at the root of P?vertr, induce 
prostitutlOn controlled by PIDlPS, and movmg illiteracy to a state of epidemlc propor
tion, must be eradicated. Change the law instead of challenging it. 

(6) A whole generation has been born and raised in a drug culture environment. 
The components of ",hich are accepted as a way of life, has taken its toll. and is 
starting its infection on the coming generation. We must re-educate our clilldren, 
spelling out clearly the evils and consequences of a drug related life. This must be 
implanted from head start and reiterated throughout the formative years. 

(7) mustrations, such as changing' the law to implement mandatory sentences as 
punishment. Recognize a fail rate of 98 percent in rehabilitation. Redesign our 
penal institutions to be patterned after our military stockades, and making them a 
place of punishment, including hard labor where applicable. . 

(8) Congress .should increase the amount of monies to continu~ to support those 
social programs which have proven. effective, successful and cost responsive to the 
basic needs of this great Amer.ican sO(,jety. Good behavior should be rewarded. Pre
vention is the answer by ohanging the law, not challenging it; 

Mr. HUGHES. The Chair recognizes the gentleman fl;om New 
Jersey, Hon. Peter Rodino, chairman of the full committee. 

Mr. RODINO. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Colonel, in reviewing the provisions of H.R. 4481, do you find 

that any of' the funded. items do not comport with the kinds of 
needs that you have expressed, involving Federal and State cooper
ation? . 

Colonel PAGANO. Not really: No,J think H.R. 4481 meets the test 
of the discussions that we have had. I think that we have to be re
alistic:. We have elected a President who has come forward. on a 
platform of flScal austerity and change. This may be of different 
meaning to you 'than it is to us at 'our level, but we understand 
that this is the way things are going tp be. Also, in the waning 
years of the Carter administration, there was great question about 
the rti'anner in which LEAA had spent money across the Nation, 
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When 4481 was developed, we watched the development of the 
legislation, we saw the changes that were being made. Ultimately, 
when we supported it, what we felt we were supporting, what we 
know we are supporting is a program that is less in dollar, but 
aimed toward the successful end of the LEAA Federal/State rela
tionship. I think that is what we are speaking about here today. 

Mr. RODINO. Colonel, would you be able to pick up the slack if 
suddenly all Federal assistance were cut off in some of the areas 
where there presently is cooperation between the State and Feder-
al agencies? ._ 

Colonel PAGANO. Well, not all of it. But New Jersey has done a 
lot. We have done a good deal in Bicking up the slack. We have, in 
many of our funded areas, developed programs and then moved 
toward State support of those programs. 

I think the one issue that is of prime importance to me is the 
planning issue. That is where we have traditionally looked for Fed
eral support. There are a couple of other areas still left hanging, so 
to speak, that may want more by way of support in the future. 
Probably one of the more critical as I just checked briefly, would be 
the statewide police emergency network (SPEN) which is in its 
second phase. We did not h~ve enough. We do not have enough by 
way of money at this point(.io take this system to its ultimate goal. 
That goal being the policenlan getting out of the car with a com
municator that repeats through the car to a base station, providing 
security to the officer. 

But the first two phases of SPEN are important. And the first 
two phases of SPEN are successful. That is an area where I do not 
know· specifically that we would have the killd of funds that we 
had originally envisioned to complete the system. 

There are other programs, compute;rized criminal history, that 
have been brought to us as part of a Federal funded scheme, that 
may not, in the long term, be able to be supported successfully. Our 
laboratory system, and we have one of the finest systems in the 
country here, came into being and is now being supported by State 
funds. But we are in dire need there. Because that impacts upon 
the ability of the patrolman on the street who makes the arrest, to 
see that arrest successfully prosecuted through the courts. It im
pacts in many ways on the succel;ls and the credibility of the law 
eJlforcement and criminal justice system in our State. 

Mr. RODiNO. Colonel, if there were a failure on the part of the 
Federal Government to provide any assistance at all, would this 
have a negative impact on our ability to treat the problem of 
crime? 

Colonel PAGANO. Yes, it would, Congressman. 
Mr. RODINO. Considering the fact that New Jersey is the kind of 

a community it is and that, proud as I am of the State, we have 
been, unfortunately, from time to time, singled out as having high 
crime rate, especially in our urbanized communities-do you be
lieve. that it is possible for the State, as such, to be able to support 
the kinds of programs that you feel are essential in combating 
crime. Do. you feel that the State is able to do solely and alone? 
Recognj,zing the fact that all of us agree that at least in part, na
tional problems cliiuse the crime that infects this society. 
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Colonel PAGANO NO'1 do not think the State can do i~ alone' 
either monetarily ~r in' a purely phil~soph~cal se~se. It requb:ck 

thif 
coordi~ation, it requ;res b at~ed fun:l~f' th~ rt~~ld~il:rs P~ich the 
you wIll, for wan; ~r hase air~ad~r i~vested in the federal system. 

Niwa~e~~ll~~ry ~he spokesmar fOJ taxlt~~ik: !~ef~f ti~h~~lJ 
pay a tax the same as anyone e se oes, t h t I con 
come back to my State and my commu~ity ~o sUEtbre:k ~ntom; 

hli~:eI ~~;:yt:;':r!ar&=~n~n:Y:f!J~~!a~f ~heroIT'1;; 
em. . . 

that area. I thiW ii Ii ~~~:t~ thank you, Colonel, for your a~pear" 
Mr. RODINh~' e '. As one who has long applauded the kind of 

ance here t IS mornmg. . t h t ou have had to say. I 
~h~~ks;!u°~n~arh~ ~e~~ ofPfh:c:e~ber: 01 the panel for your ap-
pearance. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. . 
Mr. HUGHES. Thank you, Mr. ChaIrman. M 
The Chair recognizes the gentleman from New Jersey, r. 

Guarini. M Ch' 
rfh~I:;~~I. 6~1~~~?f~~ gi~~ng ~~~h~'be:nefit of your'tthought~ 

. h' t 1 J C!t 1 day or 2 ago'm the press .1 was re 
and bemg ere ouay .. u..... . dex dro ed 3 percent. for non-
ported that the sta~edde crImef ~m 44 to E1000 violent crimes. So 
violent crimes, but a .gone uP.r the violent crimes in our State. 
there was a _ 5-percent mcre~~e ,m m _______ ~ -<-1... _J..-ot cau""ht up in 
Of course,. t~ere are sonknle i:jtafteo~rth~et:r;ibl~ ratalitie~ that we 
those statIstics, as you ow r 

ha~ ~nal~:a~~~'::~~'before that statisti? was announce~, ~ l~r~~~ 
index than is normal for our population as compare 

Stlt:~o~~~d~~i~~t~hether or not there are ~fme cr!~~~~oa~~o~::
s~ggestions. that ~ou jay 'Ne J~!e y~~ ~ath~~g?t°~nd a suggestion. mW oUJo c~:e h:v~P'theWState police presence here in ~udsod 
Cou:ty. If we had barracks here. wherd peoP6e wtUldif~~hlg ~p 
coming from work sOI!lewhere l~ Hu r s~~at~"!:~ ~tmosphere that 
considerably in thwal~tmg any cr~m~ because the presence of the 
would try t~ neutra lze some cnm t nd a first-class county, 
State police m tJ:1de mObs It PhoPl ulaHt:~ ~~uyncKn:ideration been given to 
Would be of conSl era e e p. 

t' ? that type of a sugges Ion. h h d as part of the program 
Colonel PAG~NO. Well, '1es, t ~re the B rne -administration and 

that we experldxpenteddwl~~h d~h:~urrent ~dministration, we have 
that we have lscusse w~ There are a number of 
tri~d the .use of ~oopert lb u~:~o~:~i think, essentially, those 
Plril~~~~~i~:l ~~~bl:~~ :er: overcome in the experiment that we 
p d There are no real jurisdictional problems to overcome. . ? 

h~Mr. GUARINI. Is there a posSib~lit~:sib~ht:~}Ufu~:ti~ah~l~~tiVit~_, 
Colonel PAGANO. I do J?-ot see ~ gful addition of resource to my'-~ 

continuing unless there IS a meanm 



\ 

18 

organization. This is what I told G~vernor Byrne vyhen we c<?mplet
ed the Trenton project and essentIally what we discussed WIth the 
current administration. We are woefully short and I have heard 
the request in the past for a State police presence in this Hudson 
County area. But we are woefully short in tl?-e. I?atrol area, to .the 
point where ove7 the past several years my diVIsIon ~as been PIC~
ing up in are~1 w~ere ~e,! .. roa~s .. hay~ c!eve!oped, WIthout the l"~j 
source that v;.,;! neea ana WltnOUt tne Kma of support that we need, 
because of fiscal constraints. This is something that is to be dis-
cussed further with legislature and -yvith the G?vernor. . 

Mr. GUARINI, Would it be that difficult to Just relocate mto an
other building or garage or headqu~rters a detachment of the State 
police? 

Colonel PAGANO. First you need the detachment. 
Mr. GUARINI. We have 10 percent of the population in Hudson 

County and some of the worst trafficked roads in the State are 
Connelly Avenue and other arteries in the county. 

Colonel PAGANO. That is an argument that takes a good deal of 
discussion. But the issue itself is that the detachment has got to be 
made available. It just cannot over the long term be assumed that 
10 percent, so to speak, of the State police resource ought to be 
sent to Hudson County. Because I think if you really look at the 
total State police resource, you will prf.)bably fmd that there is an 
excess of 10 percent possibly right in this cOUlity. Because the re
source covers a very broad spectrum of criminal justice services, 
patrol being very important. But I do not see with today's re
sources given to my division that we are in a position to send a de
tachment here. 

Mr. GUARINI. Are you short on resources concerning computer 
hardware and equipment? I say that against the background that 
organized crime has the most sophisticated equipment, to always 
stay one step ahead of the police if they can. They have the re
sources, the money and of course, it is their business to have the 
most sophisticated equipment they can buy, whether it is in air
planes or cars or c,omputers or different types of devices. I am sure 
that they are not wanting for funding. I just wonder what you:r: ex: 
pression concerning those kinds of reso1!.rces when you ~Contend 
against organized crime. ~-t 

Colonel PAGANO. There is no length to which the innovative 
thinking of my troopers will not extend. There is no area, including 
the computerization of our organization, that cannot be enhanced. I 
do believe, though, that if you speak in terms of the basic needs of 
the New Jersey State Police, you are speaking in terms of human 
resources. Now, we can talk about guns and we can talk about all 
kinds of equipment, but these can be accomplished without that 
plu(£h difficulty. It is the human resource, the expanding role of the 
State organization, the coordination being accomplished on basic 
systems by the State organization. 

Mr. GUARINI. As far as science and technology, you do not think 
you are lacking at aU from the funding on the State level or Fed.er
allevel? 

Colonel PAGANO. We are in need here of added resOUrce in tech
nology funding, I believe, more than anything from the Federal 
level-in need of human resource funding from the State level. 

t ., 
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Mr. GUARINI. Let me ask you. We plan. re!p0nal pl!1nning on 
highways and regional planning on populatlOn In the trlstate. area 
of New York, New Jersey, and Connecticut. Do we do. any trIstate 
planning on c.rime ~ in the <?t~er aspects of our SOCIety? And do 
we do it suffiCIently m your opmIOn? . . 

Colonel PAGANO. There are elemep.ts of tris~ate coordmatIOn. 
There are elements of tristate operatIonal plannmg and, actually, 
operational implementation. . 

Mr. GUARINI. Now, I say this becB:~se there .is an Immense 
amount of spillover of organized famlhes and people that flow 
across State lines. . . . ht 

Colonel PAGANO. WeU, th-at, through better coordm~tIOn. rig. 
now in the Federal syst~m. "Probably a~ excelle';lt case m pomt lS, 
as you mentioned we dId suffer a terrible loss In the New Jersey 
State Police last December. We have looked to the basic coordinat
ing mechan!sm t~at was ~eveloI?ed during the course of the LEAA 
years to asSISt us m resolVIng thIS case. We have an excellent work
ing relationship ongoing with the Bureau because we found very 
shortly after the death of our trooper that the peq>etrators had 
been living in Pennsylvania. That has extended up lt~to the ~ew 
England area with the FBI. It has involved not just casual relation
ships between the New England Stat~ Police Association~, but. a 
very formal and structured relationshIp, a NESPAC relatIOnshIp, 
that is federally funded up there. Although we have not ap~re
hended these people, we are a long . way toward understandll~g 
them and getting down toaPI?rehending. I would hope that WIll 
occur without too much more difficulty. . 

But without the Federal assistance passed, without the coordma
tion that was encouraged and mandated by the Federal ~yste!"il, we 
could not have developed what we h~.ve developed at thIS pomton 
that case. . . h th . d I 

Mr. GUARINI. I just have olie last questIOn, WIt e In u gence 
of my colleagues. We. are 567 municip~ities and of course, ~ach of 
them has its own pohce force, whether It be volunteer or paId, .and 
we have our State police and we have county .police, and we have 
specialized kinds of police. Now, I know .the~e lS a gre!!,t deal o~~~ 
operation between each of these organIzatIOns. But 1", there "".ur 

quate coordination in responsibilities that we should have where 
we could put the fmger on one particular person in ~he Stat~ and 
say that crime, if there is not an adequate ~rogram, if there lS not 
adequate leadership, we could s~y tl?-at partIcular person wo~ld ~e_ 
responsible for what is happenI?g .1l~ the State? ;N~~ pave It dif
fused over hundreds of different llldlVIdual responSIbilItIes? 

Colonel PAGANO. Mr. Guarini, I think I I1;1e~tio~~d. ~efore that I 
am general chairman of the Stat~ and proVIn~Ial dIVISIon of ~CP. 
As such I interact on a daily basIS, almost, WIth other superInten
dents. We do have such an individual in the New Jersey system. 
The New Jersey system coordinates the efforts of prosecu~ors and 
police, although, from time to time, admittedly,. ~e. have diffiG~lt~. 
But the New Jersey system coordinates the actIVItIes. of the. c rlmI
nal justice systems through an attorne~ general. Regardless of 
policy or regardless of pB:rt~ change~ whICh may oc.cur, the N~w 
Jersey system and the Crlmmal JustIce Act does deSIgnate one In
dividual as the man who is the leader. 

.. 
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I think that with the attorneys general that I have worked with, 
Highland, Degnan, and DiZali, and now, Irwin Kimmelman, we 
have had an effective voice in coordination. I think that there is a 
voice that, from time to time, may become controversial, but the 
bottom line is that when there are problems to be faced and prob
lems to be resolved, we have a strong voice. 

Mr. GUARINI. But it is sufficient that he has civil matters to 
attend to, like riparian rights, and many other duties, where he 
gives only part of his energies to the crime issues. Not all of them, 
because he has a myriad of different types of responsibilities as at
torney general. 

Colonel PAGANO. 'rhat may be true. It is a very responsible job. 
But he discharges his civil duties through the division of law, he 
discharges his criminal justice through the division of criminal jus
tice, his law enforcement through me. He has a close association 
with the New Jersey Chiefs and the IACP, as witnessed by Cathy 
representing the president of the association here today. But from 
time,. to time his activities are such tl;:~t he reaches right down into 
the local level and works with the local chiefs on local problems 
and recognizes local problems from time to time and calls those 
chiefs into Trenton and says to them--or the act provides that at 
any point in time when a problem is to be resolved that the chief 
must respond to the attorney general. He does. have the capacity 
and he does, on many occasions, call a local chief in on a specific 
local problem and bring him to task for having that problem re-
solved. .. 

So I think the New Jersey system is the best in this Natiorl~ 
without question. I think that is a study that is well recognized and 
well admitted. 

Mr. GUAIUNI. Thank you most kindly. 
Ms. FRANK. May I add one thing, colonel? . 
You asked about the liaison between working over State lines. I 

represent the New Jersey Chiefs Association. However, we have 
daily liaison with the Pennsylvania Chiefs Association; and New 
York, and also the New England, with regular meetings where our 
chiefs do meet with their chiefs and we do work very closely in the 
Northeast part of this country, working together. . 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much. I just have a couple of ques
tions. 

First, let me just commend all three of you panelists for excel
lent statements. 

Colonel, on page 6 of your statement you make a reference to the 
importance of the Bureau of Justice statistics. 

Colonel PAGANO. Absolutely., 
Mr. HUGHES. I think that inherent in that statement is your 

belief, and correct me if I ,am wrong, that one of the leadership 
roles that the Federal Government can play is to try to develop , 
through the National Institute of Justice, through research, new 
and innovative ways of handling on a targeted basis the crime 
pr~blem throughout the country and testing those techniques in 
the marketplace. Am I correct? 

Colonel PAGANO. That is correct, and you are hitting at the 
heart. I do not know if you bugged us on Saturday or not, Congress
man, but that is the heart of the discussion that we had in Ala-
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bama on Saturday. That is the real concern right today of the 
cHiefs of this Nation. What is going on with OJA? Is OJA a likely 
successor of the system past? But our real concern right now is 
that the planning that is being done by NIJ is a practical planning 
exercise. NIJ, because of very limited resources, moved away from 
the sociological planning and research that has gone in the past. 
How do we practically solve a given problem? 

As important as anything in the entire OJA's philosophy to me 
and to my counterparts, however, is that BJS system. We need sta
tistics, we need to be able to intelligently look at the problems of 
law enforcement and the criminal justice system and we cannot do 
it unless some place in this Nation they bring together all the ma
terial that is available. We could not live today in an economic 
sense without the Bureau of Labor Statistics. We need the same 
thing and it has got to be emphasized as part of OJA's in the jus-
tice area. ' 

Mr. HUGHES: Well, I do not have to tell you that one of the great 
concerns that we have is that we have no program right now to 
test the research that is coming from the National Institute of Jus
tice and other nonprofit organizations-to test them in the market
place. We found that career criminal and TASC and the other pro
grams that have been found to be successfl!l had to be tested in the 
marketplace before we found out what really did work. So we have 
a major blind spot. H.R. 4481 is targeted to solve that blind spot. 

Colonel PAGANO. Weare well aware of that, 
Mr. HUGHES. So we could not agree with you more. In fact, all of 

the law enforcement agencies that I am aware of, support H.R. 
4481, for that and for other reasons-the National District Attor
neys Association, the National Association of Attorneys Genera.l, 
the Chiefs Association-law enforcement through the country IS 
behind the bill for that reason among others. 

Let me just ask you a couple of more questions. What type of co
operation are you receiving from the various Federal agencies, the 
FBI, and DEA, and the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms, 
the Immigration and Naturalization Service, and the other Federal 
agencies? 

Colonel PAGANO. We have an excellent cooperative effort going 
on here in New Jersey. We have voiced our concern in the past, 
during the administration of Bob Del Tuffo, that there was a need 
for a better working relationship. I think this has been done effec
tively.1 think it is going to be-tione in a much more structured way 
under the mandate of the President. Because the President made 
this part of his seven-point plan. 

The program that has been developed under the leadership of At
torney General Kimmelman aIJi'~ Hunt Du~ont is a .structured pro
gram of sorts, because the mandate reqmres a wrItten structure. 
But loose enough and informal enough to let the personalities of 
the leadership in the various agencies emerge, including the local 
chief, which is very important to the continuous education as a rep
resentative, including allof the Federal agencies. Possibly this is a 
statement that ought to be made by Hunt DuMont or Attorney 

, General Kimmelman. The plan is to orient the entire effort toward 
problem solving. Developing for each meeting a given problem and 
let all the personalities in the justice system ,at every level in the 

11-460 0 - 84 - 4 

.. 
-~-'------"'--- - ..... ~ - --



r 
I 

I 

I 

" 
.. _, 

22 

State interact on those problems. And I think that is going to be a 
successful program. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you. You know, during the years that I was 
involved in law enforcement I found th~t the task force operations 
were the most successful in getting that kind of coordination. We 
found with the DEA, the Drug Enforcement task force operations, 
the BATF task force operations, that by bringing the expertise of 
the agencies together to bear on one problem, we maximized that 
effort. Would you agree with that? That that is what we have got 
to look for more of? 

For instance, the 18 DEA task forces around the country have 
been inordinately successful. The Philadelphia task force is a good 
example of that. 

Colonel PAGANO. That is correct. This is why the chiefs and the 
superintendents have been so astute in examining the reorganiza
tions at the Federal level. We have been able to meet with the At
torney General. I have been part of the meetings myself. We have 
been able to meet with Mr. Meese in the White House and make 
our voices heard. Because we do not want DEA merged with FBI 
and lost. The merger that is occurring now is businesslike and 
meaningful. But DEA and the DEA effort will not be lost. 

We were concerned about BATF. The chiefs of this Nation, for 
the first time in history, 3 years ago, developed a Firearms and 
Weapons Subcommittee because we had never before faced up to 
the problem of explosives, of firearms control. We are sensitive to 
the divergent opinions on gun control. But we were very sensitive 
to what appeared to be an effort to scuttle BATF. That is why we 
made our voices heard and that is why we are satisfied with the 
reorganization that is taking place now. The placing of BATF in 
the Secret Service. . 

We are concerned that that task force effort draw together all 
the various disciplines, not losing sight of. the needs of the individ
uals or of the agencies, or the systems involved. But in keeping to
gether that task force kind of theory. 
. Mr. HUGHES. Well, I hate to be the bearer of sad tidings, but 

BATF is in serious difficulty right now, because that transfer to 
Secret Service is being held up on the Senate side. That agency is 
virtually immobilized right now. We just passed an urgent supple
m(:ntal this past week that restored some funding, but there is still 
a major movement to dismantle the agency. In fad, there are 1,600 
RIF notices, reduction-in-force notices, out now. 

So, I know how important BATF and its operations are to the 
State and local units of government. 

Colonel PAGANO. Let me say this, Mr. Hughes. I am aware of 
that holdup. I am as cognizant as any other chief of what is occur
ring. I.am not cognizant of all the underpinnings and reasonings 
for the holdup. But I know as a chief that given one investigation, ' 
the one that I referred to before, the enforcement loss of one of our 
troopers, we would not be where we are now if it were not for the 
cQoperation of the. BATF people and the BATF system. Because it 
is not just'the people in some cases. It is the system in place that 
gives you the investigative leads that you peed to pursues gang of 
people that eluded apprehension since 1975 and gone on with their 
robbing and their murdering. 

.\; .... « , 

u 

23 

I think it is important that that in itself is just as important as 
the funding that comes our way. Keeping that Federal system a 
viable system so that it can interact with State and with local 
police agencies. There are parts of that system that probably ought 
to be examined and maybe culled out. But that does not mean you 
throw the whole thing away. That is wrong. That is just absolutely 
wrong. 

Mr. HUGHES. I could not agree with you more. ,. 
Well, let me just thank all three members of the panel. I con

gratulate you on your statements. You have been most helpful and 
we are grateful. Thank you so much. 

Our next Wit~ess is the Honorable Joseph LeFante, a former col
league of ours In the Congress. In fact, he served as a Representa
tive of New Jersey's 14th Congressional District in my second term 
in the Congress. I was delighted to be his colleague. Mter· that he 
served as commissioner of the New Jersey Department of Com~u
nity Affairs. 

We are delighted to have you with us. You may proceed as you 
~~ . 
TESTIMONY OF JOSEPH LeFANTE, FORMER MEM8ER OF CON" 

GRESS, 14TH CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT; FORMER COMMIS
SIONER OF NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AF-
FAIRS . 

. Mr. LEFANTE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First of all, I would 
like to thank you for the opportunity to appear here this morning. 
It. is. almost like old ti~es to be with you again. I think that the 
mISSIon that we are trymg to accomplish here today is a most· seri-
ous one. . 
I~. view of the fact that the record will show my statement in its 

entIrety and the hour is growing late, I would like· to jump atound 
a little bit, if I may. I will only take a few minutes, I promise you. 

Most folks that we talk to,. particularly in the urban areas, know 
what the problems are and they identify with them and they relate 
to them. In many cases, we refer to the Constitution of the United 
States as it presently exists, whereby our Founding Fathers, when 
tl}~y ~ote the Co~stitution, established distinct Federal responsi
bilIty fOr the workings of Government. The bulk of crime control 
and punishment was . given to the local authorities. The Federal 
Government stays out of these areas of professional jurisdiction as 
manda~ed by the Constitution. You are going to hear from many 
profeSSIOnals today who have developed expertise in the various 
areas of law enforcement and the criminal justice system. I will not 
touch upon that, because I am not the expert in that field. 

But let me tell you, there are areas where the Federal Govern
ment can help local authorities battle violent crime. First of all 
they can begin by nipping a good portion of this crime in the bud 
by giving youth the training necessary to get a decent job and stay 
out of trouble. 

. When ~ served as the' cotl1miss~oner of the department of commu
nIty affrurs, on~ of t.he last dutIes I 'performed before leaving the 
office was meetm~ WIth urban mayors. At that time, they displayed 
to me a very serIOUS and priority concern of youth and crime in 
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their cities this summer. They talked about government coming up 
with all kinds of dollars to enforce law, apprehend, indict, punish, 
send away. But they talked also about a program that New Jersey 
has received national awards on. It is called safe and clean streets. 
It is funded completely out of State dollars in the State budget. The 
commissioner of the depru.;tment of community affairs, which I was 
privileged to serve as, had the unique ability, because I also served 
on the SLEP A Commission, the State Law Enforcement Planning 
Association. As a commissioner on SLEP A and as a commissioner 
of the department of community affairs, with these discretionary 
funds, we were able to channel those dollars into the areas where 
they were needed. Those funds went for walking patrolmen in high 
crime areas. We had to have a visibility. We could not, in an auto
mobile, patrol streets. We needed walking patrolmen in the high 
crime areas. 

Usually, the rule of thumb was the first couple of months there 
was a drop of about 7 percent in the violent crime as reported. 
Through the summertime, in some areas, it was cut 50 percent be
cause of his high visibility. 

So I think, Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, that the severe cut
backs , of our summer youth unemployment program and its 
planned elimination in 1983 shows that this scarcity of jobs and 
training opportunities is a conscious policy embraced by the 
present administration in Washington, D.C., and it is a policy that 
will be disastrous for our cities. 

Now, if we take a look at the numbers and rcan say at the very 
least that they are shocking. Twenty-two percent of America's 
youth are unemployed and one-half of American minority youth 
cannot get a job. In this very area we sit this morning, in Jersey 
City, it is reported that a 75-percent rate of unemployment exists 
among the minority youth. The number of unemployed juveniles is 
even going to go higher this summer. 

There are good kids and there are bad kids. Many of the young 
adults will not be able to frnd a job this summer. There is just not 
going to pe any available. So what d.oes a bored youngster do to 
keep himself occupied? Most of us know that they wind up getting 
involved with mischief. 0 

So we do need programs like the summer youth employment pro
gram at full funding level. It will keep our young people out of 
trouble. We will save money in the long run. One, with tax dollars 
returned to the economy. Two, training and education equal jobs in 
the future. Three, kids learn self-discipline and responsibility. And 
fourth, I t.hink a good job keeps a kid out of trouble. 

Furthermore, thoughtful people are coming up with ideas for 
sound programs designed to prevent crimes before they happen. A 
Juvenile Crisis Counseling Center is one such idea. ,.) 

So, gentlemen, I think that if we took the figure that exists 
today. For example, what is the good of sending a kid to jail, spend
ing $20,000 a year to keep him there, when for only a few dollars 
he can be cqunseled, trained for a job, and then given a job. I tell 
you, I would rather spend those few dollars now and save untold 
dollars an9. misery and unnecessarY') grief for the victims of crime 
later. 
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There is one bill recently passed by the House of Representatives 
now under consideration by the U.S. Senate, the Justice Assistance 
Act. It was sponf!~red by our good friend here, Congressman 
Hughes, and he IIy~\'e reference to where it is bogged down over in 
the Senate. I thiri~ )hat it gives our local authorities the means of 
combating the. meHace of criF,Ile by ~ipping crime in the bud 
through educatIon, through commumty rnvolvement, and with ade
quate resources to our law enforcement officials. So, if I were to, off 
the top of my head, make a suggestion here today and I volunteer 
my services in any way that I can be of service, I think we would 
have to direct ourselves immediately to making sure that that 
summer youth unemployment program budget is funded at the full 

. . level. Then we can go on to our duties at H.n. 4481 through the 
process as it exists. 

\-r 

Other than that, gentlemen, I will leave the other law enforce
ment areas to the experts. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much, Joe. 
The gentleman from New Jersey, chairman of the full commit-

tee. ' 
. Mr. RODINO. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I merely 

want to thank my good friend and former colleague, Joseph Le
Fante, for his continued interest, as a concerned citizen, in this 
problem. I think he touches on an area that certainly has been of 
tremendous concern to all of us. That is the fact that in our cur
rent economic climate, with high unemployment, especially preva
lent among minority g:roups and those in urbanized communities, 
where the lack of these programs that you make mention of cer
tainly makes all of this so prevalent. Therefore, in pure logic, con
tribute to the opportunities to commit crime, to engage in the traf
ficking of illicit drugs, to do. those things that we are seeking to 
prevent. I think you have hit on a very important area. What we 
are doing now is presenting to you and to this community, to the 
Congress, the evidence that is being presented by local experts and 
other people who are concerned about the crime problem. We want 
to, of course, meet head on the growing crime rate through a 
medium such as this, the Justice Assistance Act,which is a very 
modest but effective piece of legislation. : 

But unfortunately, I must say---and I do not say this in a parti
san manner-unfortunately, while the crime rate continues to in
~rease ~d unemployment continues t9 increase, we are doing noth
rng on eIther score. We are cutting out law enforcement assistance. 
We are not doing anything to train people and prepare them for 
what is going to happen to them. 

So I applaud you. I remember too, Joe, and I am sure that you do 
too, the many .. times that you, as a Member of the Congress, .came 
to me, deploring the lack of action on the part of the Congress and 
on the part of eyen the previous administration in doing the neces
sary things to effectively deal with what I consider. to be a plague 
on our society. I appreciate your taking the time, as a concerned. 
citizen, to come here and to address this very important question. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. LEFANTE. Thank you.' . 
Mr. HUGHES. The gentleman from New Jersey, Mr. Guarini. 

i 
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Mr. GUARINI. Thank you very much, Joe. I think that Y0ll: have 
hit on a jugular that I have seen in staten:ents by .Chrurman 
Rodino for so many years in the past concernmg ~he hIgh unel!l
ployment of minority youth and the proble:r,n that It ha,s caus~d I!l 
our country today, Of course, that prob!~m 18 exacerbatmg whlle It 

increases. . . lit 
I deplore the fact that we do not have a natlona emp oymen 

program for our youth. In the days of Roosevelt we had the CCC, 
which did an excellent job. Today, we are taking away stude:r;tt 
loans. Today we are taking away summer programs from the c~il
dren. We are taking away meals in the schools. Weare t.ak.ing 
away programs that have taken long numbers of years to bulld up 
to where they are today. . 

Now I am particularly concerned about the fact that nelghbo~
hood c~ime the fact that senior citizens cannot walk the streets 18 
going to" b~ deeply affected. 'Fhe fact that mobs of people in our 
high schools and eL.,ewhere ill our school system are the. young 
people who will be hanging around on the ~treet corners' dUl'mg the 
summertime where mischief starts. That IS where the drug prob
lem continues. That is where robberies start. All these energies 
that are pent up have no way of expending themselves, other th~ 
putting them into something that may turn out to be very detrI
mental to the welfare of our community. 

There is fear in our town, in our communities. A great deal of 
fear. People used to talk about how they could go o~t at night, how 
they could go to movies, how they c<?uld go to dinner, ho:w t~ey 
could walk the streets during the daytlme. They are locked m Wlth 
many locks on the doors. 

I think that one of the most important issues-that if we are 
going to address the crime problem, particularly in the streets and 
the neighbo:r;hoods-is to fmd a ~ati~n~ youth program, a program 
particularly addressed to our mmorltles, .,but also addressed. to all 
our young people. 'J 

I thank you for bringing this to our attention. 
. Mr. LEFANTE. I agree with you, Congressman. . 

Mr. HUGHES. I, too, want to join my colleagues in congratulatmg 
you. I think that any time you talk about crime you have to look at 
the root causes of crime. And unemployment, idleness, drug-related 
problems, lack of educational opportunities, lack of hope, are all as-
pects of the root cause of crime. . 

I might say that Chief Justice Robert Wilentz could not be WIth 
us today, because he has a schedule conflict this morning. But he 
wanted to be with us .and he submitted a'very fme statement 
which, without objection, I am going ~ make a pa~t of the ~ecord. 
He points out on the third pa.ge of h18 stateme~t Just how unp~r
tant it is that we look at the probable causes of crlme, and he sm
gles out poverty, unemployment, poor education, broken families, 
which we all know contribute to the overall problem. 

So I commend my former colleague for a very fine statement and 
we are grateful to you for attending this hearing., 

Mr. LEFANTE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. In parting I would like 
to make one suggestion, if I may, that perhaps maybe ths commit
tee would make a special effort to contact some of the mayors of 
our large urban cities, not only in Ne'Y Jersey, but throughout the 

. , .\« ...... ! 

27 

Nation. Perhaps maybe you could strengthen the position for the 
budget support when the time comes to keep that youth summer 
employment program in that budget. I think that is the key to an 
immediate step to future involvement .. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much. I know that all three of us 
! support the Job Corps program for summer youth. 

Mr. LEF ANTE. Thank you. 
Mr. HUGHES. So we join in yo.ur hope. 
Onr next panel'consis~ of Mr. Leonard Arnold, chairman of the 

criminal law section of the New Jersey State Bar and. Mr. Harold 
Ruvoldt, prosecutor of Hudson County. 

Gentlemen, we are happy to have you with us. 
Mr. ARNOLD. Good morni1}f.';) I do not see Prosecutor Ruvoldt 

here. ( .. -
Mr. HUGHES. Well, he will be joining us, I am sure. We are de

lighted to have you with us, Mr. Arnold. We have your statement 
which, without objection, will be made a part of the record in full. 
You may proceed as you see fit. 

TESTIMONY OF LEONARD ARNOLD, CHAIRMAN, CRIMINAL LAW 
SECTION, NEW JERSEY STATE BAR 

Mr. ARNOLD. Thank you, Congressman. We believe, baSed on our 
trial experience, that the public, by and large, is concerned with 
street crime and burglary. We understand that there is going to be 
very little money available, either through this bill or elsewhere. 

We suggest that one of the ways of attacking the,:,problem is by 
attacking the drug problem, drug trafficking, and the importation 
of drugs, mainly through Florida into the State. 

We suggest, and certainly you are very well aware of it, that the 
easy availability of handguns creates some very serious law en
forcement problems in this State. 

We also suggest that .some long range, multistate planning is in 
order. Maybe that has been neglected. Let me give you an example. 

Where do you suppose, gentleman, the jewelry that is stolen in 
Somerset and Hunterdon Counties today during the course of home 
burglaries is tonight? Well, I can tell you, based on my experience, 
that it is in New York City tonight and it has·been sold at a.frac
tion of its cost to what are called ({second-hand jewelers," ostensi
bly and quite legitimately licensed in the .city of New York. It is 
sold at a fraction of its value. It is extremely difficult to trace, and 
as a result, .the easy sale of jewelry stolen throughout this 'State in 
New York City and in Philadelphia makes it very attractive to 
commit home burglaries. 

Now, you might consider, in terms of long range planning, how 
to go about solving that problem. We think that that is an area 
where the Federal Government, without a tremendous expenditure 
of funds, could well coordinate the activities of a number of States 
that are involved. 

For "example; I have spoken with t4e prosecutors from South 
Jersey and they are convinced that, and they know from their ex
periences, that jewelry stolen in home burglaries in South Jersey 
will be in Philadelphia tonight and sold for a fractjon of its value 
and resold to the general public at a fair markup. . 

___ ~...l __ 
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The laws of these States are completely diffE:rejJt. For ~da~~:t 
ip ~e~ ~i~eh!iosb~ok~~ff~/48e~!u;~wI~N~! t o~k~~~e~~ra1l1 
:~~al!~, 14 days. I do not know what it is in PhiladelphIa, SInce 
am not concerned there. f' h t nsid-

But It seems to us that there are a num~er. 0 areas t a., co . ht 
ering the fa:ct that youfiarkin~ go~ngt tOth~avS~:ItT~!~~~~laobed~n~ 
attack one drug traf IC gInO IS . d I ts 
through Feder.al age~ts alone: If J:o~ do t~at~g~:h!:s i!~x~;:!e-
alone, you aVOId the mtersel'Vl.ce r~v ,ry . ' 
ly expensive and not very prhoduct!ve. bl We recognize there are 

Two you. have to attack t e gun pro em. h 1 al 
some ~ery serious political r:eal~t~es h.ere

h
, but h~V~{t e ei:' I~~rio~~ 

recognize .t;hat the easy av:ailability of c eap un guns, 
threat to the citizens of thlS State. . h' h . ht 

Finally we suggest to you some multistate plan~mg.w lC mIg: 
not be e~pensive at all, would require some coord~atlon, some In-
novative thinking and mi~thht be veIry

d
· , ver,l pr~:~~I~:ke the time of 

We fIled a statement WI you. 0 no w . h t 
this committee in an unnecessary way. I will be very, appy 0 

ansrrh':r c~~~:~~n~f our group, the State bar asS?ciB;tion, is that we 
think there is an awful lot of room for n~w thinking,. App.arently, 
with limitea. availability of funds, the reality c:f that sltu!itl<?n may 
be all you have left to deal with; palI}ely, gettkil~gdnef~~~g, at
tracting people who are capable of domg that non g. 

Mr HUGHES Thank you very much, Mr. Arnold. . 
[The 'summ~ry statement of the New Jersey State Bar ASSOCI-

ation follows:], 
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF NEW JERSEY STATE BAR AssOCIATION 

We are honored blT ~our invitation to t;estifyat this.h~arUlg. ,In °W~i~:d!~~~ 

~~e:bee~~;[lir~dd¥~~~~?i;~~~~~~r~~l!;~li~~i::: ::ta~:i:btl~ 
forts pnmar Y reo . tate t ortation of stolen Jewelry. 

of*~~::~,a;r~di~~g ~nl~d~1x~ri;fe~i~~~~~t~fc~~~0~aOf:' ~~~:l~ 
citizens are prImarily concerne . a ou VIO «:n , . di ted upon our experi-
of private residen,ces .. Further~t':,~~!~I~f~h:~ri~i~ai's ~eed for ~~neyto pur-
ellce, that such crone 18 comn;: . es so dangerous is the easy availabilIty of hand-
cgu'h:e ~:~ff~tof:::SF~u.d~ralGovernment should be 8;imed at lcom~atinlg drugs 

. d' h rt' th' t rstate transportation of sto en Jewe ry. 
and handguns, an . In t wa Ing e In e th' gs that individual states simply 

In the war agamst drugs, there are some In . d N rth C r a to 
cannot do. New Jersey, fo~ ,instance, c;nJe~e~or:n!~~r~e:o~[ate ~th tl~:g~ern-
~~~~lo~ro~~ia9:0 h~{; ~~e~~~fi~. The Frderal Government, however, can do 

these kinds of things. . 'th fi' er ments or 
Specifically, the Federal Governme~t can ne~otlate W1 Orelgn.~ th Feder-

even impose sanctions designed to aC~leve particulatsr gd°al~. Ddm~si~cilil:.te the flow 
I Government could encourage multi-state compac . eSlgne 

Sf • fi t'on Indeed an interstate narcotics-pipeline, law enforcement a,geney 
~ould ~~:aU;d by th~ Federal Gove~nment an~ given the jO~allf sUP~limenth~ h: 
enhancing state enforcement. Such an agency might be espeCl y use u on a . Ig 
way such as Interstate 95. .. fi·d 1 tate r It is A second area which should concern the Congres~ 18 e era:s coopera Ion. fl 
no secret that many state, law enforcement agenCIes complaIn of the on~way ow 
of information when the United States Attorney's Office and sita

l 
kte agenil~t~u.rsuf 

the same leads. (The United States Attorney's Offices ~e we - nc:>wn or ell' o. 
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demanding', but not releasing, information.) This area is one where change could be 
fast, meaningful, and cheap. ;-;; 

Similarly, the Federal Government can reduce the availability of handguns by 
doing things beyond the power of the states. Any nationwide ban of the sale or m.1'ln
ufa:.:ture of handguns (except for law enforcement purposes) is peculiarly within the 
province of the Congress. Should such a necessary step be politically impractical, it 
is only the Fed~ral Government that can take smaller steps: a ban on the importa
tion of handgUns or parts, reinforced by trade or other sanctions if necessary, or at 
the very least, a comprehensive, nationwide registration and tracing scheme. 

A major problem in New Jersey is the burglary of private residences. 'rhese bur
glaries are committed to obtain cash and jewelry. The jewelr.r is then brought to 
either New York City or Philadelphia and sold for a fraction of its value to "sec6nd
hand jewelers." The second-hand jewelry laws in both these states and relevant fed
eral law should be studied so that these laws could be "tightened" to make it much 
easier to identify the seUer a'1d to trace the jewelry. If it were difficult to sell stolen 
jewelry in New York and Philadephia, there would be little reason to commit burg-
laries at private residences in New Jersey. . 

In our view, these steps woul.d be valuable in. the war against crime. We note that 
very few street crimes· are federal offenses. The Federal Courts should not become 
involved in the trial of burgl8.ry and theft cases. 

In short, the Federal Government can help us. It may take funding, it may take 
coordinating, it may take cooperating, and it may take vision. With that help, how
ever, We can .make our streets and homes safer. 

Cec, Mr. HUGHES. The gentleman from New Jersey, chairman of the 
full committee. 

Mr. RODINO. Thank you very much, Mr. Arnold, for your willing
ness to appear here this morning and give us the benefit of your 
experience as head of the criminal law section of the State bar as
sociation. 

You mentioned a number of items that are of particular interest 
to me, and which I have been involved with for a period of time. I 
might point out that Congressman Hughes, as chairman of the 
Subcommittee on Crime, is already considering holding hearings on 
handgun legislation. You mayor may not know that I, along ,:with 
Senator Kennedy, have sponsored for a long period of time a hand
gUn control bill which we think is very moderate, very modesi;. We 
believe it would go a long way toward curbing crime, or at least in 
reducing the number of deaths that take place, the killings that 
take place every year as a result of the use of illegal handguns. 
About 11,000 of such deaths take place every year. However, there 
is ~ moye in the Congress, not only not to support this bill, but to 
actually I weaken the present statute that has not been effective. 

Hearings will. enable us to again call this situation to the atten
tion of the public, which is already supportive of this legislation. 
But because of the strong lobbying measures by the NRA, this leg
islation, which is supported by over 70 percent of the public, this 
legislation which is so important in fighting off crime and which is 
supported by polic~ chiefs and law enforcement agencies, has. . been 
stalled in the Congress. We hope that the bill will soon see the 
light of day. ... 

So I am happy to hear you make mention of that problem. Of 
course, we deal with reality. This bill that we have put together, 
the Justice Assistance Act, provides some discretionary funds to 
take care of the item that you mentioned, multistate pilanning, 
long-range planning. I think that it is important that th~s be the 
kind of vehicle that we can all support. . :' 
" Let me ask one question, which I think is basic to this hearing. 
You have had experience in this. area. Are you able t9 tell us 
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whether if there were no Federal funding whatsoever in these 
areas th~t we have discussed, we could with any degree of success, 
continue our efforts against crime? 

Mr. ARNOLD. Well, I would have to d~fer with Colonel Pagan~. 
This is a personal opinion. It is not the Ylew o.f the State ~ar aSSOCI
ation It is based on my personal experIence m 12 ye~rs m law en
force~ent. I think we could, but with difficulty. That IS my answer, 
Congressman. . . 

Mr. RODINO. Well, that is your personal opmIOn. 
Mr. ARNOLD. With great difficulty. For example, .one of ~he m~st 

cooperative Federal agencies was ATF. My experIence With. ArF 
was always a very positive experience. Of course, you ma~e m~n
tion this morning of the future of i\TF. Undou~tedly, that IS gomg 
to make investigations, especially ~n t~e tracmg ?f fire~fms, .ex
tremely difficult. So when I say "it IS gomg to be difficult, I thmk 
we can do it. ~ h'nk th t 

Mr. RODINO. Well, let me put it another way. Do you t I ~ 
the State is going to be able. to fm~ the reso?rces to c~~bat thIS 
ever-increasing problem of crIme WItho':lt haVIng the asbistance of 
the Federal Government in these partIcular ~eas that w~ hav:e 
mentioned, and especially in arQas that are deSIgnated here m thIS 
bill-the career criminals, the TASC pr~gram, the .arson program, 
the anticrime community prcgrIDll:s, stmg operatIons, that have 
been so effective already. Do you thInk that the State governments 
would be able to do the job without these resources? ~ 

Mr. ARNOLD. Well, you keep saying "State government." But ot 
course, in reality, what we are talking about here are county and 
municipal governments. 

Mr. RODINO. Well State, local, municipal governments. 
Mr. ARNOLD. OK: ! think it is going to vary a good deal from 

county to county. Some of the counties probably ~an and some 
could not possibly do· so. It is going to depend on WhICh co~nty rou 
are talking about. Some of the counties can hanclJ.e theIr ~r~e 
problem without the availability of Federal funds, m my opmIOn. 

Mr. RODINO. Well, I do not want to p;ress t~e ~oint, but I doubt 
that communities, such as the commuruty I lIve m, New~rk, N.J., 
where we have had rising crime rates; will be able on then: ow~ to 
deal with the problem. While Newark has been able to mamt~ a 
certain level, I do not see that without the ~d of cooperatIv:e 
effort that takes place with the State and Fedeihl Governments, It 
would be able to continue to deal with the problem. At least, that 
is the evidence that is on the record. 

Mr. ARNOLD. I would agree with you. I certainly would. ~n II?-Y 
judgment, you are absolutely correct. They co~d. no~ ~eal WIth It. 
At the same time, I think there are other D,lumcl~ahtIes that can. 

Mr. RODINO. Let me ask you just one final q!lestlOn, Mr. Arnold. 
Do you agl'ee with the kinds of recommendations that have been 
made by the Attorney General's Task. Force on Violent Crime, 
which is recommending that Fede.ral funds be spent ~or research, 
development demonstration, and mdependent evaluatlOn of meth· 
ods to preve'nt and reduce serious crime, for disseminating these 
finds and for implementing them o~ various governm~nt levels? Do 
you think that these recommendatIons ought to be Implemented? 
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Mr. ARNOLD. In my personal judgment, yes. I think that is prob
ably one of the most productive areas and proba.bly where you are 
going to get innovative new ideas. 

Mr. RODINO. I said I had a final question and I guess it is not so 
final. 

Mr. GUARINI. Postscript. 
Mr. RODINO. I remember that you mentioned the problem·· of 

drugs, especially. It is reported in various studies that crime is 
probably the outgrowth, in great measure, of drug addiction. It has 
been suggested that over 50 percent of street crime is drug related. 
Is this what you are pointing to when you talk about the fact that 
We need to address that in particular? 

Mr. ARNOLD. Absolutely. There is no question about it. The prob
lem is iq attacking drug importation, you automatically drive the 
price of the particular drug up. In other words, the effort has to be 
so intense as to literally drive the drug off the market, so it is not 
available at any price. Whether you can do that or not is a very, 
very difficult question. Whether that is possible. But to merely 
attack it to the point where the street price rises so much that it 
serves only to encourage more and more crimes is counterproduc
tive. But that is at the heart of the problem, at least in my experi
ence . 

Mr. RODINO. Thank you very much, Mr. Arnold . 
Mr. HUGHES. Thank YOU t Mr. Chairman. 
The gentleman from New Jersey, Mr, Guarini. 
Mr. GUARINI. Thank you, Mr. Arnold. In speaking about drugs, 

we have the DEA, the U.S. Customs, the Coast Guard, the FBI, the 
Firearms and Alcoholic Division. We have so many headed attacks 
on the drug program that there probably is not any attack on the 
drug program that is effective. We have a special trade representa-', 
tive who has a direct link to the President, who has Cabinet status, 
but we do not have anybody who would put his full attention to the 
drug problem as a special representative of the President where all 
these forces could be coordinated and pinpointed. We do have a 
person, but a person who has many other responsibilities. It seems 
to me that there is a tremendous amount of overlapping and dupli
cation in Government, and therefore, a national program that fails. 
It is often the street crimes that are affected a great deal by our 
uncontrollable drug problem that we have in our country here. 

I see in the law enforcement of our State over 600 subdivisions, if 
you take municipalities and the different groups of people that are 
a part of our law enforcement with the attorney general at the 
head. All perhaps duplicating their own expenses. I am just won
dering whether crnot there is a thrust that is really sufficiently 
coordinated. Because with all of the money that we:' are spending 
and all the effort that we are making, it seems that our crime 
problem keeps increasing and increasing and increasing every 
year, to the fact that it has now become the No.1 problem for our 
people. On the. pollJl, employment and crime, or the polls I have 
seell, have equal concern with the public. 

Now, asa member of the State bar association, do you see that 
there is a, problem in the way we have, structured our national 
thrust toward attacking our crime probleln? Is it inadequate as to 
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how we have structured 'ourselves? Shall we give it some nEiW cre
ative thinking in order to get the best bang out of our dollar? 

Mr. ARNOLD. Well, I really cannot answer your question, Con
gressman. That is a very, very difficult question. 

Mr. GUARINI. That is why we have the hearings here. 
Mr. ARNOLD. You asked about reorganization. But it is certainly 

wor£l:r'alo9Jr~~Cl mean, after all, Congres.s~an, 15 years. ago}f one 
were to ask "What is one of the best orgalnIZed corporations In the 
United States?" one might respond, 'lOne of the automobile compa
nies." Yet today, we know that our automobile. companies are not 
capable of meeting the thrust of foreign competition. Perhaps what 
we thought was a well organized organization was not, in fact, well 
organized. Maybe if people had ~en. a look at it, with that. point 
of view 15 years ago, our automobIle Industry would not be In the 
kind of difficulty it is today. 

Mr. GUARINI. Do you feel that there could be waste and lack of 
coordination in the way that we are attacking our crime problem 
in our country? 

Mr. ARNOLD. My own personal view? 
Mr. GUARINI. Yes. 
Mr. ARNOLD. There is that possibility and it is worth taking a 

good hard look at. I have heard people say, Congressman, liDo we 
expect the Japanese to come over here and run our criminal justice 
system." Now, maybe it is worth taking a long hard look. 

Mr. GUARINI. Now, I am glad the bar association is interested in 
a multistate approach and a way that they can use the information 
and facilities of the other States. And it is interesting to note that 
when I was in the State legislature 15 years ago, both Houses had 
passed the bill asking for that very one thing, a treaty amongst our 
States. It would be a form of a treaty which all the Governors 
would sign and which we would coordinate our efforts. For some 
unknown reason, the bill passed, but the treaty was never effected, 
because we did not get the cooperation from all the Governors of 
our neighboring States. I would like to see this implemented. I 
would like to see the State bar association keep going forward in 
our fight, because what was true then I think is still true today. 

Thank you. 
Mr. HUGHES. Thank you, Frank. . 
I, too, want to congratulate you oli a good statement. I think 

that, as Colonel Pagano said, in order to develop effective. strate~es 
we have to look at a multistate approach to planning ~nd to imple
mentation. I think that tpe part of H.R. 4481 that directs itself to 
those discretionary funds for multistateplanning is a verl impor
tant one, because crime knows no geographic boundaries. So I con
gratulate you on that. 

Mr. ARNOLD. Thank you. 
Mr. HUGHES. Let me also just tell you that I think that one of 

our problems is that the Federal Government has not been a very 
good partner. Take the declination policy. For example, the declin'" 
ing to exercize jurisdiction in the southern Florida area, where we 
have a massive drug problem. We have devoted an awful lot of this 
committee's time to that problem. Thesubcomplittee has been to 
southern Florida and we worked closely with the drug enforcement 
people in that area. 
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Up until recently, the Federal policy with regard to drugs in 
southern Florida was that if a case did not involve at least 2 tons of 
marihuana, we declined jurisdiction. Two tons. We get excited in 
New Jersey if we find 1 pound of marihuana. But the U.S. attor
ney, because of lack of resources, was declining jurisdiction over 
what essentially is a Federal matter, because marihuana is not 
grown in this country and neither is heroin. These ar,e problems 
that are national in scope. Well, we were just passing them onto 
the State's attorney, who is up to his eyeballs right now with other 
matters. And our declination policy on bank robberies is the same. 
It varie~ from 10 percent to 90 percent. of the cases throughout the 
country. 

So, you know, we are lousy partners to begin with. Ap.d you put 
your finger on another problem. Sometimes we do not ta~k together 
enough. We have had the FBI running investigations thl~t the DEA 
did not know about for a long time. And the same thing applies to 
other agencies. So we need a lot more coordination than we have 
had, to maximize our effort. And I think that is a point you make 
very well and it is a valid point. 

Thank you very much. 
Mr. ARNOLD. You are welcome. 
Mr. HUGHES. Our next panel is a panel on corrections. It is well 

known that the country's prisons and jails are overcrowded and in 
some cases, danP:ierous, and money to build new facilities is in short 
supply. It is alscf a known factor that everybody wants new prisons, 
but they do not want them in their backyard. 

The Attorney General's Violent Crime Task Force recommended 
$2 billion to build new facilities. But this was the only recommen
dation the Reagan administration did not endorse. 

Our panel this morning consists of William Fauver, the commis
sioner of the Division of Corrections for the State of New Jersey; 
Christopher Dietz, the chairman of the New Jersey State Parole 
Board; and Ja,ck Cali, chief warden of the Hudson County Jail. We 
are delighted to have you with us. Please come forward. I under
stand Mr. Cali is not with us today. 

Mr .. Fauver, I understand that you are to be the spokesperson for 
this particular panel and that is not to take anything from Chris 
Dietz, who happens to be not only an excellent chairman, but also 
a good constituent of mine. Delighted to have you with us this 
morning. i 

We have your statements which will appear in the record in full, 
without objection. You may proceed as you see fit. 

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM FAUVER, COMMISSIONER, DIVISION OF 
CORRECTIONS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

Mr. FAUVER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will try to not read 
through the statement, but rather jump to some of the things that 
are recommendations later on. 

Mr. HUGHES. We appreciate that. 
Mr. FAUVER. The problem in corrections has been right now in 

the last few years really the overcrowding problem. Not just in 
New Jersey, but in the country, as well as with the Federal,pris
ons. A lot of the programs tha,t have been alluded to before, par= 
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ticularly by Colonel Pagano, and t}{e aid that has come fro~ 
SLEP A in the past and has also come to the department for aId 
within the State system of corrections, probably has .done a good 
job as reflected by the number of ~eople th~t ~re n?w mcarcerated. 
So that I do not think a dropoff m that aId IS gomg to affect the 
current rate. But I think that those programs are needed, and I 
would echo a lot of what the colonel said in support of the Federal 
programs for crime prevention. .... 

The overcrowding problem, as I stated, IS not Just m this State. It 
is a national problem. Basically, it is an international problem. I 
have talked to some colleagues from other co,!-ntries and they are 
experiencing the same thing. I think a lot of It goes back to ~hat 
Mr. LeFante said about new training, programs for summ~r Jobs, 
and so forth. There are a lot of people out there that, partIcul~ly 
youth, that are idle and who. get into trouble because of the Idle-
ness. . . t th St te The average educational level o! people com~g mo. ea. 
system is about a 6th grade educatIOn. At that pomt, the syste~ 18 
expected to really turn around what may already be a commltted 
life in a criminal lifestyle. 

There are programs within the system that would be affected by 
loss of funds, by loss of Federal funds. It ~ould primarily be .in the 
treatment areas. I think that the State, m general, woulq pIck up 
the custodial costs strictly for correction officers and securIty. But I 
think, the program areas that will be. ~ffected w?uld be i? ~ounsel
ing, drug counseling! alcohol counseling, vocatIonal trammg pro
grams, which up until recently have been totally funded by the co-
operating grants from the Federal Government. . 

So, I think if we hope to do more than just keep people m a 
warehousing style that if we try to make some progress WIth what 
the proble~ have been, whether it has been drug, lack of a skill, 
or whatever, that that funding will be needed. . .,. 

Now, space becomes a major issue and I think that m skipI?mg 
through this I would like to go to some of the recommendatIons 
that I would' propose be considered. This would be skipping to page 
4 of my statement. '. . 

The first would be some type of Federal aid for new construction. 
You alluded to that, Mr. Chairman, in your opening remarks. I 
know that there was a Senate bill introduced by Senator Dole to 
eive aid to the States for construction. My understanding is th~t 
that is not meeting with much success. I do not even know where It 
is right now in the Congress. 

Mr. HUGHES. Dead. 
Mr. FAUVER. Dead? But I think that that type of program is 

needed both for the States and for the counties. We initiated last 
year o~t of a county .assistance pro~~ to help counti~s. wi~h col}
struction or renovatIons of county Jails. The county Jruls m this 
State are. severely overcrowded. Even before they were over
crowded they were lacking in space, in program space in areas in 
which they could try to treat people and not just hold them. Even 
.in things such as visit space was not available in some of the cotm-
ties. ' . 

I think that with the cap .on this State, that it really is an unfrur 
burden to put on some of the .counties. Particularly the counties 
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that need it the most, as Congressman Rodino mentioned earlier 
with Newark and Essex County, to put that added burden on there: 
And State aid, in this case, comes on top of the cap, above the cap. 
And therefore, I think is valuable. I think the Federal Government 
should do the same type of thing in their aid. I would like to see 
the aid tailored to the States and to the counties or municipalities 
that agree to meet certain standards, and not just a warehousing 
type of thing. 

The American Correctional Association has set up standards and 
State institutions can be accredited now, much the way the colleges 
and State hospitals can be accredited. And I think that should tie 
into the funding. But I think the funding is necessary. 

Second, increase the availability by the Federal Government of 
Federal facilities and land that are currently not in use. Fortunate
I?,;, as we sit here today, we are beginning to operate what we call 
! Mid-State Correctional Facility," which is the Fort Dix stockade 
and. it is through the efforts of a lot of gentlemen like yourselve~ 
that we !Vere able to get this after many years of trying. 'Ve are 
transferrmg in today 80 inmates and all this will be to help relieve 
the overcrowding in the county jails. The capacity of that facility is 
500 and we expect to reach that capacity by JUly 1. ' 

There are ~urpl,!s lands that hav.e been identified by the Federal 
Government m thIS State, and I think that as these become availa
ble that this type of cooperation is going to be necessary for the 
States to meet the housing needs. 

Third, I think there has to be a subsidy model for those that are 
not coming into jail. I think there is enough crime that is nonvio
~el}t crime that can be dealt with by alternative methods. But, I 
thmk there has to b~ s?~e type. of funding to be incentive to keep 
people out, whether It 18 a subSIdy as. has been tried in California 
years ago to beef up probation services and put people on intense 
pt:0ba~ion and .by ~hat, I m~an, seen dailJ:' and to try to help them 
'!lth JO~s,. gettIn~ Jobs, ~ettI':lg places to l~ve. Things like that. Get
tmg trammg. ThIS, I thmk, IS extremely Important and it will help 
to cut. down on the numbers coming in. Which has to be done as 
well as the construction. ' 

As we have indicated in this State and Governor Kane has intro
duced a .proposal w~ich will address p.rison overcrowqing, including 
~terna~lve sentencIng. My concern With the alternatIve sentencing 
IS that It does not just go to white collar crime. The majority of the 
people in the prison system are minorities .. My concern would be 
that if alternative sentencing is tied to a particular skill that it 
will be diverting just partiCUlarly whites from the system and will 
only reil)force the feeling of a lot of people in the system, that they 
are alienated from society in general. So I think it has to be more 
and all encompassing than just what we traditionally think of as a 
white collar crime. . 

Work and training programs is the fourth OIle that I mentioned. 
M~. .u:Fante talked. about this as a preventive measure, which I 
thmk IS a plus and It should be. But also, for training for the un
skill.ed I?ersop. and for l?-elp with placement afterwa~d. I am sug
gestIng In thIS that pOSSIbly there could be some tax Incentives for 
companies or corporations that would hire exoffenders once they 
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have been trained. We would welcome them having input into 
training programs within the correctional system. 

Fifth, the enhancement of the planning capability. This is one of 
the things that I think we would not be quite where we ar,e today 
with the overcrowding if our planning capabilities had been better 
years ago in projecting what was going to happen. Now, there are 
always unknowns, such as the Penal Code and things like that. But 
I think we would have been better off, without any question, if we 
had been able to plan in the future. 

Mr. Cali has arrived, so he will speak for the coun.ties. I will not 
pick up that part. He is .an able spok~sman for tI:a~. . . 

Last, in these suggestIons on the bill, the arummstratlOn of.Juv~
nile justice programs, I feel it should be kept separate or I think It 
will get lost in the shuffle wi~h ~he adult crime as it is. In Ne.w 
Jersey we have tried to do this In the last few years. We are ill 
compliance with the Juvenile Separation Act from the Federal 
Government. We were able to do this, again, only through the use 
of Federal funds, or we would not be at the point of separation 
right now. We created a division within the Department of Correc
tions to address strictly juvenile problems. And I think that that 
kind of separation is necessary, even in the funding or it will get 
lost. 

I would like to, in closing, just reiterate my support for this bill 
and the amendments and I think that if there are any questions, I 
will try to respond. My colleagues, I am sure, will have some com
ments. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you, Mr. Fauver. 
[Statement of William H. Fauver follows:] 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM H. FAUVER, HOUSE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE, MAY 17) 1982 

My name is William. H. Fauver, C?mmissione~ of the New Jersey Depa!t~ent of 
Corrections. I would like to take thIS opportUnity to express my appreCIatIOn for 
having been. extended an invitation to testify at todais horu:-lng. 

Before addressing H.R. 4481 in particular, I would like to advise the Subcommit
tee of a serious problem affecting the State of New Jersey as well as many other 
States. Pris()n overcrowding has become a problem of massive proportion which, if 
not addressed, has the potential to wreak havoc on the nation's correctional sys
tems. Approximately 30 state correctional systems are currently operating under 
Federal court orders requiring that relief be provided to conditions related to over
crowding in State prisons and correctional institutions. In addition, many county 
and local correctional facUities are operating under similar lower court orders. 

In the State of New Jersey, the adult resident population in the State Correction
al System hal'> risen from 5,635 in January, 1931 to 8,265 in March, 1982. Current 
projections indicate that the population will continue to rise dramatically-to 13,000 
by January, 1984 and 15,000 by January, 1985. The State's medium/maximum cus
tody facilities are operating at 122 percent of maximum capacity-over 1,400 State 
inmates are backed-up in county jails due to lack of space in State facilities-the 
county jails are operating at an average of 126 percent of maximum capacity with 
several of the county facilities at twice their rated capacity. Even mUnicipal lock
ups and detention facilities are being affected by this spillover. 

The Honorable Thomas H. Kean, Governor of New Jersey, recently released an 
ambitioUll agenda to address this urgent problem entitled, "Prison Overcrowding-A 
Plan of Action." In spite of his proposals which would, among other things, increase 
State Correctional system capacity by mt>re than 5,200 beds through 1988, projec
tiorul indicate that we will continue to have at least a 5 percent bedspace deficit QY 
1988. c. 

OvercrowdiDg is a problem that won't go away if ignored-a problem that is un
likely to abate without commitment to address and resolve it that must begin at the 
Federal level and command support from a majority· of citiz'ms throughout the 
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country, Such a commitment must demonstrate to those who violate the law that 
they will suffer appropriate sanctions and must demonstrate to the public that we 
share their desire for safe and hospitable neighborhoods. 

To that end, I believe that H.R. 4481 represents a step in the right direction. In 
terms of level of funding, perhaps not as big a step as I would like to see, but a 
positive step, nonetheless. 

H.R. 4481 establishes a mechanism by which the Federal Government can resume 
a role in providing direction and coordination to criminal justice efforts nationwide, 
while allowing states some discretion to implement strategies that recognize their 
particular needs and priorities. In view of my previous comments, I am pleased to 
note that one of the permissible program areas articulated in H.R. 4481 focuses on 
alleviation of prison and jail overcrowding. 

I am generally supportive of the funding categories identified in H.R. 4481. As you 
may be aware, New Jersey has been in the vanguard of the development of new and 
innovative criminal justice programs. Pre-Trial Intervention, Criminal Justice Infor
mation Systems (PROMIS, OBSCIS), Speedy Trial Programs, Community Service, 
Restitution, and many other criminal justice programs have been developed and im
plemented in New Jersey as a result of LEAA funding. Continued support of these 
program areas is necessary in order to fully develop and expand such programs to 
those state and local agencies which were unable to do so under prior federal assist
ance. This amendment will permit continued develollment in these key program 
areas. 

One concern I have regarding the program areas identified in this amendment is 
that they are finite and may limit, or preclude, a State or local agency from using 
funds to address other identified program needs. Eight out of the nine categories 
identified in the amendment are areas in which the State of New Jersey has al
ready initiated and developed viable programs. Although these programs may not 
have been expanded to their fullest, I feel that greater discretion should be permit
ted, since many states have already implemented programs in these categories. The 
latitude to determine which programs and alternatives are best for an individual 
state or locality should be greater than that provided in the amendment. The lack 
of flexibility inhibits State support for programs which may be felt to be the most 
viable and realistic to meet local needs. . 

Because of the overwhelming growth in the offender population being experienced 
in New Jersey and other states throughout the nation, it may be worthwhile to con
sider additional funding categories out of unspecified discretionary funds to address 
those interrelated problems associated with overcrowding. 

The costs for new facility construction, expansion, or rfJnovation in today's econo
my is overwhelming. Many states, including New Jersey; are unable to appropriate 
the necessary resources to build new facilities or initiate alternative programs to 
meet increasing correctional populations. In view of this situation, I submit the fol
lowing recommendations for the Committee's consideration. I think these recom
mendations highlight major concerns from the perspective of a correctional adminis
trator. 

1. Federal aid for new construction.-New Jersey has recently developed plans to 
increase the state correctional bedspace population by 5,200 bedspaces. These bed
spaces will include additions to existing state and county facilities, purchase of pre
fabricated housing units and new ClJnventional construction. Under the Depart
ment's County Assistance Program initiated in 1981, County Correctional Systems 
are receiving state subsidies to help defray costs for construction and renovation of 
local facilities. In view of the urgent need to expand such programming, perhaps a 
similar program at the Federal level could prOVIde subsidies to states to initiate or 
augment such programs. Only if a sufficient level of resources is brought to bear, 
can we begin to seriously address the severe overcrowding problems plaguing the 
majority of states throughout the nation. . 

2. Increased availability of dormant Federal facilities and land for State use. -The 
use of surplus and/or dormant Federal facilities can provide addItional rEllief to the 
prison overcrowding problem. The average time for construction of a new facility 
can be as high as 3 years. The use of existing Federal facilities can reduce this time 
frame to 6 months or less, depending upon the condition of the surplus facilities. 
Similarly, availability of vacant or surplus Federal land, such as vacant NIKE mis
sile sites and unl,lsed military camps, could provide sites for new facilities or prison 
work farms. 0 

3. Subsidy programs for alternative sentencing models.-There are many program 
models that have been developed to subsidize State, county, and local agencies for 
diverting offenders from state correctional facilities. Additional resources should be 
made available to encourage implementation and expansion of these programs to 
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ensure that State correctional facilities are used only for those offenders who are 
violent and pose a threat to the coummunity. Less serious offenders convicted of 
property offenses should be diverted to community baaed optioru;l at the local level. 

4. Work and vocational training programs . ......;Besides the obvious need to increase 
the number of correctional bedspaces to accommodate more offenders, another sig
nificant problem which immediately follows prison expansion is the need to provide 
meaningful inmate work and program activities. One of the most serious causes of 
prison unrest is idleness. Federal support for innovative institutional work and vo
cational training programs must be tied in with any resources appropriated for new 
prison construction or expansion. The need to provide meaningful work opportuni
ties cannot be overemphasized, particularly in institutions which are seriously over
crowded. Efforts should be made to encourage private industrial and business orga
nizations, possibly through tax incentives, to become involved in work and vocation
al training programs of this nature. 

5. Enhancement of planning capability.-In order to provide a rational approach 
to accommodate the large increases in offender population, it is imperative to appro
priate sufficient resources to insure optimal efficiency and minimal cost overruns. 
Several levels of planning are necessary. On a policy level, enhanced planning capa
bilities at both the State and local levels can provide direction and coordination in 
the application of limited resources. Programs to plan for the opening of new State 
or county correctional facilities, could result in developing of more effective methods 
for operating institutions and provide an impetus for new direction for all new pro
posed facilities. Local planning programs could include increased use of community 
participation through Citizens Advisory Boards, in order to address crime problems, 
and possible alternatives on a local level. 

6. Administration of juvenile justice programs.-With respect to the administra
tion of juvenile justice programs, it is my contention that funding for such Rrograms 
should be allocated separately and distinctly from the other program areas pro
scribed in H.R. 443l. I share the concern of many correctional professionals and ju
venile justice proponents that lumping juvenile justice funding and programming 
with many other competing program areas, might easily serve to detract from the 
emphasis required to develop truly effective juvenile justice strategies. Some of the 
major program areas, such as alleviation of overcrowding, demand such significant 
attention and allocation of rasources, that juvenil~ justice initiatives could suffer by 
relegation to a relatively low priority. 

In summary, I would like to reiterate my support of H.R. 4481 as a vehicle for 
assisting and coordinating the many and varied programs necessary to effectively 
administer the criminal justice system. I am confident that this bill will enhance 
the administration of criminal justice, not only in New Jersey, but throughout the 
nation. I would be happy to respond to any questions you might have. 

Mr. HUGHES. Chris, do you have some things you would like to 
~ay? 

TESTIMONY OF CHRISTOPHER DIETZ, CHAIRMAN, NEW JERSEY 
STATE PAROLE BOARD 

Mr. DIETz~ What I have heard this morning and what I am sure 
all of you have heard before is the same crisis problem that society 
h~ faced ever since I can remember as a youngster. The war on 
crune does not 'Seem to be one that we can win. Yet, the statistics 
are tragic. In about 2 months to 3 months I will have completed my 
50,900th personal review of a case in t. he 7 years of my tenure as 
chairman. The characteristics that Bill Fauver talked about are 
horrib1y true. What Joe LeFante talked about, when he said 1175 
percent of the minority youth in Jersey City are unemployed," I 
can tell you, that statistic is reflected in our prison in the minority 
percentages. So we know what the alternatives are. 

We also see today a more violent, vicious youngster emerging. 
The characteristic of crime today seems to be something that abso
lutely is devoid of any sense of human decency or respect. It seems 
to stem from the fact, from the reviews that I have conducted in 
an individual that is devoid of self-respect. That is not unus~al. 
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When a person is devoid of self-respect, that person can very easily 
have no respect for anything else or anyone else. 

Where can we go and w?at can we do? It is a~soh~.tely e~~ential. 
It is ludicrous for us to thmk that unless there IS a Job waItmg for 
a person, where he can support himself with a sense of pe~sonal 
dignity, he is going to go out. You have to eat. You have to lIve: If 
it is not in prison, it is on the street. There are no welfare agenCIes. 
There are no workhouses. There are no halfway houses that are 
taking care of these youngsters. We know what. their alternative 
job skills are. We know exactly what they are gomg to do. Yet, we 
are shocked when the crime statistic increases. We know it was an 
ultimate, logical extension of what w~ h~ve not done .. 

I think your block grant program IS Just outstandmg. I applaud 
you for what you have done. You are the onl~ hope acro~s .the 
Nation. I recently left to come here today a meetmg of commISSIon
ers of the Commission on Accreditation, which were drawn from 
colleagues across the country. We were at Tyson's Corner, Virginia. 
They all asked m~ t? ex~res~ to you ho~ importS?t the hope you 
have given the cnmmal JustIce commumty, espeCIally those of us 
in the corrections process. There are thousands upon thousands' of 
dedicated people out there that desperately need the support. 

We do not get the recognition, because we are the tail end of a 
system. No one real~y is concerned. Our successes ar7 never front 
page stories. Our faIlures are ;always fro.nt page st<?ne~. Yet, they 
are not our failures. What SOCIety has faIled to realIZe IS that they 
are societal failures. Those individuals that cannot make out, they 
are personal failures. There are tragic consequences. The cost is as
tronomical. Yet, we continue to commit ourselves to the payment 
of those costs. We will keep a youngster locked up and may spend 
upward of $100,000 or more. Had we funded, established a trust 
fund for that youngster, he would not have to work the rest of his 
life. Somewhere we have misordered our priorities. 

That I had to say because of the excellent presentations that 
came across. There are four things I would like to share with you 
this morning. 

'Ve spent, over the last 10 years, a great deal of .effort in the 
criminal justice community across the country and WIth the finan
cial support of LEAA and with the support of the Congress, obvi
ously a program of establishing standards for accreditation that go 
across every facet of corrections. For the first time, after maybe 
tens of thousands of hours of work and millions upon millions of 
dollars of research and preparation, we hav7 ~pproximatel~ 3,~00 standards that agencies can apply to a commISSIon on accredItatIOn 
which was substantially funded from the LEAA funds and under 
the supervision of the Justice Department. . 

I would think that there ought to be a gesture. It seems, agam, 
not to make sense to say we have established that S?d not encour
age agencies from across the country to apply. it IS not an ea~y 
task to become accredited. Bill Fauver i$, I think, distinguished m 
having some very unusual institutions accredited here in our State. 
But to say that we are going to give money, if there were going to 
be a block grant out, and D:ot to say tJ;1at at leas~ you should have 
been in the process of meetmg those hIgh prOfeS::3IOnld standards of 
your own profession, does not make sense. I would Udnk that there 
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ought to be an addition, if possible, or some type of co~~deration 
given, where unless you are in the process of accredltation, or 
unless you are an accredited agency, much like the Joint Commis
sion on Hospital Accreditation, you do not receive Federal block 
funds. Unless you are committed to doing the very best job you can 
do against standards that have been raised by your peer group 
across the country, tested over a period of one decade, rou should 
not receive public money. It is not an HOld Boy's Club.' I think it 
would go a long way toward building credibility. 

In the 7 years I have been chairman, ~y second point of the pa
roling authority, I probaply learned more. Not that I did not deeply 
appreciate the LEAA supported programs that took me to the war
den's school for strategic management, development and correc
tions, or to any of the other institutions of higher learning. I think 
they are outstanding. I learned more from my colleagues when we 
got together, when we met. 

You have currently, right now, a National Institute of Correc
tions much like the National Institute of Justice. They currently 
have a trial academy. It is only for" a couple of years they are 
trying it out on the campus out in Denver, Colo. Perhaps you 
should think in terms of maybe establishing it on a permanent 
basis,on the grounds, maybe during the summer of one of our mili
tary academies. Certainly, we should make it available. 

I can remember when I was an OCS candidate up at Newport, 
R.I. for the Navy. There was a War College. You just did not make 
flag rank unless you went to the War College. I think the war on 
crime requires a high intensity of development of the highest pro
fessional skills and tools available. . Across this country we have 
magnificent professionals that have innovative programs that are 
absolutely marvelous. The one thing we have not done is shared 
them with another with the frequency that we should so that we 
can get the maximum beneficial use of them. 

Could you imagine cancer research or any of the research pro
grams that have been successful-the March of Dimes program on 
polio vaccine-where no one talked to each other, no one had an 
opportunity t-o get the other to share? There are many things that 
we should do. I would urge strongly an enhancement of the support 
for the National Institute of Corrections. 

The other thing I would ask is that you consider when LEAA 
was functioning, there was a program where line field profession
als, people that someday were qoing to occupy the positions of au
thority and administrative control of our criminal justice network 
across the country, could get financial assistance. We do not pay 
them a great deal of money to work as entry-level people in our 
criminal justice field. If we could meet them in a unique way that I 
would suggest to you, a tax credit, a 50-percent tax credit for any 
schooling that develops their professional skills as line profession
als in criminal justice. It is money they would not get totally. They 
would be getting haIf of it, but it is coming out of the money they 
would have paid' in taxes. I think something like that, to motivate 
and develop. Because, in the field, right now, though Bill Fauver 
and I do not like to think about it, are the people who will replace 
us. Absolutely and certainly-they c are there. Hopefully, they are 
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going to have the trained skills to be able to do a job much better 
than what we have dOlle and we have tried very har~. . 

The last thing I would ask-and I mentioned it brIefly earher-I 
think it would really be magnificent if maybe the Congress could 
consider, or in conjunction with the Feder~ Governm~~t, come up 
with an award syste~. Somet~ing tha~ gIves recogmtI~n. to <?ut~ 
standing and distinguIshed achievment m the field of crlIDmal JUS
tice. Our heroes, our planners, our people who go out and put 
themselves on the line and not for a great deal of mon~y. Those 
people who have really done a great deal to m~ke our s~Clety saf~. 
Something that says, "Hey, fellow, well done .. Somethmg that IS 
very iinportant. Maybe a day set aside to brmg these people to 
Washington for something that says, "Thank you very much for 
giving so much of yourself./J 

Thank you. . . htf I d' Mr. HUGHES. Thank you, Chris, for a very mSIg u an Impor-
tant statement. ' 

Mr. HUGHES. Mr. Cali. 

TESTIMONY OFJACK CALI, CHIEF WARDEN, HUDSON COUNTY 
JAIL 

Mr. CALI. Thank you,Mr. Chairman, Congressman Rodino, Con
gressman Guarini. 

I am in full support of the measure and I feel that 1 B;m p~rhaps 
just going to impose upon you to tell :v;ou exac~ly what ~ gomg on 
in the county facility, We have a facihty that IS approx~mately 54 
years old. It was built to house 270 jail inmates. Appr~xlIDately 25 
years ago, the county of Hudson had a worf,house out ill Secauc':ls, 
commonly known as Hthe Snake Hill area up on that mountau?-. 
When they were blasting for the turnpike, one of the charges spht 
that structure in half. N9 one was ~urt, but .~hey rn.0y~~ the work
house into the jail;that 1 am speB;k!-ng a~out, <;m Pa~onla Aven~e, 
on a temporary basis. That condItIOn stIll eXISts .. Sm~e the mId-
1950's, we have housed jail inmates an~ penitentIary. I~m~t~s. In 
1975 while that temporary condition eXIsted, the mUnlCIpalItIes no 
long~r were responsible for housing arrest reports, people wh.o 
were locked up that day. Since 1975, the Hudson County JaIl 
houses presentence detainees, sentenced prisoners, and what we 
call "arrest reports" for all the municipalities. . . 
. In recent years, the State,. in their overcrowded conditIQnS, co?ld 
not take the State-sentenced prisoners that they. were tWI?-g 
within 15 days. The result of that, you are aware of, IS a backup m 
the county facilities in aU counties. Sometimes we have as many as 
70 sentenced prisoners. . . 

So just to recap that situation, we now have pretrIal detaIne~s, 
sentenced prisoners State prisoners, and what. we call the CIty 
lockup" the people ~ho are getting locked up today to go to court 
tomor;ow. I think, in Hudson, we made a very large step' forward 
in the creation of the CJP system, where you, could get ar~ested 
today and be in court tomorrow morning at 9 ? clock. Then, If you 
were arrested early enough today, you can be In court today. That 
was a great step forward and at least we got some ()f the cases han-

. dIed faster and people went out on bail. 
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The result of all these problems is that the jail is seriously over
crowded. The jail cannot do what is asked of it. There is some prob
lems that may be sol~ed by our prosecutor. Hal Ruvoldt ~as come 
up with a plan that Seems to have some very strong ment. I have 
good feelings about it. But everything that we talked about relates 
to money. My conversations with the county executive tells me 
that we do not have money. My conversations with the architects 
tell me that we need a lot of money, $35 million, even to start. He 
is going to solve the whole problem. , 

I can tell you, Congres~men, that we are in desperate shape. The 
solutions that are long overdue have to be found. While we can 
plan and we can come up with ideas, we cannot come up with 'the 
funding mechanism. There is not even any light on the horizon, 
Congressmen, because, while the State has the bond issue coming 
up, I believe that there is only $32 million going to be available for 
allthe counties and some county's needs are more than others. But 
when you start splitting that down to all the counties that are in 
need, it is not enough. You know, they say, you talk '$1 million 
here,$l million there, pretty soon you are talking about real 
money. We need real money here. We need big money. We also 
need a mechanism for having a site chosen. If we had the mo~ey, 
we have an inability to come up with a site. People are confus1ng 
to me. They want longer sentences, they want mandated sentences, 
they want more people in prisons, but do not build a jail near 
them. 

It is not only Hudson County and I am not saying that we are 
the only culprit that cannot come up with a site, The State of New 
Jersey owns thousands and thousands of acres. It took them an 
awful long tiIne to come up with sites. I do not even know how suc
cessful they are at this point. This is after 5 or 6 years that I am 
aware of. 

So to fight for a site when you"do not have the money seems like 
a never-ending solution. You cannot come up with the solution, be
cause maybe if we had the money, we ~ould let people know we 
were serious. 

I would like to close, Congressmen, by saying that we are sitting 
on a powder keg, as I see it, in most of the counties. In particular, 
in Hudson County, as it relates to the jail. We had this morning 
over 500 prisoners with the complexions that I, described to you, 
which make it moreffifficult in a jail that, again, I will say was 
built to hold 270. 

I thought I was doing a nice thing one day when we were over
crowded. I put some people in the gymnasium. I have 24. When I 
say "gymnasium," I know what you visualize. It is not that. It is a 
converted little prayer room that we;"a,~l a gymnasium. We let 
them house in there and I am being sued. It is against 80meone's 
rights that I let them sleep in the gymnasium. I guess if I let them 
sleep On the floor of the cellar, it would not have been. But there is 
110 more room at the inn. We cannot take any more or that place is 
going to blow up. . "" 

I appreciate your time and I am sure that your interest will be 
appreciated by our people. ' 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you for an excellent statement. 

iI 
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The gentleman from New Jersey, chairman of the full commit
tee. 

Mr. RODINO. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I want to ap
plaud each of you for very eloquent and excellent presentations. 
All I can say to you is that you have just fortified the thinking that 
I have had all 8.long, I have continually, along with others, recog
nized what the problems are and have bad some solutions in mind 
that we believe will not be as costly in the long run and will be an 
investment in human resources that will, I think, eliminate all of 
these concerns. Mr. Cali mentions the "powder kegs," and yet, we 
read that the Attorney General's task force is recommending pre
ventive detention, which will result in even more overcrowding, 
and I wonder how we are going to cope with this situation, when 
they do not want to supply the money to provide more prisons, and 
not only the money to house people, but to house them properly. 
Because, while we do know that these are criminals, that these are 
people who have violated the laws of our society, nonetheless we 
know that it is in the interest of our own society not to treat them 
as animals, so that the problem is aggravated more and more. 

Chris Dietz in his presentation points out how, if we had invested 
$100,000 and set up a trust fund for some errant person, probably 
we might have saved ourselves all the grief that we are experienc
ing. Somehow. or other, we have not grasped that point. We hear 
the voices say that we have to continue to imprison ahd to detain. 
Yet, when it comes to providing sums to be able to try to put the 
best brains of the governments together to find alternatives, we say 
tlNo, we do not have the resources." 

And I find that over the 34 years in my service in the Congress 
of the United States, this problem has grown and grown and 
grown. While some of us insist that there are answers to these 
problems, nonetheless we face administrations that say, "We 
cannot supply the resources. We do not have them." On the other 
hand, they say that we have to deal with the subject of crime. It is 
a lot of rhetoric, in my judgment. 

I merely want to thank you for coming here today. Commissioner 
Fauver, the various recommendations that you made, especially in
volving alternatives to incarceration, are certainly matters that we 
have to confront. I might say that this past January I attended a 
seminar which I am privileged to be part of, along with Congress
man Hughes, and which originated some years back as a result of 
an idea that I had of bringing together people in the various 
branches of government, the legislative, judicial, and executive 
branches, to discuss the criminal justice system. We had a seminar 
in Williamsburg and a, \ot. of ideas were discussed there. Some of 
the alternatives to incarceration that were presented wel'e objected 
to by some who would say, "Oh, my God, no, you can't b.·eat these 
people as though you are coddling them." No one wants to be 
charged with coddling criminals. But realistically you must try to 
get the best out of them and employ whatever talents they have 
and put them back into the system. l:Jopefully, maybe you will be 
able to make individuals who will again be part of society. We 
must, of course, deal with the others who are career criminals, and 
recidivists. They must be dealt with separately. But when it comes 
to getting money to set up these plans, this administration-and I 
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do not mind saying it and I do not c~arge only !his adm!~tra
tion-we have faced, this problem even ill the pr~,?ous admImstra
tion~ much to my regret and my ~ry vocal oPP9sItion-but they all 
say, "Well, we have no resources. . . 

So I am happy to say~ Mr_ Chairman,. th~t. at least thlS heanng 
shows that \\"8 have broad support from mdiVldu~ who are sI?eak
ing with not only grass roots knowledge and experIence, but wIth, I 
think the understanding that they are trying to save the system ) th _. 1 and not to coddle ' e cnmm8_. 

Thank you 'lelY much. 
Mr. HuGHES.. Thank yo~ ~Mr. Chairman. .. 
The mmtleman from New Jersey, Mr. GuarmI. 
Mr. GUARINL Thank you, Mr. Chairman. r.r:h.e last time we met, 

C'l:4~ and Bill was when we were in transItIOn and that was 5 
ye?,l's ago. You' are now 'Wiser and more experienced and the State 
is better off for it. I know the problems that you spoke about then 
are essentially the problems that we are speaking about now. 
Sometimes vOn wonder how much progress society has actually 
made in the-field ofcorreclions. . . . 

Do we. as a :matter of philosophy, expect m our cnmmal system 
today to :rehabll..itate people? Or have we gotten away f~~m !hat 
and now ha1re a philosophy of punishment and .n~t rehabIhtatl(;>n! 
Becau...~ we have so much recycling of our crlIDmals and reCldI
vism I am just wondering whether or not we have gotten away 
from:6 the concept of rehabilitation. . 

Mr. FAUVER. Welt I do not think we have gotte~ away, from It .. I 
know that there are not that many proponents of It any more .. It IS 
much more of just; a lock-them-up-and-throw-the-key-away I~ea. 
But in New Je-rsey~ I do not think we have gotten away from It. I 
think if we have it is because we have been overwhelmed by num
hens of inmates and the unavailability of programs for the numbers 
of inmates that we have in the system. It is not that philosophical
ly we have gotten away. 

I do not, think that, first,. you can rehabilitate anyone ~at does 
:oot want to be rehabilitated. I think the best we can do IS to pro
vide the wherewithal for that person, for whatever skills he or she 
needs.. Whether it is educational, vocational, drug or alcohol coun
seling~ whatever the deficiency might be that brought that person 

to ~ people that speak against it say that it has been ~ed and it 
has not worlred. I think that it really has never been tried on the 
basis of funiling~ I would agree with what Congra.c::sman Rodino 
commented that people have tallredabout these things for years 
and have given. :lip seZ-rir:e", but no money_ I do not think the States 
on: their own can do this. 

But the ~y has not been given up as far as New Jersey is 

~~~ N~~ ~d ~e get,into the t8!fy p~ 
bet:ween the txtmlt;w pnsm. Sl]'Sem sumg the State and fighting o~,er 
where the :mom is to be? Is iliae merla - , requirements to have 
separate coonty ~ 1idle.n we have an Army base or 
some lmw ~ piI:ace 1Whrere '\We may have a different approach 
to ~? 1he oms :reason "«Ire need a county jail is to ha\'e 
the peopie 8.'imlahle m be taibn Oi'a:' for' trial Do they have to be 
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deposited there within the county itself? Are we spending too much 
money in rebuilding new buildings and expanding our county sys
tems, when we could have a singular State approach? 

,Mr. FAUVER. 'VeIl, I think there are a couple of responses I 
would like to make to that and then maybe the other gentlemen 
could. 

One is that there is a county sentence in the State, which, be
cause of the lack of severity of that sentence, the person is sen
tenced to the county jail as opposed to the State system. 

Mr. GUARINI. I am talking about low security. Should we get ev
erybody together in one area and get it outside of the town where 
the people do not have the sphere of a prison being in their midst? 
We are a small State. We are only a few miles long and wide, one 
of the smallest States of the Union. Is it necessary for us to build 
21 monuments to criminal justice in each of the counties, or could 
we really coordinate things and make it cheap to operate if we are 
talking about low security? ' 

Mr. FAUVER. I think it could be coordinated. But I would point 
out that even in the rural areas in our States there -is opposition to 
the prisons. I think that other factors, not generally recognized, are 
within the State system in particular. We have a very large 
number of people on minimum security, well over 1,000 of sen
tenced offenders. I am not sure that that, from the State's point of 
view, could be expanded any more and still meet the mandate of 
keeping those people in custody. That is a risk that occurs. 

Now, with the county sentenced inmates, it may be able to re
gionalize. It has not happened. There have been discussions with 
counties in the past to try to regionalize a jail for two or three 
counties and those have continually fallen apart when it came 
down to it. I do not think the only reason is the necessity for the 
trial. There are penalogical reasons. There are reasons for being 
close to your family. If you can get on some kind of work ~elease 
program, the program is in the local area and you just maintain 
that job when you get out. But I would not rule out that idea. 

Mr. GUAIUNI. I was in Russia with the State bar association, Mr. 
Chairman. For minimum offenses, they confined people to their 
houses. Then, if they break that sentence, then they go to jail or 
they go out on the farm, or they go to Siberia if it is bad enough. 
But the fact is, they have a controlled society. We do not have that. 
We have an open society. We do not have a controlled society. 

Chris, you wanted to make a statement. 
Mr. DIETZ. Yes, I did. I wanted to make a point on your question 

about the philosophy of corrections today. I think across the Nation 
we have abanq~med, more than ever before in our history, the reha
bilitative or the medical model treatment. I think we are into the 
business of punishing and incapacitating and deterring. Overcrowd
ing has made it worse, as Bill has pointed out. 

As Warden Cali mentioned, when you use a facility that was de
signed to be used for treatment programs as a bedding and housing 
area, you have lost your treatment program. 

One of the points I did not. make earlier and I think it is impor
tant is that if we are going to have work programs and if we are 
going to have county substitute programs or programs as alterna
tives, I think once and for all we should make a commitment to 
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restitution. I am tired. I have said this publicly before. I am sick of 
hearing the thousands upon thousands of inmates that come ~~fore 
me for parole and I say, U~y -shsuld. we grant :y,ou parole .. and 
they say "Because I did my tune. J. paId my debt. The debt IS not 
paid. I thlnk the victim has absolutely a right to be made whole 
again. If we started insisting-if a person does not have the respect 
and understanding of the wrong he has d:one, th~n may~e we ought 
to think about some greater efforts to InCapacItate hIm. Because 
those are the dangerous people, the people who do not, care what 
they do. , -'. b ? 

Mr. GUARINI. What would those sanctions e.. . 
Mr. DIETZ. You know, it appears as if we are .Just go~ng to have 

to come to the certain reality that weneed to build ma~u~ se~u
rity facilities for people who may not ever be releW?ed In theIr \~~e
time. It really is life without parole. One of the thIngs I hav~ saId 
to people and we have done in New Jersey, and one of the things I 
think co~tributes, much to Mr. Fauver's chagrin, to our !ower re
cidivism rate than we have had in the past for people comIng back, 
is we do not fail in the parole de<:ision.The ind~vidual that we~t 
out failed. If they failed, the one thing I can promIse, as ~ have SaId 
before in speeches to society, the parolee may make a mIstake. We 
make sure that "mistake does not happen soon. So they do more 
time There is no other sanction. , . I 

M;. GUARINI. England had Australia, ~d ~he French had. Devil, s 
Island and French Guinea. We use a Hilton Hotel. There IS a bIg 
difference. 

Thanks very much. ' , . 
Mr. HUGHES. Thank you. I think that y.ou have cont.rlbuted as 

much as any panel that I have heard from m th~ short titpe I have 
been chairman' of this subcommittee,on the subJect of prIson over
crowding, the basic philosophic underpinning of our whole system. 
I am grateful. . 

In H.R. 4481, as you unquestionably ~ow, subsectlox; 9 deals 
with prison overcrowding. In fact, that IS a? area. tha" can. be 
funded. Chris, we envision developing alterna~Ives to mcarceratIOn. 
I appreciate" pa:rticularly, the recommendatIons you have made. 
All three of you. I, too, believe that we ~ave l!nfort.unatelr abal:?-
doned the goal of rehabilitation. We have JUS} given. IIp servIce to It 
over the years. I want to share my colleague s sentunents whe~ ~e 
talks about, not just this administratio.n, but the Carte! ~dmI~IS
tration. You cannot do more with less In the' .area of crimmal J~s
tice. That is the philosophy now. We are gomg to ,do more With 
less. That is"impossible. , ' .. . . . 

Law enforcement and the crimmal Justice system are labor ~-
tensive and they require more resources. We do peed some n,ew 
prisons,moderlJ, ones. 'Ye do need to do a.bettEl):' Job of scre~nmg 
people in ~n~ out of prlsOI,!-s. W ~ are not,. III many areas, domg a 
very good Job. People are m prIson 'Yho 40 not belong there and 
people who do belong there are not m prIson, because we do not 
have the space to provide for them. We are !~leasing people from 
prisonstod~y becaus~ of overcrowded condItIons that really do 
need attentIon. , ', ' . 

We have not done a very good job in screemn~, as I thInk .the 
warden has indicated, people that are there pretrIal. We have Just 
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passed the pretrial services bill, a bill that I developed in, my sub
committee. We found in 10 demonstration Federal Districts 
throughout the country that if we learn a lot more about a defend
ant when he first comes into the system, we can make better bail 
and sentencing decisions. We have people in jail that do not belong 
there. If we had imposed conditions on them, and released them on 
bail, we could have saved the prison space. If we monitor them 
from the time that they come into the system until they appear 
before the court for triru, we will do a better job of making sure 
they appear for trial and that they behave themselves while out on 
bail. Instead of waiting until they are rearrested, if they have a 
drug problem, for instance, or some other problem, we can bring 
them back into the system beforehand, for treatment or more in
tensive supervision, or whatever is required. 

The Pretrial Services Agencies have reduced th,e incidence of pre
trial rearrest. We have saved money. We have saved precious space 
in our prisons. The judges have learned a lot more about defend
ants and are better able to make decisions as to whether defend
ants are .fit subjects to be released on bailor to be sentencedCto pro
bation. 

So that kind of service is something we certainly need a lot more 
of. 

.I could not agree with you more, Chris, and Mr. Fauver also, 
when you say that any prison program has got to have some very 
basic standards. If that jurisdiction does not have those basic stand
ards, if they are not trying to move toward accreditation, then they 
do not deserve those Federal funds. That is the kind of carrot that 
we need in any legislation that moves through Congress. 

I think it is so important for us to do what the Chief Justice sug
gested in Houston a few months back. He made a statement about 
the prison system which, I think. was one of the most important 
statements that has been made, at least in the last couple of dec
ades. He ssid, in essence, that we have to start thinking of prisons 
as factories. I like the idea of paying a prisoner a minimum wage. 
Making him pay for his space in prison. Chris, I agree with you. 
We have got to'start utilizing orders of restitution, so that the de
fendant pays the victim. We have to start paying more attention to 
the victim. 

Mr. DIETZ. Absolutely. 
Mr. HUGHES. That is one of the reasons why we hear so much of 

a hue and cry about warehousing prisons. It is because we have ne
glected the victims of crime. I could not agree with you more. I just 
think you have made' a ve~ important statement, all three of you. 
We are indebted to you. . 

Mr. RODINO. Thank you, gentlemen. 
Mr. FAUVER. Thank you very much. 
Mr. DIETZ. Thank you. 
Mr. HUGllES. Our next panel, on funding, . consists of Mr. Harold 

Damon, director of the New Jersey "Law Enforcement Planning 
Agency and Mr. Michael Vuocolo, president of the New Jersey 
Criminal Planning Association. 

Welcome: We. have your statements which, without objection, 
will be made a part of the record. And you may proceed as you see 
fit. We hope that you can summarize them. 
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TESTIMONY OF HAROLD DAMON, DIRECTOR, NEW JERSEY LAW 
ENFORCEMENT PLANNING AGENCY 

Mr. DAMON. Thank you. I will certainly d? tha~. . . 
I also have on my right, Mr. Donrud.Apru.. ,H~ IS our assIstant dI

rector in charge of planning. I ~ave hIm h~re m case you ask any 
harder questions and I can turn It over to hlIrt. 

Mr. HUGHES. Very good. . . 
Mr. DAMON. I have been with the agency smce 1968. Mr. ~p.al 

has been with us since 1971. As you know, the agency has ad,m~llls
tered the LEAA program. In addition to tllat,. we also adm~lllster 
the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Preventlon Act here m the 
State of New Jersey.' .' 

I would just like to very.briefly say ~hat I was p~eased at some. of 
the remarks I have heard here regarding the quallty of the admm
istration of the program in New Jersey,. and about the ne~d for 
planning and coordination. These are thmgs that I woul~ like to 
say but being the director of the State agency, I am sure It would 
co~e off as somewhat self-serving. S? it C!id please me that other 
people, the consumers of our funds m thls State, have been sup-
portive. . . t ·th H R I would like to say that our agency IS m agreemen Wl •• 
4481 as are our r-rofessional colleagues. We are a member ?f the 
Nati~nal Criminru Justice Association that is also supportIve of 
this legislation. 

I would just like to very briefly state f~)Ur. reasons why Vfe .are 
supportive of it. First, it would proyi~e a ~,ustifiabl~ approprl~tIOn. 
$170 million, the national approprIation, lB'Jnot gomg ~o. turn the 
world around. It would bring to New Jersey about $4 mlll~on worth 
of Federal funds, matched dollar for ~ollar, that ~0':lld ~rmg us ap 
additional $4 million, which would give us $8 mlllIon m 1 year s 
time to develop and to continue .pr?grams tha~ we have alr~ady 
proven in this State tl).at come withm the pUrVlew of that legIsla-

tioS~cond, it preserves the State and local. initiatives to design proj
ects within a framework of'proven, effectlve programs. The 1.2 spe
cific areas of the legislation land the one area that w01:lld gIve us 
the latitude to develop programs ourselves are areas m that we 
have funded in the past, but areas in which we need more help to 
make these particular programs and projects a wider used technol-
()gy here in th~ State of New ~erse~. .. 

Third it pr6motes the contmuatIon of coordmatIOn. And I would 
just lik~ to say that .that. is a ver~ importa~t .thinf?i he!e. We are 
dealing with competmg mterests m the crnrunal Justice system. 
Very rarely do you have a comprehensive criminal justice program 
inclusive of the total systems. For example, early on we· had v~ry 
great difficulty in getting the other branch of Government m
volved that is, the judiciary. The judiciary early felt it did not 
"want t~ become involved in a program that was basically con~rolled 
by the executive branch of Government. As we went along 'Ylt~ the 
LEAA planning and development, we not only secured theIr mf<;»r
mal participation, but t~eir ,:ery a,ctive participation. And the ch~ef 
justice and the admimstrative director of the court and a trlal 
judge are members of our State law enforcement planning agency 
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government board and have participated very actively in the pro
gram here in New Jersey. We also have local government involved 
and all of the different components of the criminal justice system, 
who come together and who design projects and programs and 
monitor them and hear the results at our meetings. So I would like 
to say that this coordination is invaluable here in the State, where 
we can all work with each other. 

And further, I would say that the success that the LEAA pro
gram has had here in New Jersey is not because we had an elitist 
group of professional know-it-alls at the top who were designing 
projects and telling everybody what they ought to do. It was not 
that way in this State. We had an active involvement of local gov
ernment, local executives in the criminal justice system, as well as 
each component at the State level who got together and worked 
with us to develop effective programs and projects. It has been a 
magnificent effort herein the State of New Jersey, not because of 
SLEPA staff, but because of the practioners who had the foresight 
and the knowledge to develop strategies that were funded here. 

And, of course, another and the last important thing that I 
would like to mention is, I cannot emphasize the importance of 
having the Federal Government involved and expressing its con
cern in what is happening at the State and local level. The Federal 
Government should not divorce itself. by saying that it is a local 
problem or a State problem. We need its active involvement, not 
only in research and statistics, but in providing funds and giving us 
the technical assistance that they can provide; in actually coming 
to the local scene and helping us to solve very critical problems. 
Crime is a national problem, and not exclusively a local problem. 

So I would just close by saying I appreciate being here and 
having Chairman Hughes and Congressman Guarini and Congress
man Rodino as New Jersey Representatives. These are people 
whose names I hear on our boards and in professional organization
al groups when we are talking about legislati.on and what the gov
ernmentis doing. And very frankly, I am proud that you people 
are our Representatives, because when I hear your names I C~l 
say, "Hey, they are from New Jersey and we are really doingsome~ 
thing about the problem." So I appreciate and thank you for this 
opportunity. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much. . 
[prepared statement of Harold F. Damon follovrs:] 

PREl'.O\RED S'l'ATEMENT OF HAROLDF. DAMON 

Thank you for the opportunity to present my views- at this hearing. I am Harold 
Damon, acting executive director of the State Law Enforcement Planning Agency. 
Our agency administers the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act and is 
the State Planning Agency Responsible for the Closeout of the LEAA program. At 
the present time, there are about 500 grants that require final attention' with ap
proximately 160 still active under the two acts. There is a firm commitment to 
assure that the fiscal and programmatic responsibiliti8s given to the State of New 
Jersey will be carried out during the phase out of the LEAA program. 

What is the legitirrmte role of the Federal Government in the area of crime con
trol? There are differences of opinion at an levels of Government. The great prepon
d(lrance of criminal justice responsibility rests with State, COU'llty and municipal 
government, particularly in those afjpects of crime that engender the greatest public 
concern, violent street crime. Our experience with the LEAA program has shown 
that State and local agencies are pleased to receive monetary and technical assist· 
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ance provided there is u minimum of Federal interference and compliance require
ments that appear arbitrary and in some instances poorly suited to the local envi-
ronment. -

It has been said many times, and rightly so, that the expressed expectations of the 
1968 Safe Streets Act to substantially reduce if not solve the Nation's crime prob
lems doomed the program to fail. Nevertheless, the block grant mechanism that 
gave initiative to the State, and through the State to count-.i and municipal govern
ments to devL<>e strategies for using Federal resources that forwarded goals and ob
jectives particularized to the local needs and problem'>, was philosophically sound 
and remains valid today. By all reasonable standards, the Safe Streets Act of 1968 
did not fail. 

The role of the Federal Government today in providing Federal funds for crime 
control of course must be equated with the prevailing economic conditions and 
prioritized among all the competing demands for the use of Federal doUars. Cri~e is 
an area of great concern throughout our Nation. As a person who has worked in 
this area throughout my working career, I am tempted to promote Federal support 
that will be sufficient to make a perceptable difference in strengthening criminal 
~w:,iice proc~s. While t}.iP.; positi?u 7Bn be rationalized as le~timate for Federal 
mvestm~nt, l~ may n?t be prudent m bght of the current econonuc recession. 

. The bIll R.R. 4481 mtroduced by Congressman William Hughes is an excellent ve
hicle to assert a reasonable level of Federal participation in the control of serious 
c~e. First, i~ ,,:ould ,provide a jus~ifiable appropriation of Federal dollars. A na
tional approprIation of $170,000,000 IS a modest sum but sufficient to meet the legis
la?0!1's objectives. Secondly, it preserves State and local initiative to design projects 
WI.thin a framework of proven effective programs. Thirdly, it promotes the continu
ation of coordination among competing crimiaal justice entitiesi and, most impor
tantl~l It.0rt:ers the m~ for .the Federal Government to exp~ its concern and to 
exerCISe lts mfluence m an area that affects every American CItizen. 

I m~t state that ~ur agency was very pleased that R.R. 4481 received such over
whehnmg suppport 'Ill the House of Representatives including a unanimous vote in 
favor by the .New Jerse~ delegation. ~ew Jersey would receive about $4 million 
each,year. Wlt!t the x:equired m~tch, this ,,:ould then produce $8 million to provide 
funding. to projects amIed at CrIme reduction or system improvement. State level 
control m cooperation with the counties and municipaHties has proven successful 
over the last 14 years in this State. 
Th~ following.is a listing of the 13 areas of permissible program areas included in 

the bill along WIth our perceptions of the continued need for funding and New Jer-
sey's experience within these areas: . 

1. CoJ?lDunity. based progr~ in cooperation with thf:1lolice for the control and 
prevention of CrIme have receIved support from our agency in many of the larger 
urban areas., Need still exists for the expansion of the suburban and rural areas 
where the cr~me problel!ls continue to escalate. Crime prevention should be the job 
of every police officer 10 cooperation with the citizens of the communities they 
serve. T!> serve ~maller ~reas, we. wer~ able to fund a few county-wide resource cen
teI? whIch PFoVld7 pubhc educatlOn materials and training for police departments. 

f
This need still eXISts and could be expanded statewide with the addition of Federal 
unds. 

2. Several Sting operations have been run with categorical grants under the 
LEAA pr~a!D' ~tate funds were never available because of the declining block 
grants b~mg ~n ~~76. Passage of H.R. 4481 would permit a consideration of this 
program 10 the prlOl'ltles of the State. 

3 .. Arson w~ a priority !n 1980 but again only a few of the larger jurisdictions 
recelyed fundmg. A. state~de effort received discretionary funding but there is an 
ongo~g need to tram qualified arson investigators from the enforcement and fire
fight~g c~mponents. Ther~ continues to be the need to improve collection of data, 
lOvestlgatlOn ~~d prosecutIon of. this serious crime which not only takes lives but 
affects every ~ltIzen of ~he State 10 terms of increased insurance premiums. 

4. Prosecu~lOn of whlte collar crime organized crime and fraud continues to be 
Fong. the highest .priorities of the atU;rney general of the State. New Jersey has a 
ong history of actively pursUIng these areas through to convictions. Assistance to 

augment State resources a~d the receipt of technical assistance are needed. An ex
ample ~f t!te State'~ comnutment has been the vigilance shown in the oversight of 
the casmo md~try lD Atlantic City. . 

5. Car~r c:nmuial and improved case processing have been successfully imple
mend~ m thIS. State. Again, resources were limited and the effort could not be eX£: e stateWIde .. Related to the process used to target the habitual offender has 

n the outstandIng effort of the system to combat coux:-t backlog and to provide 
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speedy trials. A cooperative venture is underway to assure the constitutional guar
antee of the disposition .of criminal complaints as swiftly as possible. As an aside, 
the New Jersey Legislature has appropriated $500,000 to be distributed through 
SLEPA to reduce court backlog. 

6. New Jersey has a statewide office to provide information to victims of crimes 
and also participated in the national program for the improvement of juror utiliza
tion and management. The juror pool has been expanded to include all licensed 
drivers and several counties have begun one-day-one-trial programs. There .is inter
est in expanding this effort statewide and the addition of incentive fu~ds WQuid 
speed the process. The law abiding citizens' contact with the criminal justice system 
frequently comes only when they are victims or are asked to serve as jurors. Much 

• work needs to be done to assure that both circumDtances are handled with compas
sion and efficiency. 

7. New Jersey has been one of the leaders in providing pre-trial intervention in 

.. 

both the adult and juvenile courts. These efforts were begun with LEAA funds and 
have become institutionalized. Need still exists for improved systems to screen these 
individuals in jails and detention centers as well as to provide community based al
ternatives to serve the needs of these individuals for whom incarceration is not nec-
essary for either rehabilitation or public safety. . 

8. There is presently operating a treatment alternative to street crimes (TASC) 
project in the State. This discretionary program is the only program scheduled to 
receive Federal funding in the current Federal fIscal year. The need exists statewide 
but this effort is covering only part of the State. 

9. Probably our most pressing need is the next area included in the bill-prison 
overcrowding. All of the juvenile and adult facilities have experienced populations 
over capacities. Approximately 1,300 prisoners sentenced to State facilities are being 
housed in county institutions awaiting openings. Needs exist to moniter the problem 
and seek solutions through alternatives or improved processing. 

10. Training, management and technical assistance continue to be needed to 
assure efficient operations in times of limited resources. Too frequently government 
cuts back the training and planning budget when revenues become scarce. We are 
then left with employees who fall behind in their skills and cannot perform to the 
optimum of their abilities. 
. 11. The need to continue the coordination among the various parts of the criminal 
justice system was perhaps the most valuable lesson learned through the LEAA ex
perience. In New Jersey all 567 municipalities, the 21 counties and the three 
branches of the State government are involved in the administration of criminal 
justice. This State probably serves as the model for having the most components of 
the system which are unified to one degree or another. Our public defender system 
is totally unified, the court system has strong control by the Supreme Court but not 
total State funding, prosecution is under complete control by the Attorney General 
and the County Prosecutor is the chief law enforcement officer in each county. Even 
with this level of coordination and control, communication channels and an inde
pendent vehicle for the allocation of the Federal resources is needed. 

12. New Jersey is the first State to implement a statewide PROMIS system in con
junction with a court management system (GAVEL). This system, funded with 
Bureau of Justice statistics grants, will be operational in 14 of the state's 21 coun
ties by 1985. The remaining counties will receive technical assistance to improve 
their manual systems in anticipation of future needs when· computerization might 
be needed. The most pressing need is to expand these systems to serve the Juvenile 
Justice System. The State has made a commitment to implement a nationally devel
oped juvenile system (JISRA), but technic~ assistance and programing aid is 
needed. 

13. This last section which allows a small portion of the funds to be used for inno-
vative programs is an excellent compromise to allow the States flexibility to develop 
promising new efforts while using the remaining 90 percent to replicate projects of 
proven effectiveness. 

I have concentrated on the part of the bill which addresses the block grant pro
gram because I feel that this is the place where New Jersey has the greatest need. 
In conclusion, this bill represents a major improvement over the JSIA Act. It can 
work and it will help in the difficult task to administer justice. 

I would be happy to respond to any questions you might have. 

lVir. HUGHES. Mike, do you have something? 

__ o,,-------_~ ____ _ 
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TESTIMONY OF MICHAEL VUOCOLO, PRESIDENT, NEW JERSEY 
CRIMINAL PLANNING ASSOCIATION 

" 

Mr. VUOCOLO. Thank you. The association that I represent is the 
New Jersey Criminal Justice Planning Association. The criminal 
justice planners are those people in the counties and municipalities 
throughout New Jersey who are responsible f017 developing pro. 
grams and projects to improve the criminal justice system and to 
acquire Federal funds. 

Naturally, our association overwhelmingly supports H.R. 4481, 
and in the event that this legislation is not approved, there are sev
eral serious concerns that I think have to be addressed. 

First of all, someone asked the question before, I believe it was 
Chairman Rodino, as to another witness, if he felt that local gov~ 
ernment would be able to shoulder the burden in the future. I 
think in the absence of any type of Federal funding, they are not 
going to be able to. One thing that New Jersey has-you may be 
familiar with it-is the "cap legislation," which limits the expendi
tures that counties and municipalities can layout for new pro. 
-grams and for any type of service whatsoever. So as a result of that 
problem, unless something reached epidemic proportions, I do not 
think you would see anything on the preventative end from the 
municipalities to start any type of new services as far as law en
forcement is concerned. 

The second problem, should the legislation not be approved, is 
that we would not have the ability to replicate those programs 
throughout the Nation which we know were tried and proven and 
they work. One case in point is the career criminal prosecution bill, 
which I am sure you are familiar with. The others are the arson 
programs that have been implemented and the crime prevention 
programs and things like that; We do not have a situation where a 
county prosecutor in this county can say, ttWe really do need a 
career criminal program." He lacks the fmancial resources to get 
that program off the ground. 

Another problem is that in losing the ability to begin new serv
ices, we are not sure that we will have the capability in the future 
to divert those cases out of the criminal justice system that. could 
be more effectively handled elsewhere. We have seen juvenile of
fenders placed in treatment programs so that probation officers can 
dedi(,a,te more time with those clients that need a greater effort. In 
the absenc~_of this, I do not see how probation officers or other 
court personnel would be able to harltdle the increased caseload. 

The final thing is that today in New Jersey there is a network of 
people in both State and county governments that have a compre
hensive, understanding of both the criminal justice system and Fed
eral funding. People in my ~sociation! my counterparts in the 
other counties and people in Mr. Damonls agency, know what New 
J~rsey and their respective jurisdictions need. They are familiar 
~th all of the players and they are familiar with the administra
tI~n of Federal funds. And I thjnk that l"»1Y delay in this appropri
at!o~ or .any vacuum that was created could possibly result in the 
elunmatlOn of those people. And some day,even if it is 2 or 5 or 10 
years from now, we are going to talk about taking people to start a 
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new crime control program, that are going to have to be entirely 
retrained. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much. 
[Prepared statement of Michael F. Vuocolo follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MICHAEL J!'. VUOCOLO 

Chairman Rodino, Members of the Committee. Thank you for providing me the 
opportunity to communicate on behalf of the New Jersey Criminal Justice Planning 
Association. , 

The Association is composed of individuals throughout New Jersey who are pri
marily engaged in upgrading the performance of the Criminal Just.ice System in the 
State. Traditionally, the Planners are those persons engaged in the acquisition of 
Federal Crime Control funds for use in their respective local governmental jurisdic
tions. Needless to say, we have become extremely familiar with presence of federal 
assistance for over more than a decade and the impact that such funds have in our 
counties and municipalities. 

Today, we meet to examine the role of the United States government in respond
ing to the ever increasing rate of crime in America. One could point to the fact that 
10 years of L.E.A.A. efforts may not clearly demonstrate any reduction in the 
amount of criminal activity which occurs. But there are several relevant factors to 
be considered before making any final determinations. 

Of primary concern is the ability of local government to adequately combat crime 
in the future. 

Here in New Jersey, counties and municipalities must operate under a state im
posed budget cap. The Legislation is designed to limit local spending in an effort to 
stabilize real property tax levies. Under such an arrangement, municipalities are 
not often in a position to ,add police manpower, initiate new projects or expand ex-
isting services. , 

A second item concerns the painful truth that several tried and proven remedies 
may never be applied to other locations. 

The Career Criminal Prosecution Program is a case in point where, without 80me 
initial outside funding, a County Prosecutor may lack the financial reSOurces to get 
such a program off the ground. Other examples are the programs designed to pre
vent arson and burglary that some areas may never be able to replicate due to the 
lack of start-up funding required. 

The final concern is that we may some day lose the ability to divert those cases 
from the Criminal Justice System which may be handled in a more effective 
manner elsewhere. ' 

We have seen minor juvenile offenders placed in treatment programs so that Pro
bation Officers can concentrate their efforts on dealing with the more serious of
fender. There are plans on the board to place adults who have not committed seri
ous offenses in Community Service rather than imposing a jail sentence on them. 
Measures such as this are extremely important as we are faced with the problem of 
overcrowded jails today. 

I can assure you that it is not likely that such programs would exist had it not 
been for funds granted through L.E.A.A. " . ' 

National forecasts indicate that crime will continue to increase. Without a Feder
al program to provide financial and technical assistance, one must ask if the Na
tion's best interests are being addressed. 

H.R. 4481 appears to be a modest approach to the problem of crime which has 
plagued our society for too many yearS. Although I am certain that there are those 
who would prefer a larger appropriation, the specific, targeted plan seems to offer 
an appropriate IInew beginning" for a National partnership in crime control. 

Additionally, even a temporary vacuum caused by a delay in re-establishing a 
Crime Control Program could result in the loss of personnel throughout this state 
who have a comprehensive understanding of both the criminal justice system and 
the administ.ration of Federal funds. 

Thank you. I will be happy to answer any questions you may h4ve. 

Mr. HUGHES. I am indebted to both of you for yC'lUr support, your 
strong support of H.R. 4481. I do not know whether th8lfolks know 
Mike. I know your' dad is a very ableassistaht to, Congressman 
Guarini and we are just delighted to have you here. 

Mr. VUOCOLO. I am very fortunate. I have two Congressmen. 

... ~------- ---- ---~ -
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Mr. HUOJUt8, That is right. And we are just delighted to have 
your statement. And speaking of being proud, Mr. Damon, if all the 
planning agenci.cs throughout the country were as effective and 
had done as good a job as New Jersey has, we probably would not 
have had some of the problems we have had. And it is unfortunate 
that, I think we. overproud.sed to som. e .extent and un.d.erdelivered. 
LEAA was always billed as the program. that w~ ~oing to solve 
crime. Well, anytime you bill a program like that, It IS bound ~ be 
oversold. You cannot do that. The most you can hope to do lS to 
come to grips with the problem and minimize the impact of the 
criminal element on society~ 

But you are to be commended. You have done a good job as Di-
rector of the agency and we appreciate your work. 

Mr. DAMON. Thank you very much. I would like to add one othe! 
thing. That is that we would a~o appreciate support and appropri
ation for the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act, 
which haa been e~inated from President Reagan's budget. It was 
restored last year by CongreBg and we desperately need the funds 
that were given under that act.. . 

Mr. HUGHES. I agree. You might be happy to hear that I ap-
peared just about 10 days ago, and testified before the Budget Com
mittee to ask them to restore $9.5 million or thereabouts for the 
juvenile justice program. . ~." 

The gentleman from New Jersey, Mr. Guanm. 
Mr. GtJAlUNl. IIaroid and Mike, I thank you very mu~h for y~:mr 

testimony and appreciate your being here.. In planrung, I Just 
wonder whether or not any consideration has h.een given to the 
educationpbase of our youth in ~mmar and high ~hool, where 
they would be aware of what to do .In t~e event there l:S a robbefj", 
a burglary, in event there is an arson, m event there lS a ra~l ill 
event there is an assault or a mugging. You know1 we leave It to 
the parents to educate the youth in regard to sex, in regard to so 
many vital areas

t 
in nutrition and things lik7 that. But 1. am won

dering whether or not there should be room m our pl~g to ad
dress the young people and minimize: the. impact of .cnme ~d 
sometimes even help to prevent the cnme Itself by theII' knowmg 
what to do. Crime is not only for the adults to be av.:are of. You 
could bring the youth into the circle. I am just wonderu:g whe~her 
or not any consideration in your planning has been or WIll be gIVen 
to that aspect. . ~ I 

Mr. ,DAMON. We have funded a number of proJects t?at at east 
partially address the concern you just stated. We have ~ded, for 
example, crime prevention programs wh.ere people go moo the 
schools and school assemblies and through schoo! counselorsJ do 
counsel children regarding problems that Y0l! mentioned. . 

Mr. GUARINI. All right, But I am talk)n~ about ,even .gomg 
beyond that, by making it an educational reqwrement m the~r cur
riculum where the teachers themselves would be aware <!f It and 
that the stude~t wou!d be then more cognizant w1!an. a cnme dohes 
occur and he lS not ill shock and taken by surpnse, and that e 
already has a concept of what he should do. ~. 

Mr. DAMON. I would say we have ~ot r~ ~"!le m;o that. 
Mr. GUARlNI. But it is worth conSlderation1 lS It not. 
Mr. DAMON, I would think so. 
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Mr. GUARINI. I would like to see you push it in the school sys-
tenas. . 

Mr. DAMON. OK; fine. 
Mr. GUARINI. It doe~ not cost anything, because you have the 

school systems already ill place. All you have to do is tell the teach
er~{to extend their course for a couple of hours sometime during 
the term of the year as to how young people could handle them
selves and how they could help their parents. 

Mr. DAMON. Fine. 
Mr. GUARINI. OK. Thank you very nauch. 
Mr. DAMON. Thank you. 
Mr .. HUGHES. I.think 0I?-e of the things that we can do and I try 

to do It anyway 18 to go mto the schools and talk with the young 
people abo~t their rights and responsibilities. And I find they are 
very receptIve. 

Mr. DAMON. Yes. . 
~r. HUGHES. Thank you. We appreciate very much your contri

butlOn. 
Mr. GUARINI. Thank you very much. . 
Mr. HUGHES. Our final panel this morning consists of Mr. Robert 

Grayson, the director of the crime victims advocate program; Mr. 
Theodore F~eeman of the Urban League of Hudson County; Mr. 
Arthur FabIan of the Concerned S.~nior Citizens Association; Ms. 
L?cy Par~es,.president of the Hudson County PTA; Mr. Eliu 
RIvera, drrector of PACO, Inc.; and Mr. William O'Day of the 
Hudson County Citizens Against Crime. 

Mr. Grayson, I understand you are going to be the spokesman. 
Mr. GRAYSON. Yes. 
Mr. HUGHES. Welcome. We are happy to have you. We have your 

statements which, without objection, will be made a part of the 
record and we hope that you can summarize then for us, 

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT GRAYSON, CHAIRMAN, NEW JERSEY 
COUNCIL ON CRIME VICTIMS, CRIME VICTIM ADVOCATE CITY 
OF PATERSON ' 

Mr. GRAYSON .. Y~s; I will. Let me open by saying that 7 years 
ago, I was the Vlctun of a violent crime in Parsippany, N.J. I was 
beaten up by four m.en as I was returnn1g home from work. And as 
a result of that beatmg I was permanently blinded in my right eye. 
Just FO say that in opening is to say that I have, unfortunately 
been Involved in the system as a victim. . ' 
~d I f?un~ tha.t crime victims are the forgotten element in the 

crlm~al Justlce system. I do not think we can talk about solving 
the C!lme unless w~ talk a~out qoing ~omet~il~g to help the victims 
of crIme. I found, ill working WIth CrIme Vlctims and having gone 
~hrou~h. the system myself, that the criminal justice system is very 
mseJ?-~lt~ve to the needs of ?ri!De victims. And as a result, that in
sensItlvlty has led many vlCtIms no~ to. report· crimes, many wit
nesses not to come forward and testIfy, And what we have here is 
the system defeating itself. ; 

Many crime victims ~eel that the mQst attention that they have 
go~ten frona anywher~ I~ the whole process was while they were 
bemg mugged. The crImmals focused their full attention on them. 
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But after that, the criminal justice system did not even treat them 
as a stepchild, just did not treat them at all.. .. . 

And I think when we are talking about helpmg Vlct1ll1S. of cnme, 
we are not talking about a lot of money. V!e are .talking ~b~ut 
doing things, extending the common cour~esles, tel!in~ the Vlctlm 
of the progress of a case, for instance. Telling the ~ctIm ~hen the 
date of sentencing is. If the victim cannot make It, ~a~m~ sure 
that they know what the sentence is. Involving the, ,?-ctl~ In ~he 
plea bargainings. Telling them that a ple~ bargrumng IS be~ng 
made and why it is being made and what It has meant. Ma}rmg 
sure that restitution works effectively. It does not work effectively 
now. Very few people ever see restitution made. . ' . 

I will give you a very simple ex~mple of 'YVhen we are talking 
about restitution. When your car lS stolen In the State of .N~w 
Jersey and it is found by the police department, when the Vlct1ll1 
goes down to get it back, ther~ is a recovery charge. Us~ally about 
$35, for towing that car in. If It had. to .b~ stored, there IS !l stora~e 
charge. Now if we apprehend the ll~di,?-~ual that com~lt~ed thIS 
crime the judge does not make that mdlVIdual pay the VlctIm that 
money back. And that was the person who causeq th.e problem. 
And that is the least we could do on a level of restItution and we 
do not even do that. 

So I feel that we can do a lot, because sensitivity does not cost 
anything. Extending the common courtesies does ~ot cost anything. 
We have prosecutor's offices. We have secretarIes and we have 
phones and we have postage. All we have to do is put in that ele
ment of the victim and include them in the system. And we do not 
do that right now. 

And I often get the question, "Why should the Federal Govern
ment do that?" And the answer to that is, because the rights. of the 
criminal are protected on the Federal level. ~rom th~ ~l,randa 
rights and a host of other landmark court declSions. CrImInals are 
guaranteed that their rights are going to be protecte~ anywhere 
they go in this country. Victims have to hope that, If they are 
mugged, they are fortunate enough to be in a locality that under
stands the needs of a victim of crime. And I think what the Federal 
Government has to do is take a stand in this area. Say that we 
want to see a mandatory way of informing victims of what the out
come of a trial is, of a grand jury action, of contacting victims 
whose property is found and getting it bac~_ to them. ~ 

When we train our police officers, to train them on, not only 
working with the person they apprehend, but with the victim. Be
cause statistics show that only 19 percent of the criminals are ever 
apprehended, but the police come in contact with 100 perc~nt of 
the victims. Yet, we do not have any training for the polIce on 
what to do when they do come in contact with that victim. 

On one other note, I would like to add that I feel it is very impor
tant in working with victims and in crime prevention, as well, that 
we work with the community groups. And if we do have more fund
ing available, that we give community groups priority conside~a
tion. Not in phase 2, but in phase 1, so that these commumty 
groups that are working in the neighborhoods can stay alive. Be
cause they have the ability to . make constant contributions. So 
often we see a community program that is going strong and that is 
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stopped dead in its tracks. And I think we have to work to make 
sure that these programs continue to function. 

Ido not only serve as a Crime Victim Advocate in the city of Pa
terson, I serve as chairman of the New Jersey Council on Crime 
Victims, which is a statewide civic volunteer group to help the vic
tims of crime. And I have seen that group make great gains be
cause it .involves the citizens, it involves the communities, it in
volves volunteers. And it is an awful thing to see groups like that 
snuffed out. Because when funds do become available, first we run 
to Government agencies and these other groups fall by the wayside. 

Just one other note along that line. It was disturbing to fmd out 
that 25 percent of the rape crisis units that were started in the 
early 1970's, all civic community groups, have gone out of business 
because of the lack of funds. And yet, the statistics on rape show 
that rape has gone up 13 percent. That is just one area where you 
see a civic group existed and died and the need is still there. 

So, what I feel has to be made is a commitment, a commitment 
to the victims of crime and a commitment to the community 
groups that are out there to help them and help them from becom
ing victims of crime. And that commitment does not cost anything. 
The Federal Government takes a stand, these are procedures we 
would like to see followed. We have a system in place. It can be 
done. We just need someone to lead the way. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much. 
[prepared statement of Robert Grayson follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF ROBERT GRAYSON, CRIME VICTIM ADVOCATE, CITY OF 
PATERSON, CHAIRMAN, NEW JERSEY CoUNCIL ON CRIME VICTIMS 

The federal government must get involved in protecting the rights of crime vic
tims. The federal government's failure to do so up until now, has left the law-abid
ing citizen and the innocent victim of crime at a decided disadvantage, Why? Because 
the right of the suspect and the criminal are protected on the federal level. These 
individuals can look to the Miranda decision and numerous other landmark court 
rulingS to protect their rights on a nationwide basis. They can depend on their 
rights ~ing pr~tecte~ and servic~s to. \~sis~ them (such as the public defender's 
office) bemg avrulable manystate m thIS natIon. 

Victims, unfortunately, have no such assurance that their rights will be protected. 
Victims must hope that they are mugged. assaulted or robbed in a state progressive 
enough to recognize the rights of crime victims. Those states are few, and even 
there the effort is superficial. . " 

What is lacking is leadership-leadership that must come from the top: the feder
al government. The federal government must show that it is concerned about the 
innocent victim of crime. And concern does not'only have to be shown in dollars and 
cents. Certainly money is an essential part of any program. But a great deal can be 
done to help the crime victim without spending any money at all. 

For instance, those in the criminal justice system-the prosecuting attorneys, the 
judges, the police-are insensitive to the needs of crime victims. No wonder victims 
are disenchanted with the system. As it now stands, innocent victims who turn to 
the criminal justice system for help, have a good chance of becoming victims 
again-this time at the hands 1)f a system that is blind to their needs. 

Crime victims and witnesses are the most valuable asset the criminal justice 
system has. They are the nuts and bolts of the system. Without their testimony, 
there is no case,and criminals go free. But the criminal justice system does not 
treat victims and witnesses as though they were valuable assets. The system does 
not even extend the common courtesies to these people. No one lets them know the 
outcome of a grand jury action or a trial, or when the date of sentencing for a crimi
nal is. Instead, we use victims and witnesses and then discard them. 

What does sensitivitl cost? What does common courtesy cost? These are things 
that can be instituted In the criminal justice system in every state and every juris
diction immediately. And the federal government can lead the way by developing a 
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d tory basis procedure that guarantees that crime victims' ri~hts anddthe righ1ts
d man a . fi rd to testify are safeguarded, ThlB proce ure wou 

0bf the Wltnhesst es alwho com toe Morl'rwana da rights for the crime victim and witness. For in-
e somew a an ogous '" . . b all d to ke tate nt tan 't h Id be mandatory that a crime VlctIm e owe . rna . a s me 

s . Ci 1 th ~~ntencing of a criminal. That statement, whether ~t be WrItten <?r oral, 
~~~rd incl~de the nature and extent of ~y injuries-both, phYSical and et;n0tIonal
that the victim suffered, as well as fmancIB:l.Ioss, and the Impact of the CrIme on the 
victim's family This can be done at no additional expense. .... 

The victim ~d witness should be guaranteed protection from m~ld~tI?n at t~e 
h d f th ., . al Tough laws with stiff penalties for those who mtImldate VIC
ili:s ~d wit~~:e~ should be adopted in every state, with the federal government 
drawing up a national model. tabl' h ~ 1 

The federal government should mandate that each state es IS a.lorma
b 

Pd'ce-
dure for notifying victims and witnesses of the progress of a case. This ~an e one 
t ., al expense and it's an outrage that in 1982 victims were kept m the dar~ 
:b~Uheir own case. And it is their own case. Because. eyen tho~gh the .s~pect IS 
th t 'al l't lB' the victim who has suffered the. lllJury. It IS the VlctIm who e one on n , t' , . t th suspect has suffered the loss. The. victim makes the prosec:u Ion s cas7 agams e., .' 
The least the prosecuting attorney's office can do m return, IS keep the Vlctim In-

formed of the progress of the case. . h] b 
Let's involve crime victims in plea bargains to~, ,by u:lhng them w. en !'- p ea ar-

gain is being offered, by explaining to them ~hy It s bemg done, bl explammg what 
it means. Why don't we include them? What s the cost factor here. 

This is something that should have been done long ~o an~ the federal,go.vern
ment can lead the way to eliminating this injustice by mandatmg that the Vlctim be 
included in plea bargaining procedures. . h ld' 

Any why not include the victim's viewpoint in parole p~armgs? Why s ou n t 
parole board members have the victim's input when decldmg ~vh~ther to grant a 
criminal early release? A parole board sh?uJ.d !rn0~ whether a victim has recovered 
before the criminal responsible for those mJuz:e~ lB. released. A p!;lrol.e board should 
know the viciousness of a crime, the lasting lllJ,unes that were lnt1IC~: A parole 
board should know if the victim was given a lifetime sentence by the crlIDmal. 

Let's take a look at criminal justice vs. victi~ j~tice, . 
The difference between the treatment the VlctIm gets and the treat,ment the sus-

ect or criminal receives is glaring, For instance, when ~he ~uspect lB arres~ he 
~ust be informed of his rights, he receives medical attention if necessary, he, IS pro
vided with an attorney if he ~o~ afford ,!ne;, and he may be !ele!lSed on ball or on 
his own recognizance. All thlB whIle the Victim usually remams lBolated and trau-
matized by the criminal act. , . 

During or prior to the trial, the suspect has various nghts he can count on, m
cluding the opportunity to plea bargain, to get a change of venue, to delay, and post
pone the trial, to invoke the Fifth Amendment, to move ¥> ~uppress eVldence! to 
move to be acquitted by reason of i~ity, to move to dlBmlss charges, and If a 
guilty verdict is rendered, to enjoy the rIght to appeal, 

At the time of sentencing, the criminal has a pre-sentence study pr2Sented to t.he 
judge on his behalf, and through his .attorney, the, s~spec~ also has the op.p?rtum~y 
to present alternatives to incarceration, If the crImmal IS sentenced to Jad, he IS 
provided with room and board, access to free medical treatment, psychological c.o?U
seling alcohol and drug rehabilitation, job counseling, educational opportumbes, 
the opportunity to participate: in work-release an,d. ot~er m~u!D secu~ity pro
grams, and the eligibility for early parole, All thlB while th,e Ylctim contmues to 
suffer psychologically, financially or both, as a result of the crlmmnl act. 

The protection of ,the rights o~ an individua,l, c~iminals in.cl,!-d~, ~ important to 
the continuation ofa democratic system of JustIce, The VlqtUns rIghts advocacy 
movement does not advocate the curtailment of any of the rlghts that protect sus
pects and criminals. Victims and their advocates do ask, however~~ that the scales of 
justice be balanced, . .': 

In comparing the rights of cri~als t? the rig~ts of cl'lm~ ~ctimG, how far d07s 
the inequality go? To answer this question, conSider what VlctImS must endure m 
the aftermath of a crime. • 

First of all, victims are rarely treated with care and understandillg by law. eI1-
forcement officials. Because most police academies and even university-level cnml
nal justice programs ?eglect the psychological, demands of la~ enfC?rc~ment, few 
police officers are eqUipped to handle the emobonal needs of crIme VIctims. A vast 
majority of countie;> a~d municipalitie;; throughout the coun,try d<? n.ot have set pro· 
cedures or even guldehnes on how pollce should handle a crime victim: the problem 
here is that sensitivity cannot be legislated. , 
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Too often the police look upon the crime victim as just another unfortunate statis
tic, another person in the wrong place at the wrong time. The victim's trauma is 
often dismissed as unfounded hysteria; the victim's concerns and questions are often 
disregarded. Tragically, the victim of a violent crime is treated in a lackadaisical 
fashion; those victims of non-violent crimes are barely acknowledged. 

Consider, for example, how burglaries are commonly approached by police: If the 
victim was not hurt, the police often find it hard to believe that the individual is 
truly traumatized by the crime. The victim's shock alld dismay as a consequence are 
frequently overlooked. Law enforcement officials, typically more concerned with vio
lent crimes, rarely grasp the sense of personal violation felt by a burglary victim. 
Not only has the burglar broken into the victim's home, but he has also rifled 
through the victim's belongings. At the same time, the victim is left with many un
settling questions: What were they after? Have they been watching my home for 
some time? Were they specifically after my home? Who are they? Will they be 
back? 
. These victims turn to the police for reassurance. They want to feel that the police 
will be looking for their stolen items and for the criminals who violated their 
homes. And though the police often have hundreds of such cases a week, the victim 
wants to hear more than flip answers such as, "Well, this stuff is probably gone 
forever." 

From the start, then, victims are given a glimpse of the hard road ahead if they 
are to pursue justice. But they require more than immediate reassurance, which is 
usually rendered in a glib or superficial manner, if at all; they also need continuing 
information regarding their case, and services which will allow them to effectively 
participate, and as painlessly as possible, in the judicial process, 

Victims are responsible not only for solving their own physical, mental, and eco
nomic problems resulting from the crime; they are also responsible for assisting the 
criminal justice system by reporting the crime, identifying suspects, and testifying 
in court. But regardless of these demands, they are generally not informed of their 
case's progress. 

In many cases, crimes involving small property losses are glossed over; the 
number of property crhnes that reach the police usually precludes through investi
gations for each case, As a result, police officers may indicate at the scene that they 
will "try their best," but for many victims this is the last they will hear from the 
criminal justice system. Unless SOIne hard evidence is found in the near future or a 
suspect is apprehended, victims are typically kept in the dark regarding the investi-
gation of their case, . 

During the pre-trial period, victims and witnesses are responsible for providing 
their own transportation to the police department and prosecuting attorney's office. 
They also must absorb any fmanciallosses that result from taking time off work to 
participate in pre-trial activities. The frustration is magnified if they continue to re
ceive little or no information on. the case's progress. 

In all too many cases, victims who are unable to be present at the trial are not 
notified of the outcome of the proceedings. The are not notified or asked to be 
present at the time of sentencing. And of course, in cases of parole where the victim 
is rarely contacted or asked for imput, once parole is granted, the victim is not even 
informed that the criminal is back on the street, 

Overall, victims whQ are not satisfied with how the system handled their case 
have no recourse, The victim's attorney represents the state, not the individual
and the victim has no right to appeal the verdict, 

Many victims live in fear of retaliation and are forces to continue living with the 
fears, damages and injuries connected with the crime. Psychological and vocational 
rehabilitation comes to victims at their own expense, and it is up to the victim alone 
to find these services, And, of course, through taxes, victims continue to support a 
system that places little importance on asElisting them throughout their ordeal. 

As a result of the criminal justice system's treatment of victims, many victims are 
reticent to report crimes that are committed against them. "Why bother?" they ask. 
"Nobody cares, nothin~ happens." Witnesses to crimes are even more hesitant to 
come forward, fearing mvolvement that will entail little more than frustration and 
inconvenience. 

Testifying in court can be a frightening prospect jf the victim or witnesses have 
never been involved in trial proceedings, But not knowing what to expect is only 
one of a number of intimidating or negative factors that await these individuals: 
waiting around in court to testify, lost wages, insensitive treatment on the part of 
law enforcement officials, lack of relevant information, and attacks on their credi
bility by defense attorneys, are all experiences that undermine victims' and wit
nesses' stamina as the case progresses, The result of the system's lack of assistance 
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to victims and witnesses is that fewer people are willing to cooperate with the 

system. bl' . to hI' . t' d't Does the federal government have an 0 IgatIon e p crlDle VIC Ims an Wl-
nesses? The answer is definitely yes. • . 

In cases that are reported, the police apprehend !o'l!ghly 20 percent of the cnm,l
nals; they come in contact ",ith 100 percent of t~e .VIcb!Ds. Yet most of th.e e~phas18 
in law enforcement is on what to ?o.whe~ a crlm1O~ 18 appre~ended, wIth httle or 
no consideration as to the pOlice/vICtlm/Wlt~ess relatlOnship. SlDC~ ~he syste!D ~urns 
to victims and witnesses to aid voluntarily I? the arr~st an? convIction of cnm1Oals, 
the system's obligation to help these people 10 return IS obVIOUS. . 

The benefits of providjng victim ~~t,anc~ programs ar~ ~umerous: br resp~mdmg 
to the needs of crime victims, a mUnICIpality furthers VlctIm cooperation w!th the 
system. Victims who feel they can rely on law enfor~eme~t Of!iClalS for ass18tB:nC~ 
are more apt to take the time to fil~ changes, m9:k~ Ide~tIficatIo1;ls, attend prelimI
nary hearings or grand jury proceedmgs, an~ partiCIpate 10 the tnal. But the funda
mental value of victim assistance J?rograms IS. that they. combp.t apa.thy on the p~t 
of victims and witnesses by providing them WIth a specIal umt to glVe them adVice 
and support. 1 . h b 

These units can help victims and witnesses who are usually ost 10 t e arrage of 
legal motions, paperwork and. terminology. ~he sys~m le:a.ves, them confus~ ~d 
frustrated. By taking a few mmutes to explrun what 18 happenmg and why, VIctim
witness assistance units involve these individuals fully in the case. Most important, 
the unit is often able to set aside some basic questions, misconceptions and fears. 

Another benefit of having a victim-witness assistance unit on the prosecutorial 
level is that these units are able to keep victims and witnesses informed. of the 
case's progress. In addition, the unit can keep the victim and all the prosecution 
witnesses informed of other court proceedings relating to the case, as well as a date 
for the trial, the outcome of that trial, and a date of sentencing. 

So yes, the time has come for victim-witness assistance units to be a per!Danent 
part of the crilninal justice system. And the federal government can help With seed 
money. Perhaps the money can be raised by reappropriating some of the fun~ gen
erated by the excise tax on handguns. Perhaps some of the funds could be ralSed by 
imposing a penaJ,ty ~mtlnt on those convicted of federal cr}mes. But eyen more 
important than tne seed motley is the federal government m~king a c~m?llt~ent.to 
victim-witness assistance programs as a permanent fIXture 10 the crlmmal Justice 
system. Seed moneJis flOe, but the program must continue after the seed money is 
gone. 

Any chief prosecuting attorney who wants to really serve all the people should 
know the importance of a victim-witness assistance unit. These units not only are 
important in prosecuting attorneys' offices, but they are needed in major police de
partments and can be run by community groups as well. 

What is the federal government's obligation? To take a stand. To support the 
victim assistance concept. To get behind the crime victims' rights movement. And to 
show that yes, crime victims do have rights too, 

On a personal note, I would like to add that I had firsthand experience as a crime 
victim. In January of 1975, I was attacked and brutally beaten by four men in Par
sippany, New Jersey. As a result, I was left permanently blind in my right eye, 
given a lifetime sentence. I went through a cold and uncaring criminal justice 
system. Since that time, I have spoken with many crime victims, and I have found 
that most victims are more outraged and more bitter toward the criminal justice 
system than even toward the person or persons who committed the crime against 
them. The reason: what can you expect from a criminal? The criminal is there to 
hurt you. But you don't expect to be abused and hurt by the system you always 
believed was there to protect the victim and punish the criminal. 

Thank you for this opportunity to address the Subcommit~ on Crime of the 
House Comlnittee on the Judiciary. 

Mr. HUGHES. Any other comments? Anyone want to add any-
thing to that? . 

TESTIMONY OF THEODORE FREEMAN, URBAN LEAGUE OF 
HUDSON COUNTY 

Mr. FREEMAN. Thank you. I would just add several points that I 
would like to make. 
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There are certain things that I feel are extremely important as 
we view the issue of crime in our society. First of all, crime is prob
ably the truest barometer to the economic situation of our society 
of the general population. People with no jobs, poor education de
lapidated housing, no health care capabilities, sporadic ability to 
obtain food and no apparent opportunities for the future are going 
to hurt, steal and destroy. 

Since crime is as national as the gross national product, singular 
intervention would be ineffective. Initial confrontation has to be 
with national intervention. Our national intervention has to have a 
focus which is much more comprehensive than the scope of this 
committee. It is necessary for the inclusion of these critical compo
nents, and there are eight of them. 

First, proper deployment of our law enforcement personnel 
within our communities. Physical presence of our police personnel, 
foot patrol, living where they work, things of that nature. 

Second, a uniform approach to dealing with the truancy problem 
in our schools and other related matters. 

Third, proper job and career development opportunites. What the 
private sector will not do, the public sector must. 

Fourth, redefining the roles and functions of our penal system. 
Delineating between punishing and rehabilitating within our penal 
system. 

Fifth, affordable health care services. 
Sixth, decent and affordable housing. 
Seventh, proper utilization of pretrial detention. 
Eighth, revamping our archalc welfare system. 
I believe if we begin to address some of these issues and concerns 

which are germaine to our particular problem, we will begin to get 
a handle on the problems that we have been discussing here today, 
And I think there has been a voice from everyone that has spoken 
here today that we all are concerned, that we all want something 
done and we are willing to meet the challenge. 

We feel extremely proud of yeu gentlemen coming here and 
taking your time to find out what our particular concerns are 
about at the grass root level. And whatever we can do to be of any 
help, we stand prepared and ready to do so. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much, Mr. Freeman. 
[Statement 9f Theodore H. Freeman, Jr. follows:] 

(\ 
STATEMENT Oli' THEODORE H. FREEMAN, JR., PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER, URBAN Ll<lAGUE OF HUDSON COUNTY 

~r. 9hair~an, honora~le members of the committee and friends, your subcom
mIttee IS trYing to determme the proper role of the Federal Government in criminal 
justice matterS. It is quite apparent to everyone here that crime has totally inundat. 
~d our community. There are those folks who have retreated to the early 1900's for 
mnate reasons for the causes of crime, such as race, color, ethnic origin, size and 
shape of ones cranium. While there will always be a small percentage of individuals 
who receive sadistic pleasure from maiming, killing or taking from other people; the 
presence and extent of crime in this country is the true barometer of the economic 
climate of our general popUlation. People, with no jobs, poor education, dilapidated 
housing, no health care capabilities, sporadic ability to obtain food and no apparent 
opportunities for the future, are going to hurt, steal and destroy. 

Since crime is as national as the Gross National Product, singular intervention 
would be ineffective, initial confrontation has to be with national intervention. Our 
national intervention has to have a focus which is much more comprehensive than 
the scope of this august committee. 
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It is necessary for the inclusion of these critical componen~: . . . 
1. Proper deployment of our law enforcement pe:s?nnel Wl,thin our communItles

Physical presence of police personnel (foot patrol, hvmg where you work, etc.), 
2 A uniform approach to dealing with school truancy and other related matters. 3: Proper job and career development opportunities (what the private sector will 

not do the public sector must). . • . 
4. RedefIDing the roles and functions of our penal system (I.e. delmeating between 

punishment and rehabilitation). 
5. Affordable health care service. 
6. Decent and.affordable housing. 
7. The proper utilization of pre-trial detention. 
S. Revamping our archaic welfare systeI?" .. 
These components are not ~ any ranking ~rder; some may be addressed dIrect~y 

by your committee and some will need to be dIrected. by you to other ~ouse comI?It
tees but with a comprehensive approach we can begm to address the lSSue of cru?le 
in our society properly and thoroughly. The Urban l.eague stands prepared to SSSlSt 
you in that endeav9r for the betterment of all our people. 

Mr. HUGHES. Anyone else have anything that they want to sup-
plement their statement with? 

Arthur, you represent the senior citizens. 
Mr. FABIAN. Yes, I represent the senior citizens. 
Mr. HUGHES. You are the president of the senior citizens of our 

county. 
Mr. FABIAN. Yes, and cosponsor of the Hudson Community Con

ference on the Aging. 

TESTIMONY OF ARTHUR FABIAN, PRESIDENT, CONCERNED 
SENIOR CITIZENS 

Mr. FABIAN. As the previous speakers said, I am very happy to 
be here, because if I had to select two pillars from New Jersey to 
represent our requests and our pleas, I could not ask for two or 
three better people than yourselves. And that is not a . preface to 
sort of soften things up. 

I would like to speak to you today as a person from the neighbor
hood, because is that not where it is all happening? I also feel that 
as in the past, the people have been putting their faith and their 
confidence in Representatives in Washington. That is our system. 
No reflection on anyone, believe me. My point is, if the people they 
are putting faith hi and confidence in and the results are the condi
tions and situations that we are in today, I do not think there is 
too much of a bright horizon for the future. 

Again, my point is I feel just maybe, just maybe, the right part
ner is not in, sitting on the Federal Government decisions in that 
respect. Not authoritively, no pay attached to it, but just an input 
into this. Because I think the time has come, as. Congressman 
Guarini said before, that it is an absolute fact that senior citizens 
cannot go out in the streets safely. That they are curtailed from 
trying to enjoy the few years they have left in entertainment and 
so forth. They are prisoners in their 0}Vn homes. That is basically 
what it comes down to. 

And just to go a step further, outthere, gentlemen, it is a rat 
race~ The latest reports that I have had is that the rats are win
ning. 

With your permission, I would just like to go a little further. In 
reference to the senior citizens being mugged, raped, robbed, phys
ically assaulted and what not, these very same people ha.ve little or 
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no insurance to meet this vicious happening, which they should not 
have to tolerate in the first place. Do you feel that the victim com
pensation is adequate enough to take care of such violent assault? 
I, for Qne1 hardly think so, The irony of it all is that the senior citi
zen is so frightened to testify in cases where the criminal is caught 
that I would say, from my own experience in such cases, that 
criminals just go on their merry way. But if the law agencies could 
assure the senior citizen that they would be protected from any 
further future assault by these criminals, you would have more se
niors willing to testify and more criminals would be incarcerated 
when and if we ever get enough room to put them. 

Just as a very brief experience, two people in the ages of 80 years 
old, were burglarized and it was aggravated assault. No doubt 
about it. They are supposed to testify against them. These people 
are frightened to death. Not only from the first experience, but 
what thel had to go through afterward"to go and testify. 

At 7 0 clock the night before they were supposed to testify, they 
did not know they were going to testify the following day. They 
were informed of it at 7 at clock the night before the day they are 
supposed to testify. And they are supposed to appear in Rahway, 
N:J. Tell me, the man is paralyzed from his head down to his toes 
on the right side. The lady weighs about 75 pounds soaking wet. 
And there they are asking these people to go down to Rahway, 
N.J; Who thought-carrying out what this gentleman just said-who 
Wii6 going to give these· people assistari,ce? You had to run around 
trying to get a private individual froni the bottom of his heart to 
offer this kind of help. Fortunately, I was able to get help. I am not 
saying "I." Believe, I am not. 

But this is the point, Congressmen. This is what it is all about. 
This is what we are talking about. This is the input we would love 
to have on some of these task forces, or whatever you want to call 
them. 

Just to go on. Victims complain that potentially stiff penalties 
are often negotiated away. Some of the highest jurists see extensive 
plea bargaining. as tantamount to an invitation to crime. I am not 
telling you anything new. You probably know it already. Should we 
be surprised that the word gets around that you could commit two 
or three crimes for the price of one? These words were said by a 
man who holds the esteemed office as Chief Justice of the U.S. Su
preme Court, Warren E. Burger. You know, after reading words 
like this, tell me, what does the senior citizen and for that matter, 
any citizen, have to look forward to? I would say not very much. 

Concerning criminal justice and law enforcement agencies, in 
general, it is beyond me and millions of other people of our Nation 
how ~ .. ashington could ever entertain the thought of cutting the 
budget of these most essential and urgently needed services. The 
criminal justice system of this State and for that matter many 
others, it is stated, have revised their penal codes a,nd now, more 
criminals are going to jail and staying longer. I am certainly happy 
to hear that and I know other people are. But do" we then have 
enough J?l'isons? We do not have enough prison$ in which to put 
the crimmals., 

Even though referendums and questions on the ballot can be ap
proved or disapproved for more prisons, I feel that the Federal Gov-
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ernment has to subsidize the States to show their interest in com
batting crime. In other words, if there is not enough room to house 
the criminals, our whole J>u;pose of curb~g crime is defeated .. The 
menace to society, the crunmal, must bt:: mca~cerated. and qwc~y 
if we are to achieve our goal of combattmg cnme. It 18 my feelmg 
that the time has come when the Federal GoverJ?llent, not only 
has to, but must subsidize the State, C?unty ~d CIty governments 
with the necessary funding to push their public safety departments 
to the fullest capacity. '. , . 

We talk about national defense, and you are more acquamted 
with this than I am, gentlemen, of the money being poured~ into it. 
And I, for one, am in full accord for a defen..c:e ~econd to none 
against the foreign enemy. But do we not have an mternal enemy 
right here known as the criminal? I feel that just as much empha~ 
sis should be focused on this, because this, can destroy the very 
land that we are trying to protect. 

My question is what can we do about it? And we look forward to 
aentlemen such' as yourselves, that represent everyone in this 
~m, I think. Weare behind you. We have the support. You have 
a lot of talent outside that does not demand one penny of the Fed-
eral Government's money. , 

Finally, I believe such a program such ,as this is get?ng commu
nity people on government task forces and such~ agaIn, at no ex
pense to the government, no authoritative measures that they 
would have. They would be the partner that, will decrease crime 
rapidly and you could take a perpetual inventory that would con
tinuously go on, with the implementation of these funds, how the 
money is being spent. Sort of put it into the hands of the people 
that are suffering these things. And I believe that input would be 
most beneficial. 

I would like to thank Congressman Guarini and Congressman 
Hughes for listening. Thank you very much. 

Mr. HUGHES. We thank you for your statement. I might say that 
both my colleague, Congressman Guarini; and I feel very strongly 
about a strong national defense. But I have heard your Congress
man say from time to time that 'We have not lost anybody to the 
Russians these days, but we lose them to the criminal element on 
the streets every day." And it points up, I thinlr, the priorities that 
we need to look' at. 

[Statem~nt of Arthur A. Fabian follows:] 

STATEMEt-t'T OF AaTRUR A. FiUUAN 

In referohce to the senior citizens being mugged, raped. and l'Obbed* physically as
saulted and what, not, these very same people have little 01' no insurance to meet 
this vicious happening, which they should not ha\'e to tolerate in the first place. 

Do you feel that the 'victim compensation is adequate enough to take care .()f such 
violent assault? lhardIy think so. . 

The irony of it all is that the senior citizen is so frigh~ed. to t&.'"tifY in cases 
where the criminal is caught that I ~"Ould say" fnlm my oWn experience. in such 
cases. that criminals just. go on their merry \\"aYI but if the ~w .nci(!S could 
as:.-ure the senior citiz.en that they would be- protected from any futtU'e ~ult by 
these criminals. y<>u would have more &miOES. willing to testify and more ():riminals 
would be incarcerated· when and if\ve ever have enoitgh iO<!m to put them. 

Victims complain that potentially stiff pehallties oft~n are negotiated away. 
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Some of the highest jurists see extensive plea bargaining as tantamount to an in
vitation to crime. Should we be surprised if the word gets around that you can 
commit two or three crimes for the price of one? 

These words were said by a man who holds the esteemed office of Chief Justice of 
the United States Supreme Court, Warren E. Burger. 

After reading words like that, tell me "What does the senior citizen and for that 
matter, any citizen have to look forward to?" I would say not much. ' 
. <?oncerning the crimi.n~l justice system and law enforcement agencies in general, 
It IS beyond .me and mIllIons of o~her people of our nation, how Washington could 
ever entertam the thought of cuttmg the budget of these most essential and urgent.. 
Iy-needed services. 

The criminal justice system of this state, and for that matter it is stated have 
revised their penal codes and now more criminals are going t~ jail and staying 
longer. 

I am cer?ti.nly happy to hear that, but we do not have enough prisons in which to 
put the crillunals, ~ven though referendum and questions on the ballot can be ap
proved for more prIsons, I feel the federal government has to subsidize the states to 
show their interest in combatting crime. In other words, if there is not enough room 
to house the criminals our whole purpose of curbing crime is defeated. 

The menace to society, the criminal, must be incarcerated and quickly if we are 
to achieve our goal of combatting and curbing crime. ' 

It is my feeling that the time has come when the federal government not only has 
to, but must, subsidize the state, county and city governments with the necessary 
funding to push their public safety departments to full capacity. 

We talk about national defense and I, for one, and I am in full accord for a de
fense second to none against a foreign enemy, but do we now have an internal 
enemy known as criminals. I feel that just as much emphasis should be focused on 
this because this can destroy the very land we are trying to protect. 

My question is what can we do about it? Thank you. 

Mr. HUGHES. The gentleman from New Jersey, Mr. Guarini. 
Mr. GUARINI. We would just like to make a quick wrap-up by Bill 

and Eliu and would you like to just make a statement and then I 
think the record would be fairly well complete. 

Mr. HUGHES. Yes. In fact, we will leave the record open for 5 
days for those who did not prepare or submit a written statement. 
Without objection they will be made a part of the record in full. 
We hope that you can keep your remarks very brief. 

TESTIMONY OF BILL CONNELLY 

Mr. CONl\mLLY. I would just like to make a few comments. One is 
from the ex-police director of Jersey City, Michael Bocesso [phonet
IC]. TonnelJe Ayenue of ~ersey City is known as Heroin Highway. 
The ex-pohce dIrector estnnated that 70 percent of the street crime 
in Jersey City was x;elated to drug abuse, heroin addiction. 

Another comment is that new definitions of crime are constantly 
emerging. What is considered criminal in one section of our State 
may be an acceptable behavior elsewhere. And I feel that that is 
something very evident for something as simple as pot smoking in 
Jersey. If we walked into Bayonne with half a joint, we would be 
arrested. 

I think that the drug situation now is one of the most pressing 
issues in the urban area and it is a common problem to all of our 
urban areas. I think that the judges should have the authority to 
demand drug testing and it should be mandatory that methadone 
treatment be posted as position, as a treatment for the bail. 

It is ludicrous that we can detect nuclear missles tens of thou
sands of miles a"Iay, yet we cannot detect boats making million
dollar drug deals 2 and 3 miles off the New Jersey coast. 

.. 
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Another issue that should be a priority is civics, as Congressman 
Guarini stated before. It has been dropped from the curriculum. No 
longer is there an understanding of thf'l court system, the judicial 
processes. It is no longer a respect for the law and the systems of 

cO%:therpriority that needs to be esta~lished is that of preven
tion. It is now currently mandated that m the New Jersey school 
systems behavioral health philosophies be implemented in the cur
riculum: But when we talk of behavioral health as a means of pre
vention we are not just talking of substance abuse. We are talking 
about the whole health realm. This includes juvenile prevention, 
drug preventio:n, alcohol prevention, and then there are the types 
of dysfunctional behavior which would prove a drain on the crimi
nal justice system. 

Presently, with the moneys that are coming down through the 
Federal grant, we have all these different category systems, the 
health, narcotics, alcoholism, mental healtht criminal justice. Each 
system has prioritized prevention as a main emphasis through the 
current fISCal year. Yet, we are not moving in any focused atten
tion and direction. Each system is establishing their own preven
tion base, their own research and statistical analysis and informa
tion obtaining. Presently, there are no linkages between these sys-
tems. _ 

I think that this was one of the major problems which Congress 
faced when it tried to defend the budget in the budget cuts. Analy
sis and cost-effective benefit analysis were not available to be pre
sented. A lot of the programs went through, but there was nothing 
showing from the benefits to be derived of all the money spent. I 
think that this is establishing the same mistakes that we have 
made with the other systems. With this emphasis, we need some 
mandates determined by the State systems so that we can move in 
a direction which will provide comprehensive prevention activities. 

Thank you. 
Mr. HUGHES. Thank you very much. 
Mr. Rivera, do you have anything you would like to add? 

TES'l'IMONY OF RAMON mIZARRY~ ATTORNEY, APPEARING ON 
BEHALF OF ELIU RIVERA AND PACO, INC., AND THE FAIR 
HOUSING FEDERATION OF JERSEY CITY 

Mr. IRIZARRY. On behalf of PACO and the Fair HoUsing Feder
ation of Jersey City, my name is Ramon Irizarry. I am an attorney. 

We wanted to point out a very instant situation that has taken 
place in Hudson County and is international news. I think it is 
very important that the panel be informed about it. We have aL
ready requested, officially, through Congressman Guarini, congres
sional hearings specifically on the issue of arson for profit. Which 
we now call really murder for profit, because it has reached the 
level of specifically targeting the Spanish community of Hoboken. 

Specifically, let me just give you some real quick statistics that I 
think will really impress and will really raise a lot of q1.,estions. 

If you compare New York City that has a population of 7 million 
people with Hoboken that has a population of 40,000 only, and you 
compare the deaths, by arson in the last 7 months, you will find 
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th~t ~~w York City has lost 25 people while Hoboken has lost 28. 
This IS In the last 7 months. 
~he.people in Hoboken, the Spanish community Hoboken, at this 

POInt I~ very frustrated. There was a large demonstration in Hobo
ken thIS Saturday. There was a large demonstration in Hoboken 
last October, when approximately 16 people died as a result of 
arson for profit. But yet, the mechanism to deal with arson for 
profit is not there. Specifically, the roots of arson for profit have 
~ot b~en ~ealt with. Also, we have initiated our own independent 
mvestigatlOn. We do not feel that the conditions that exist in 
Hudson County, in t~r~s of our local government, in terms of the 
law enforcement agenCIes, are capable of stopping this epidemic. 

Spec!fi~ally, . our investigation has shown the following: In six of 
the buIldings, In the last few years, where you have multiple alarm 
fires,. displa~ing tenants ~d killing many of the tenants, you have 
!tad Immediately preced~g these fires the building of condomin
IUms. You have had, speCIfically, real estate agents involved in this 
p:oce~s, in all the properties that they own, who are very suspi
CIOUS In arson related fires. 

Specifically, we have found that in the sale contracts-and there 
is at least two cases of this occurring-we have found that there 
have been specific provisions provided where the closing of the 
property will involve the total displacement of the tenants. In 
other words, in order for the process to take place the building will 
have to be totally empty. In the meantime, between the Signing of 
the contract and the actual closing of the building you have a fire 
with all the tenants displaced and several of the te'nants have died. 

Now, these specific instances are not just accidental. They are 
not accidental, because the situation in Hoboken shows that it is a 
booming real estate industry, that at least 25 percent of the stock 
in H~boken,. housing stock, has already been renovated. Probably 
the hIghest m the country. So you,have a situation where the real 
estate industry isflliing a gap of runaway factories and runawEfy 
shops. You have a situation where the local government has openly 
supporte.g-::,va,cancy control, has not instituted any fire alarm ordi
nance that would at least attempt to prevent fires. You have a situ
ation where the victims of fires, particularly of the fires in October 
were walking the streets of Hoboken with 90-degree burns, with 
broken arms, broken legs, and there was not even a hUlnanitarian 
effort to find them shelter. That is the kind of situation that you 
find. 

Now, if there is an effort to bring nliddle-class people from New 
York and proyide them with condominiums and housing, but yet, 
at the same .tIme you have New Jersey with the most progressive 
tenant laws In the whole country, the most progressive tenant laws 
that prevent large-scale displacement, then the only alternative 
the most logical alternative is arson for profit. And we have to un: 
derstand that. We have to understand that it is not an accidental 
question, tha~ 28 people in a population of 40,000 compared to New 
York, haye .dI~d. It cannot be ~n accident, but it is a premeditated 
murder, It IS Just a murder, dIrected at a particular popUlation to 
harass and to terrorize them. 
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I want to add to my presentation, by just giving you an example 
that ought to make people cry, if they are now willing to listen to 
our investigated problems. . 

Now children normally, when they pamt or when they draw, 
they d~aw nice pictures of homes and of flowers. Well, that is a 
problem in Hoboken. A problem in Hoboken that Span~h children 
have. And the childen in Hoboken ar~ no longer drawmg flowers 
and nice buildings and houses. The children of Hoboken are draw
ing buildings bm'ning with kids jumping out the windows and 
dying. Now, that is a psychological problem. of t,he Holoca;ust in 
Germany. OK? So we have what we call a mmImlzed genoclde oc
curring in Hoboken. 

And we do not feel at this point that our local authorities, Feder
al authorities are capable or even willing to deal with the problem. 
It is going tb take a direct congressional investigation into the 
problem. .. 

We therefore, recommend the followmg three pomts: No.1, a 
full ~d thorough congressional investigation of arson for profit, fo
cusing on the most hard hit areas in Hud~on. County, .sp~cifically 
Jersey City and Hoboken, as well as the maJorlty of vlctimIZed pnp
ulations which are the blacks, Hispanics, and low-income tenants. 
This investigation should be accompanied by public hearings utiliz
ing congressional subpena power and directed at those targeted 
areas. The records of the fire department, the records of the city, 
and records of real estate agencies that are functioning in the area 
should be subpenaed. 

No.2, we ask for the immediate development and implementa
tion of FE.'<ieral financial commitment to enable community agen
cies and organizations, local government institutions, fire depart
ments, and law enforcement agencies to identify potential areas of 
arson for profit and develop a preventive strategy in said areas, in
cluding the use of computerized statistical evaluation to centralize 
arson for profit data. 

And No.3, we call for a vigorous investigation of specific in
stances of arson for profit by means of a special Federal prosecutor 
assigned to Hudson County. And we have already begun some of 
this investigation and we will most gladly turn over to that Federal 
prosecutor. 

Mr. HUGHES. We thank you for your statement. I did not realize 
that you had had such a high incidence of arson in your area. 

[Statement of Eliu Rivera follows:] 

STATEMENT OF ELIU RIVERA, ExECUTIVE DIRECTon, PACO, PUERTORRIQUl?:NOS 
ASOCIADOS FOR CoMMUNITY ORGANIZATION, INC. 

The focus of the statement to be made before the House Subcommittee on Crime 
is the need for a federal commitment to implement a long term strategy to reduce 
the opportuniti{)S and incentives for Arson For Profit, The strategy, Federal in 
Nature, should be based on a sharing of resources between the private sector and 
community organizations as well' as coordination among city, state, and Federal 
Governments. The strategy will reach the higher risk buildings, that is, those in im
minent danger of displacement and arson. Essentially the elements of the strategy 
include research, organizing, and community d.edication tactics that arc within the 
scope ofresidents and their community orgatlizations. 

The basUi for a community based strl;\tegy supported by a Federal financial com
mitment is the belief that arson is really a housing question of what conditions. in
centives, and opportunities give t(l the calClllated destruction of the housing stock of 
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the inner cities in New Jersey. The answers are to be found in insurance practices 
and laws, methods of code enforcement, attitudes of the Courts toward slumlords, 
tax laws and other aspects of the deteriorating property situation in Jersey City, 
Hoboken and across the state, as well as in social factors, such as poverty and 
racism, that affect the way the problem is viewed. 

Arson is often the last step in building and neighborhood decline following long 
histories of building neglect by landlords; lack of code enforcement by the city; com
plicated financial maneuvers to increase the values of buildings; insurance pro
grams and practices which allow for the overinsurance of buildings; redlining by 
banks; and other actions which result in the wit.hdrawal of services from specific 
neighborhoods. . 

There are several different scenarios for arson for profit, and these are the most 
important: 

Insurance fraud. "':"'This appears to be a major'motive in arson for profit. This sce
nario finds a building being sold over and over among various owners, driving up 
the paper value of the building despite the real value of the building. Easy-to-get 
fire insurance is obtained for the paper value of the building, and the owner(s) is 
guaranteed a profit in insurance money. 'l'his type of insurance fraud can be perpe
trated by a small ring consisting of a landlord and a few associates and family mem
bers, or may be the work of professional arson rings involving a variety of actors 
such as insurance agents, public adjusters, "straw" mortgagees, contractors, etc. 

Stop loss lires.-This scenario also involves insurance fraud. This type is often 
used when cwners are in a bind and need cash, or when properties are losing 
money. It often, begins when a landlord has made as much money as he can from a 
building, and begins to cut back on repairs ann services. Arson for profit is the last 
way for landlords like this to collect money from a building. A larger owner may 
use fires in selected buildings to provide the cash flow for work on his other build
ings, or to acquire more property. 

Parcelization and gentrification.-Parcelization fires may occur when the land is 
more valuable than the building on it, anywhere the building may be a liability in 
selling the land. Not only the insurance proceeds of the fire, but the sale of the land 
as well, may provide the profit. There fires would tend to occur where real estate 
values are rapidly increasing. Gentrification fires occur generally in urban areas 
where redevelopment is increasing the value of housing stock in rental areas. Such 
fires are a sure way to move the current tenants-of ten-low-income minorities-out 
and to pave the way for rehab and rental to higher-income tenants. There fires may 
also be used to vacate building for conversion to condominiums, or to hasten vacan
cies in cities where rent control is followed by vacancy decontrol. 

Partial loss or rehab fires.-This arson for profit scheme involves a partial fire in 
a building, occupied or vacant, which is being renovated. The insurance settlement 
helps to fmance the rehabilitation work. 

It is PACO's intention to concentrate on the problem of arson for profit in J.C. It 
is clear that Jersey City displays the conditions that provide the opportunities and 
incentives for most, if not all, of the arson for profit scenario illustrated above. 
Moreover, arson for profit is generally held to be the one type of arSon most amena
ble to detection and prevention. The New Jersey Arson Task Force reports that, 
"Experts, on both the national level and within New Jersey, agree that of all forms 
of arson, arson for economic gain can be most effectively addressed ... " Projects 
such as STOP (Symphony Tenants Organizing Project) and.USE (Urban Educational 
Systems), both in Boston, have shown that neighborhood-based arson prevention 
projects can lead to a drastic reduction in arson. 

Mr. HUGHES. You might be interested in knowing that in subsec
tion 3 of the bill, we list arson as one of the major categories for 
funding. We are in the process of developing an "arson for profie' 
statute. We have some problems with Federal jurisdiction, because 
of the manner in which arson is defined,because it is related to 
explosives. We hope to be reporting out legislation in the very near 
future that will close that blind spot, so that we can have a very 
direct Federal involvement in arson investigations. So we appreci~ 
ate your testimony. 

Let me just say to the panel as a whole: Your testimony has been 
most helpful. I quite agree with you that we have just totally ne
glected witnesses and jurors. They are tremendously inconvep.-
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ienced. They are often harassed. They are not reimbursed for their 
actual expenses. And flO I think it is very important that we devel
op a comprehensive strategy to try to assure witnesses that, first of 
all, they are important to the system. And second, to try to give 
them a better idea of what 'ijs occurring. They often do not know 
what disposition is made of th'e.effense. 

And your testimony was extremely important, Mr. Fabi.an, inso
far as providing transportation, particularly for older witnesses, or 
others who do not have transportation. And to keep them abreast 
of what is happening in the case is extremely important. 

One of the things subsection 11 of H.R. 4481 contemplates is that 
type of assistance, and we, too,think it is important. 

So, again, we are grateful for your testimony. 
The gentleman from New Jersey, Mr. Guarini. 
Mr. GUARINI. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
I am very pleased to have had the benefit of the testimony of this 

citizens' panel. You people are not the experts that have testified 
earlier, in that they spend their full time and effort aud are paid in 
the system of administration of criminal justice. You people are the 
grassroots in that you understand the problems of the victim, the 
senior citizens, and the minorities, and the need for a more com
prehensive program of criminal enforcement. 

I am particularly happy to know, Mr. Chairman, that you were 
here to listen to the last statement that was made about arson. I 
show you a paper, a headline just this last week in the Jersey Jour
nal, liThe War Against Arson." It goes to show how important it is 
to all of us here, because arson for profit is one of the major crimes 
within the last few years in our community. And we list it in the 
categories as nonviolent crime. And if there is ever a violent crime 
where people are hurt and, indeed; murdered, it is this particular 
kind of a crime. I think they have pushed it into the wrong catego
ry. And our count.; here, where people are living so close together, 
so impacted upon\~each other, particularly in places like Hoboken 
and downtown Jersey City, where there is a fire, we have 10, 15, or 
21 people wiped out at one time. I think that the newspapers in our 
county here have had more arson in the headlines in the last 2 or 3 
years than any newspaper in any other part of Qur State or any 
other time in our own county. 

So I think .that arson is on the rise in this part of the State, with 
Newark havmg somewhat of a similar problem-is something that 
the Subcommittee on Crime should take cognizance of. And when 
they address themselves to arson and the whole criminal statute, 
they s1?-ould take a particular hard look at this arson for profit, be
cause It is one of the most insidious parts of our crime problem 
that we have in our State today. 

Thank you, gentlemen. 
Mr. HUGHES. I just want to add to that that interstate arson 

!in~s are on .the upswing. And you can. aln;{ost track arson-related 
mCIdences With the unemployment rate and the bankruptcy filing 
rate. As ):>~ruptcy mings go up and unemployment goes up, so 
does the mCIdence of arson. 
m ~o it is impo!tant for us to reinforce what the Bureau of Alcohol, 
Of ooacco and, FIre~rms h.as 40ne. It is the prime agency in develop
mg arson-related mvestIgatIOns, and partICularly interstate arson, 
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an~ in rendering assistance to the fire and police departments. It is 
so Important for. u~, No.1, to try to insure that it is adequately 
f~mded, because It IS essential to the local law enforcement agen
CIes. 

And No.2, we. do need an ~rson-for-profit strategy in this coun
try. So I appreCIate y:our testunony. It happens to be very perti
nent, because we are III the process now of developing some arson 
le~lation that will come before the House, hopefully before this 
seSSIOn ends. 

Mr. GUARINI. It also points out the fact that we do indeed need 
more multi-State planning. ' , 

Mr. HUGHES. No question about that. 
Mr. GUARINI. We have been giving attention to each State as 

though it is a pigeonhole. I think, certainly, the time has arrived 
that we have to consider the interstate aspects of all forms of 
crime, because our country is a smaller country today than it was 
when it was in the Thirteen Original Colonies. 

Mr. HUGHES. So we thank you for your testimony. You have been 
most helpful. 

And I ~an~ to thank the audience for being so patient. I know 
that .by thI~ tIme you need to stand up. I apologize for running the 
he~rmg this long. I have a 3 o'clock appointment in Atlantic City, 
which I hope to make. 

So at this time, the subcommittee will adjourn. 
I w~t to say t~ank you, once .ag~in, to your Congressman Frank 

Guarll11, because It. was he who mVIted the subcommittee here and 
made the arrangements for the hearing. And to his fme staff, we 
say thank you, and to my own professional staff, thank you for 
doing a very good job. 

Mr. GUARINI. May I thank you for your leadership and your staff 
for coming. out of their way to come up to Hudson County and for 
all the good work you have been doing as a chairman. Thank you 
very much. 

Mr. HUGHES. Thank you. 
The subcommittee stands adjourned. 
[Whereupon, at 1 p.m., the hearing was adjourned.] 
[Additional statement follows:] 

SUPREME COURT OF NEW JERSEY, 
Perth Amboy, N.J., May 14, 1982. 

Hon. WILLIAM J. HUGHES, 
Atla.ntic Avenue, 
Atlantic City, N.J. 

DEAR 90NGRESSMAN HUGHES: I appreciate very much your invitation to atbnd 
the he~l'mgs of the Subcommittee on Crime in Jersey City on May 17. Unfortunate
ly, I WIll not be able to appear, but I would like to take this opportunity to share 
some thoughts on the role of the federal government in criminal justice. 

As .the House has recognized in passing your subcommittee's bill, H.R. 4481, earli
er thlS year, the federal government has a legitimate role in assisting the states and 
local go,:ernm~nts,in their criminal justice efforts. While the primary responsibility 
for fightmg crIme IS ~enerally thought to be properly lodged with the state and local 
governm~n~,. there IS no doubt that the problem of crime clearly is beyond the 
scope of mdiVIdual states to resolve. 

In New Jersey we hav~ benefited from various LEAA programs through our State 
~aw Enforcement Plann}ng A({ency. Whatever the faults of LEAA may have been, 
~t sp'!rx:ed ll?an,r states, mcludn~g New Jersey, to develop significant improvements 
m crImInal JustIce. Recently, usmg federal funds as seed money we have established 
an extremely effective sJatewide speedy trial program. 
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With only $200,000 in federal fu,nds an~ much concentrated effort from ~ud~es, 
public defenders prosecutors, sheriffs, pohce and others, we have reduced In Just 
one year the ave~age time from !l:rest to trial of felony cases fro~ twelve months to 
seven months. While the pronusmg first year of our speedy trIal program shows 
that a relatively small amount of federal assistance can make a big difference to the 
productivity of the criminal justice system, I .musr.~xpress my concern that dimin
ishing resources threaten our effort to deal WIth an Increased volume of cases at an 
accelerated pace. (, 

During this first Speedy. Trial year, we. have demonstr~¥ that b~tter manage
ment and greater cooperative efforts can mcrease productIVlty, e,,--pedlte cases, and 
reduce waste. But at some point, not yet clearly established, we will approach the 
limit of what can be done through internal management improvements. In some 
areas, such as defense and crime laboratory servic~s, we have already reached that 
limit. There is no escaping the fact that more pubhc defenders and more laboratory 
equipment are now needed in New Jersey. These cost money. The State in the past 
has willingly supported these efforts, but no one can be certain how much longer 
funds will continue to be available for these purposes given the fiscal constraints we 
now face. The additional investment required to sustain our Speedy Trial efforts is 
not large; yet without it the momentum we have established may come to a halt. " 

The subcommittee's bill offers a cooperative approach to increased funding for 
criminal justice. It establishes high matching requirements whereby the states and 
local governments would put their own resources alongside the federal funds in the 
projects they pursue. Our experience with Speedy Trial suggests that such funding 
should be considered, not for just one year alone, but on a longer term basis. Wheth
er the four year limit prescribed in the bill is long enough can be debated, but the 
principle is sound. A federal offer of matching funds over ,a period of several years 
could yield the additional resources needed for continued and sustained improve
ment in criminal justice administration which otherwise might not be forthcoming. 

The Judiciary must perform its criminal justice functions with maximum efficien
cy and effectiveness. As Chief Justice r have tried my best to see that it does so 
within available resources. The New Jersey Judiciary has speeded up dispositions, 
faithfully enforced the new sentencing code so that our jails are now bulging with 
prisoners, taken extraordinary steps to insure that mandatory prison terms are im
posed on those C8rl'ying guns during the commission of crimes, and generally in
sured that our criminal laws are faithfully and strictly enforced to secure the deter
rent effect of the criminal law. 

Ordinarily my remarks would be limited to the points already raised. But the sub
committee has asked for general comments, and in that vein r will make one addi
tional point in order to discharge my responsibility to the subcommittee. A strong 
criminal justice system addresses the problem of crime in terms of deterrence. Its 
thesis is that the certainty of apprehension, the swiftness of disposition

j 
and the se

verity of sentence are the variables which can produce a significant reduction in 
crime. r would hope that the subcommittee would address, however, that body of 
opinion that holds it is equally important to address what some believe are the 
probable causes of crime and that indeed this nlay be the more promising federal 
role~ It suggests that, at the very least, Congress should ask whether in addition to 
measures taken to directly strengthen (~he criminal justice system, it is essential, if 
any progress at all is to be made in this Cirea, to address the problems of poverty, 
unemployment, poor education, broken families-sIlof the things that apparently 
have caused so many to lose all hope for a meaningful and productive life, to feel no 
stake whatsoever in society, the things that, when combined in an environment of 
racial hostility, have such potentially serious consequences for the country even 
beyond the statistics of crime. 

It is obvious that whatever other approaches may accompany it, society's major 
response of greatly strengthening the effectiveness of the criminal justice system 
has the direct effect of overburdening our jails. It is critically important that the 
federal government remain available to assist our State financially if the prison sta
tistics suggest that the prison space to be made available through the promising ef. 
forts of our state government may not be sufficient. Overcrowded prisons may have 
a substantial effect on the deterrent force of the criminallaw

1 
for they mar not only 

force the early release of prisoners, they may also have an undesirable Impact on 
the initial sentet;tcing, no matter how hard anyone mar try to prevent this. 

The subcommIttee's presence here in New Jersey 15 significant. It suggests that; .. 
while the administration of criminal justice may be thought better left to the states, 
the problem of c:ime, both in scope and potential consequence, is a national prob
le~. ~ether this suggests the appropriate federal role is no longer restricted to 
8SSlStmg the states, but rather has become a primary role, is for the committee and 
Congress to consider. The fact that this is a national problem however must be the 
starting. point in determining the appropriate federal role.' , 

Sincerely, 

ROBERT N. WrtENTZ. 
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